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Our Mission is to be the leading bank in The Gambia 
by operating a profitable banking institution, which 
meets the needs of all local, international, corporate 
and individual clients and returns excellent results to 
our shareholders.

To achieve this, we shall continue to set new 
standards by delivering quality services and innovative 
products with an inspired team dedicated to serving 
our Customers, Environment and Community at large 
in the most caring manner.
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● Reviewing the adequacy and security 
of the Bank's assets and employees 
to raise concerns about any possible 
wrongdoing in all matters. 

● Review the Bank's annual budget and 
ensure Management's compliance 
with its implementation while also 
reviewing significant variances and 
seeking for explanations where 
necessary. 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mr. Ansumana L.N. Touray, Chairperson 
♦ Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, Member 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Mrs. Haddy Sallah, Member, From 

September,2022 
Strategy Committee 
This committee gives strategic direction 
for the attainment of the Group's 
corporate vision and objectives aimed at 
maximizing shareholder value through 
growth and development. Its duties are: 
● To integrate the outputs from the 

different activities of the Bank and 
suggest strategic priorities and specific 
objectives to follow; 

● To evaluate outputs, outcomes and 
impacts of the various strategies 
adopted by the Bank and make 
recommendations for improvement 
and/or change as and when necessary; 

● To integrate input from the industry, 
market and environment and make 
recommendations to the Board on 
proactive activities to advance the 
strategic objectives of the Bank; 

● To direct research and development 
and make use of the results to identify 
any gaps, opportunities, strengths and 
weaknesses and recommend changes 
to the Bank’s strategy; 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, Chairperson 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Mr. Pa Macoumba Njie, Member up to 

May 2022 
♦ Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou, Member up to 

June 2022 
♦ Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦ Mr. Ansumana L.N. Touray, Member 
♦ Mr.Omar Mboob, Member, From 

January 2022 
♦ Mr.Saloum Malang, Member, From 

June 2022 
♦ Mrs.Haddy Sallah, Member, From 

September 2022 
Remuneration/ Human Resource 
Committee 
This committee has the responsibility 
to determine the remuneration of 
Executive Management and set criteria for 

determining general staff remuneration. 
Its duties are: 
● To recommend to the Board a policy 

and structure for remuneration of all 
staff; 

● To review and approve, each year, the 
staff salaries, allowances and benefits 
in kind proposed in the budget for all 
staff; 

● To ensure compliance with all 
contractual terms and legal issues 
affecting all categories of staff. This 
also entails ensuring that the Bank 
is at all times in compliance with the 
Labour and other relevant Acts; 

● To act as Trustees of the Employee 
Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) of the 
Bank; 

●  To examine and approve such matters 
in the field of remuneration, contract 
terms and employment matters as the 
Board may delegate from time to time. 

● To advise the Board on the Bank's 
planning of its building infrastructure 
projects; 

● To make recommendations to the 
Board on the plans and program of 
construction for building projects, 
including additions and/or alterations 
to existing buildings; 

● To make recommendations on the 
acquisition and disposal of freehold 
and leasehold property; 

● To make recommendations to the 
Board on the program for the repair 
and maintenance of the Bank's 
buildings. 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou , Chairperson, 

up to May 2022 
♦ Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, 

Chairperson, From June 2022 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦ Mr.Omar Mboob, Member 
♦ Mr.Saloum Malang, Member, From 

September 2022 
Infrastructure & Information Technology 
Committee 
This committee has the responsibility to 
determine the IT Administrative issues of 
the Bank and set criteria for determining 
admin and IT issues. Its duties are: 
● To advise the Bank on the planning of 

its building infrastructure projects; 
● To approve on behalf of the Bank the 

plans and program of construction 
for building projects, including 
additions and/or alterations to existing 
buildings; 

● To approve on behalf of the Bank the 
acquisition and disposal of freehold 
and leasehold property 

● To approve, on behalf of the Bank, 
the program for the repair and 
maintenance of Bank buildings. 
In cases where a major problem 
or priority arises in respect of 
such repair and maintenance, the 
Building Committee will make 
recommendations to the Board. 

● To advise the Board on Information 
Technology matters and on emerging 
risks connected thereto. 

● The Committee is responsible for 
all information technology related 
matters; 

● Exercise efficient oversight on security 
concerns relating to information 
technology 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mr.Saloum Malang, Chairperson, From 

June 2022 
♦ Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou, Chairperson, 

up to May 2022 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Mr. Ansumana L.N. Touray, Member 
♦ Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦ Mr.Omar Mboob, Member, From 2022 
Going concern 
Directors has made an assessment of 
the group's ability to continue as a going 
concern and is satisfied that it has the 
resources to continue in business for 
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, 
directors are not aware of any material 
uncertainties that may cast significant 
doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. Therefore, the 
financial statements continue to be 
prepared on the going concern basis. 
Auditors 
The auditors, DT Associates, having 
indicated their willingness , will be 
proposed for re-appointment in 
accordance with section 34 2 (2c) of the 
companies Act 2013. 

By order of the Board of Directors  

Company Secretary
Date: 00/00/23

Independent Auditor’s Report

Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated 
financial statements of Trust Bank and 
its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which 
comprise the consolidated statements of 
financial position as at 31 December 2022 
and statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statements 
of changes in equity and the statements 
of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial 
statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at 31 December 
2022 and its consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements 
of the Companies Act of 2013 and the 
Banking Act, 2009.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing 
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) 
together with other ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in The Gambia 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters 
that, in our professional judgement, 

were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. For 
each matter below, our description of 
how our audit addressed the matter is 
provided in that context
We have fulfilled the responsibilities 
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report, including in relation 
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit 
included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements. The results 
of our audit procedures, including the 
procedures performed to address the 
matters below, provide the basis for 
our audit opinion on the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
To the shareholders of Trust Bank Group

IFRS 9 Impairment
In assessing impairment reserve, we performed the following procedures:
We gained understanding of the Bank’s key credit processes comprising granting, 
booking, monitoring and provisioning.We read the Bank’s IFRS 9 based impairment 
provisioning policy and compared it with the requirements of IFRS 9;
We assessed the modeling techniques and methodology against the requirements of 
IFRS 9.
We checked and understood the key data sources and assumptions for data used in the 
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) models used by the Bank to determine impairment provisions. 
We examined a sample of exposures and performed procedures to evaluate the:
● Data used to determine the impairment reserve, including transactional data captured 

at loan origination, ongoing internal credit quality assessments and interfaces to the 
expected credit loss model;

● Expected credit loss model, including the models developed and approval, ongoing 
monitoring/validation, model governance and mathematical accuracy;

● We checked the appropriateness of the Bank’s staging;
● Basis for and data used to determine overlays;
● For Probability of Default (PD) used in the ECL calculations we checked the Through 

the Cycle (TTC) PDs calculation and checked the appropriateness of conversion of the 
TTC PDs to point in time (PIT) PDs;

● We checked the appropriateness of determining Exposure at Default, including the 
consideration of prepayments and repayments in the cash flows and the resultant 
arithmetical calculations;

● We checked the calculation of the Loss Given Default (LGD) used by the Bank in 
the ECL calculations, including the appropriateness of the use of collateral and the 
resultant arithmetical calculations;

As described in note three (3) to the 
financial statements, the impairment 
losses have been determined in 
accordance with IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments reserve.
● The interpretation of the requirements 

to determine impairment under 
application of IFRS 9, reflected in the 
Bank’s expected credit loss model.

● The identification of exposures with 
a significant deterioration in credit 
quality

● Assumptions used in the expected 
credit loss model such as the financial 
condition of the counterparty, 
expected future cash flows and 
forward-looking macroeconomic 
factors (e.g. unemployment rates, 
interest rates, gross domestic product 
growth, property prices).

● The need to apply additional overlays 
to reflect current or future external 
factors that are not appropriately 
captured by the expected credit loss 
model.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit MatterKey Audit Matter 
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Notice is hereby given that the Twenty-Fifth Annual General Meeting of Trust Bank will be held on 22nd June 2023 
at 3.00 p.m. at the Kairaba Beach Hotel for the following purposes: -

Ordinary Business
Ordinary Resolutions

1	 To receive and adopt the Annual Report and Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31st December 2022.

2	 To declare a Dividend.

3	 To re-elect Directors:

	 a. Mr. Franklin A. Hayford
	 b. Mr. Ansumana L. N. Touray 

4	 To ratify the appointment of the following Directors: -

	 a. Mr. Saloum Malang
	 b. Mrs. Haddy Sallah
	 c. Mr. Abdoulie Jallow

5	 To approve the remuneration of Directors: -

6	 To appoint DT Associates as Auditors of the Bank until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

7	 To authorize the Board to determine the remuneration of the Auditors.

8	 To transact any other business appropriate to be dealt with at any Annual General Meeting.

Proxy
A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 
instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A blank proxy is attached to the Annual Report.

Fatou Lili Drammeh
Board Secretary

Notice and Agenda of Annual General Meeting
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For the Year Ended 31st December 2022

Profit before tax
Net interest income

The Bank 2022 2021 2020

Profit before tax (D.000)  342,561 185,347 149,172 

Net Interest income (D.000)  606,539 441,571 415,530 

Operating expenses (D.000) (528,956) (461,733) (428,848)

Impairment Loss (D.000)  (37,119) (880) (236)

2022 2021 2020

Loans and advances
Deposits

The Bank 2022 2021 2020

Total Assets (D.000)  10,418,772 10,061,788 8,762,416 

Loans and advances (D.000)  4,468,270 2,271,351 1,685,247 

Customer deposits (D.000)  9,120,509 8,807,225 7,708,771 

Equity (D.000)  1,193,872 1,091,428 788,359
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Return on equity
Capital adequacy
Return on assets

The Bank 2022 2021 2020

Return on assets  3% 2% 2%

Return on equity  29% 17% 19%

Capital Adequacy   17% 22% 25%
Gearing 6% 5% 4%
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Earnings per share (in bututs)
Dividend per share (in bututs) 

The Bank 2022 2021 2020

Liquidity  40% 62% 64%

Non performing loan ratio  0.7% 0.8% 1.0%

Earnings per share (in bututs)  123 75 52 

Dividend per share (total in bututs)  75 55 40 

Loans to Deposit ratio 49% 26% 22%
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Financial Highlights
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On behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Trust Bank, I would like to welcome you 
to our 2022 Annual General Meeting. 
We have held our meetings virtually 
for the past two years due to COVID-19 
restrictions. This year, as well as returning 
to a physical location, we have modified 
the AGM process a little to retain a virtual 
element to help maximize shareholder 
involvement and engagement, 
particularly for those who do not reside 
permanently in The Gambia.
Your Bank celebrated the 25-year history 
of the business in October 2022, a 
milestone that prompted us to reflect on 
who we are and what we have achieved, 
even as we embraced new opportunities. 
The COVID-19 pandemic put our business 
and all of us to the test. Since then, 
in addition to COVID-19, the conflict 
between Russia and Ukraine is having a 
terrible impact on millions, including our 
own people. Through the challenge of 
COVID-19 and now, through this current 
conflict, I have seen the amazing way that 
the Board, Management and staff care 
for each other and the business. It makes 
me immensely proud. Our resilience and 
adaptability are our greatest strengths. 
Ladies and gentlemen, I am delighted 
that the 2022 to 2026 strategic plan 
that we approved in December 2021 
has enabled us to make a remarkable 
turnaround, ranking us as one of the 
best-performing Banks for the 2022 
financial year in the country.

Global Economic Environment
Global economic growth is decelerating, 
and the outlook remains uncertain. The 
ongoing war in Ukraine, aggressive 
monetary policy tightening response to 
the rising inflation, and tight financial 
conditions are dragging global growth. 
As a result, the International Monetary 
Fund (IMF) in its October 2022 World 
Economic Outlook (WEO) forecast 
global growth to slow from 6.0 
percent in 2021 to 3.2 percent in 
2022 and 2.7 percent in 2023. 
While Global inflation remains 
elevated there are signs that price 
pressures may be moderating with 
the IMF forecasting global inflation 
to decelerate to 6.5 percent in 
2023 from 8.8 percent in 2022. 
On the domestic front, the prospects 
of the Gambian economy remain 
optimistic, despite global challenges. 
The Central Bank Composite Index 
of Economic Activity (CIEA) indicated 
that economic activity improved in the 
third quarter 2023, and the output gap 
is positive. Although the rising cost of 
living continued to hold back household 

investment outflow, putting pressure on 
the Dalasi. The local unit has, however, 
held up relatively well in the forex market 
so far in 2023, appreciating roughly 3 
percent against the greenback as of the 
end of April 2023. 
Inflation reached a record-high level of 
13.2 percent (year-on- year) in October 
2022. The Central Bank of The Gambia 
increased further its policy rate to 13 
percent in December 2022 to tackle 
inflationary pressures. 
Yields on government securities continue 
to rise in response to the tight monetary 
policy stance of the Bank. The weighted 
average interest rate on treasury bills 
increased from 1.25 percent in November 
2021 to 8.71 percent in November 2022. 
The banking system continues to be 
stable with robust financial soundness 
indicators. The risk-weighted capital 
adequacy ratio (CAR) stood at 26.3 
percent in September 2022, higher 
than the regulatory requirement of 10 
percent. The liquidity ratio stood at 
63.4 percent, also above the regulatory 
requirement of 30 percent. The industry’s 
non-performing loan ratio remains low 
at 4.2 percent, and banks maintained an 
adequate level of provisioning. 
Growth in monetary aggregates 
continues to decelerate. Annual money 
supply growth slowed to 12.2 percent 
in September 2022 relative to 20.9 
percent in the same period a year ago, 
owing to the contraction in the net 
foreign assets (NFA) of both the Central 
Bank and commercial banks. Reserve 
money contracted by 6.0 percent in 
September 2022, compared to a growth 
of 24.0 percent a year ago. Despite the 
contraction, reserve money is still above 
the end-September target. 

Rebranding 
Ladies and gentlemen, in October 
2022, your bank migrated from Trust 
Bank Limited to Trust Bank PLC. 
Apart from the change in the name 
and legal status of the company, we 
needed a new logo that would fit 
within our new brand architecture 
while also existing as its own unique 
entity to ensure that our brand 
remains trusted and relevant to all 
stakeholders.
The new logo has been designed to 
visually demonstrate our Gambian 

heritage and the sophisticated 
nature of the Bank. We have moved 

�Mr. Franklin Hayford

Statement from the Chairperson

consumption in 2022, public and private 
construction, agricultural output, and 
tourism contributed to the growth 
resilience of the economy. As a result, the 
Bank forecasted the economy to grow 
by 5.2 percent in 2022, unchanged from 
the August forecast. Risks to the growth 
outlook, however, remain significant, 
including rising inflation expectations, 
vulnerable external balances and 
the uncertain global economic and 
geopolitical environment. 

Operating environment
The Gambian economy is facing multiple 
exogenous shocks, including the 
repercussions of the war in Ukraine, 
the lingering impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic, and the devastating flooding 
that struck our country. Growth 
projections in 2022 have been revised 
downward from 5.6 percent to 4.5 
percent. 
These shocks are generating foreign 
exchange shortages and weighing on 
forex reserves. As a result, the Gambian 
Dalasi weakened against the US dollar 
by some 17 percent to close 2022 at 
GMD61.95/USD as the spillovers from 
the Russia-Ukraine war caused net-
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away from the navy and gold coloured 
parallelogram-shaped logo to a Baobab 
tree with a rising sun in the background. 
The new logo is more symbolic and 
accurately depicts our heritage as well 
as the expectations of what the Trust 
Bank brand stands for. Furthermore, it 
symbolizes the sustainable growth we 
have set out to achieve.
As some of you may already know, 
the Central Bank of the Gambia is at 
a very advanced stage in setting up a 
capital market. As part of our rebranding 
strategy, your bank is well placed to 
meet both the legal and regulatory 
requirements for listing on the upcoming 
capital market of the Gambia. 
Our focus and priority continues to be 
providing a high-quality service that our 
customers can rely on for their banking 
needs. However, there will be changes 
in our identity system, our domain name, 
website, and social media profiles. 
We are empowered by these changes 
because we believe they will put us in 
a position to be more competitive and 
offer more capabilities to our customers. 
We will continue to grow and expand 
our services, accomplish local and 
international objectives, and foster and 
develop new client relationships. 

The Group’s performance 
Our performance in 2022 has 
demonstrated huge progress in the 
actions we believe will drive sustainable 
growth in financial returns. We have 
delivered growth in profitability despite 
challenging market conditions. 
●	 Interest income grew by 25.8 percent 

to GMD666. 3 million driven by 
growth in lending as well as growth in 
investment in government securities.

●	 Profit before tax went up by 93.03 
percent to GMD346.4 million; 

●	 Total assets increased to GMD10.487 
billion, whilst customer deposits at 
GMD9.2 billion grew by 3.7 percent. 

●	 Total operating costs excluding 
impairment increased by 13.9 percent 
to GMD568.2 million in line with 
inflation and general increase in the 
prices of goods and services.

●	 Net Loans and advances grew by 98 
percent to GMD4.5 billion

Loan impairment was up from 
GMD179,000.00 to GMD37.3 million in 
2022. There has been no significant 
deterioration in the credit quality of the 
loan book, although stress still remains. 
The increase in impairment charges 
was largely due to the increase in the 
loan book but non-performing loan 
ratio remained low at 0.7%, a slight 
improvement from 0.8% in 2021.
Earnings per share increased by 65 
percent from 75 bututs per share in 2021 
to 124 bututs per share in 2022.

Capital adequacy ratio of the bank stood 
at 17 percent, well above the minimum 
regulatory requirement of 10 percent. 
This will provide room to support our 
customers with access to loans.
The Managing Director- Ms. Njilan 
Senghore and her Management team 
are building upon the Bank’s solid 
balance sheet, long-standing customer 
and community relationships, while 
establishing our new brand identity. 

Dividends 
The Board is recommending payment of 
a final dividend of 0.30 bututs per share, 
bringing the total dividend paid for 2022 
to 0.75 bututs per share. This represents 
an increase of 36.4% from 2021.
The Board recognizes the importance of 
dividends to shareholders, and believes 
in balancing returns with investment to 
support future growth while preserving 
good capital ratios.

Our strategy
Ladies and gentlemen, your Bank’s 5-year 
strategic plan, formulated over a year 
ago, continues to facilitate growth and 
organizational resilience. The strategic 
plan founded on digital innovations for 
service delivery, enhanced customer 
experience and increased operating 
efficiencies has resulted in a healthier 
and robust balance sheet.
2022 marked the first year of the 
implementation of our strategic plan. In 
late 2021, we embarked on a journey to 
reposition the Bank for higher returns 
and sustainable growth. On the heels of 
a challenging year, we made substantial 
changes in the business to address 
the underlying issues that negatively 
impacted our performance. Top on the 
agenda was to address the high-interest 
expenses, provide practical support to 
our customers, extend lending tenor and 
also review and realign our fees and 
charges to ensure that we are not losing 
out to our closest competitors.
The implementation was not devoid of 
challenges but thanks to the astuteness 
of our management team, we were able 
to manage all those challenges along the 
way and delivered phenomenal results. 
Today, we can all see the payoff, which 
also serves as a solid foundation for the 
next four years.

Corporate governance
 The risk governance framework is based 
on a clear understanding of various 
risks, disciplined risk assessment, and 
continuous monitoring for mitigation. The 
Board of Directors oversees all the risks 
assumed by the Bank. 
We continued to strengthen our risk 
governance structures in order to 
enhance operational controls. The Board 
closely monitors business ethics and 
conduct through the requisite governance 

committees. To inculcate the right culture, 
we shall continue to promote high 
standards of behaviour and competence 
across the firm. 
To underscore our commitment to 
good governance, we have invested 
in bolstering our compliance regime 
by rolling out updated policies and 
procedures, and acquisition and 
enhancement of customer due diligence 
applications. 
During the year, a dedicated Information 
Security Unit was formed headed by 
a Chief Information Security Officer 
(CISO). This Unit sets out processes using 
technology to continuously monitor and 
improve the Bank’s security posture while 
preventing, detecting, analyzing, and 
responding to cybersecurity incidents.
These measures, coupled with continued 
enhancement of the financial crime 
controls of the Bank, have seen us remain 
one of the best-managed Banks in the 
Gambia.

Environmental, social and governance 
Environmental, social and governance 
matters remain an area of significant 
focus for the Bank and the Board, given 
the responsibilities we have to customers, 
shareholders, communities, our own 
people and the environment. 
Apart from the rebranding, another 
objective is to build the Trust Bank 
brand around a new set of values that 
promote environmental and social 
considerations. As a result, Trust Bank will 
not support any institution or business 
whose activities are causing pollution or 
destruction of the natural environment, 
whether through accidental or deliberate 
actions or unacceptable standards of 
employment and business ethics. This 
set of values is as important to us as our 
pursuit of financial success. 

Changes to the Board 
I would like to thank my Board colleagues 
for their dedication and hard work and 
the diverse perspectives they bring to 
our discussions. I would like to extend a 
special welcome to Mr. Saloum Malang 
and Ms Haddy Sallah, both of whom 
joined the Board in 2022, and Mr. 
Abdoulie Jallow, who recently joined us 
in 2023. 
We also announced the resignation from 
the Board of Mr. Pa MaCoumba Njie and 
Mr Abdoulie Tambedou. We thank them 
both for their stellar service
I would like to acknowledge the long and 
exceptional service of Mr. Pa MaCoumba 
Njie who resigned, after nearly 25 years 
association with Trust Bank. Mr. Njie was 
the first Managing Director of the Bank. 
He retired in 2016 and continued to 
serve as non-executive Director until his 
resignation in 2022. Congratulations Mr. 
Njie and thank you for your invaluable 
service to the Bank. 
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Corporate Social Responsibility Program 
(CSR) 
Trust Bank continues to make a 
difference in our communities through 
our Corporate Social Responsibility 
Program. Our CSR programme champions 
the empowerment of our youths in 
sports and other disciplines, protecting 
and preserving our environment and 
promoting education and health.
In August 2022, the Bank responded 
directly to the plight of the victims of the 
floods that hit the country with a donation 
of D1 million to the National Disaster 
Management Agency through the Vice 
President’s office.
On another level and in marking the 
Bank’s silver jubilee, we donated medical 
supplies and drugs to major government 
hospitals across the length and breadth 
of the country including Kanifing General 
Hospital, Edward Francis Small Teaching 
Hospital (Dialysis Unit), Tanka Tanka 
Psychiatric Hospital, Bundung Maternity 
Hospital, Bansang General Hospital, 
Farafenni General Hospital, Bwiam 

General Hospital and Basse District 
Hospital. In the process, we also adopted 
the maternity wards of Bansang and 
Basse hospitals. Trust Bank spent a total 
of D1.8 million on these initiatives.
We have donated over 80 computers 
to schools and organizations of the 
less privileged across the country. With 
this donation, we hope to promote 
Information and Communications 
Technology (ICT) in our schools to prepare 
school leavers for the job market. The 
ultimate objective is to make it possible 
for more people to access, generate and 
share ideas in a world where ICT plays 
a larger role than ever before in how we 
conduct business.

Acknowledgement
Ladies and gentlemen, in 2022, we as a 
Board remained focused on supporting 
management as they operated in this 
incredibly challenging and unpredictable 
environment as well as overseeing the 
company’s achievement of our strategic 
objectives. 

Our task is to maintain the growth 
trajectory as we proceed into 2023 with a 
degree of cautious optimism. We look to 
the long-term potential of the business to 
ensure that we are making the progress 
that would make those who passed its 
stewardship onto us proud, and with a 
view to inspire the future generations 
who will take it over. 
Finally, I would like to thank Mrs. Njilan 
Senghore and her strong and capable 
leadership team for everything they 
delivered in 2022. 
On behalf of the Board, I extend my 
thanks to all of our people who have built 
the Bank into what it is today, and to all 
of our stakeholders for your continued 
support. 

Mr. Franklin Hayford
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Economic growth in 2022 is estimated to 
be at par with 2021’s level of 4.3%, driven 
by improved agriculture production 
due to a relatively good rainy season, 
increased government consumption, 
and high infrastructure spending driven 
by the preparation for the hosting of the 
Organization for the Islamic Cooperation 
(OIC) conference. 
Despite positive GDP growth, growth 
coming in below target and the growing 
inflationary pressures will see the upward 
trend in the poverty headcount, which 
the Gambia Bureau of Statistics places 
at 53.4% being maintained. Inflation in 
particular has been an issue of global 
concern and inflationary pressures 
remain elevated to date, with March 
2023 inflation placed at 14.83%. 
In 2022 both Food and non-food inflation 
were high, averaging 14.5% and 8.6%, 
respectively, mainly driven by global 
commodity market shocks, local currency 
depreciation, increased salaries of 
civil servants, and persistent structural 
bottlenecks at the port of Banjul.
The fiscal deficit widened to 4.8% of 
GDP in 2022 (a primary deficit of 2.9% of 
GDP) from 4.6% of GDP in 2021), as the 
spillover effects of the war in Ukraine 
drove down domestic revenue, along 
with increased public spending. Tax 
revenues as a percent of GDP declined, 
driven by lower taxes on goods and 
services and international trade and 
increased subsidies for fuel, fertilizer, and 
grains to address higher import prices. 

Managing Director's Review

I am delighted to present to you the 
Bank’s performance for the 2022 
financial year. Your Bank performed 
remarkably well this financial year against 
a backdrop of a challenging macro-
economic environment.
In 2022, as the Covid-19 pandemic 
began to ease, we witnessed economic 
conditions not seen in a very long time, 
the highest inflation rate in decades, 
rising interest rates, sharp increase in 
energy prices and supply chain disruption 
due to the Russia-Ukraine war which has 
had a huge impact on people’s lives. 
In light of these challenging economic 
circumstances, we focused on putting 
in place a proactive strategy to help 
households and businesses to navigate 
through and alleviate the financial 
pressures being felt by the most 
vulnerable. We leveraged on the strength 
of our balance sheet enabling us to stand 
alongside our customers and help them 
navigate these challenging economic 
times, but at the same time delivered a 
strong financial performance for Trust 
Bank and value for shareholders.
The financial year 2022 was an eventful 
year in the Banking sector wherein Banks 
had to calibrate their strategies due to 
the global synchronization of monetary 
policy to curb inflation caused by the 
expansionary stance during Covid-19 and 
geopolitical tensions. With the efforts 
we put in in terms of organizational 
transformation and reengineering, your 
Bank has progressed positively on all our 
strategic objectives.

Economic outlook
According to the World Bank, the 
economic recovery from the slow-down 
caused by COVID-19 was weaker than 
anticipated in 2022 owing primarily 
to the repercussions of the war in 
Ukraine. Inflation reached double digits 
for the first time in over two decades, 
as yearly inflation averaged 11.6% in 
2022 from 7.4% in 2021. The country’s 
external position is facing multiple 
shocks, including disruptions of 
timber and cashew exports, weaker-
than-expected tourist arrivals and 
remittance inflows, as well as a 
higher import bill largely driven by 
higher food, fuel, and freight costs. 
These shocks are generating forex 
shortages and weighing on forex 
reserves. The outlook is clouded 
by significant downside risks, 
including uncertainties about the 
war in Ukraine and the COVID-19 
pandemic.

Public debt to GDP remained unchanged 
at 83.9% of GDP in 2022 from 83.8% in 
2021. The risk of overall and external 
debt distress remains high as per the 
joint WB/IMF Debt Sustainability Analysis 
(DSA) completed in November 2022 and 
the preliminary findings of the ongoing 
DSA (started in February 2023).
Despite a difficult global environment, 
the IMF expects the Gambia’s economic 
recovery to accelerate in 2023, 
forecasting real GDP growth to come 
in at 5.6 percent in 2023 and 6.3 in 
2024. These forecasts are predicated 
on the improvement of the external 
macroeconomic environment—including 
a full recovery of the tourism sector—
and continued resilience of domestic 
activity, particularly in the construction 
and agriculture sectors. Despite the 
expected strong pressures on spending, 
including from higher debt service amid 
a rapid increase in domestic financing 
conditions and Dalasi depreciation, the 
government is determined to maintain 
fiscal discipline by anchoring the 2023 
fiscal framework on the approved 
budget. The central bank is committed to 
closely monitor inflation developments 
and further tighten the monetary policy 
stance if needed, while safeguarding the 
fragile economic recovery. It also remains 
committed to an exchange rate policy 
that ensures equilibrium between supply 
and demand on the foreign exchange 
market.

Rebranding
Since we commenced operation in 
October 1997, Trust Bank has experienced 
tremendous growth. We’ve become a 
trusted partner in corporate and retail 
banking and also a leader in providing 
banking solutions and services for our 
customers.
Our journey started with a vision to 
create the kind of company that delivers 
quality services and innovative products 
with an inspired team dedicated to 
serving our customers, environment, and 
communities at large in the most caring 
manner. 
Today, we are bigger and better-our Trust 
Bank family consists of highly trained, 
young, and talented individuals and a 
fast-growing customer base that we 
are certainly proud to serve. We have 
taken the opportunity to evolve our 
brand in order to represent and 
realign with our values, mission, and 
vision. It marks the next phase in 
our journey and a new opportunity 

to help our business to increase its 
ability to successfully participate in the 

economy.Mrs. Njilan Senghore
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Our new logo and visual identity are 
inspired by our core values and spirit of 
being a pioneer in leading our customers 
forward-not only helping them achieve 
their end business goals of financial 
success and sustainability but also 
providing them with a better Banking 
experience. 
The logo is designed in a bold and 
contemporary style. The baobab tree is 
simplified, to be consistent throughout 
all E-Banking channels, stationery, and 
social media usage. The look and feel 
of the design are modern, using our 
corporate colors of navy and gold. 

New set of Values
Our values go to the heart of our 
existence and drive everything we 
say and do. They are fundamental to 
the relationships we build with our 
colleagues, customers, clients, and other 
stakeholders. As part of the rebranding, 
we reengineered our values to reflect 
who we are and capture what we do 
when we are at our best: 
● Commitment to our communities
We are proud to invest in and contribute 
to our communities by promoting health, 
education, the environment and sports. 
We remain resolute in our quest to 
support the growth of local businesses 
and help to increase their ability to 
successfully participate in the economy.
● Integrity and honesty
We act fairly, ethically, and openly in 
all we do. We hold ourselves to the 
highest standards, reflected by our 
everyday actions and attitudes. We are 
transparent, honest, respectful, and 
ethical in all our interactions and work 
each day to earn the trust placed in 
us by our team members, customers, 
shareholders, and community.
● Service
We put our customers at the center 
of what we do. We strive to deliver 
a superior customer experience 
by building long-term, positive 
relationships with our customers and our 
communities.
● Respect 
We respect and value our customers and 
those we work with and the contribution 
they make. We treat everyone with 
dignity and professionalism. 
● Excellence 
We use our energy, skills, and resources 
to deliver the best sustainable results. 
We are relentless in our pursuit of 
excellence and innovation while staying 
true to our core values.
● Diversity 
We celebrate diversity based on gender, 
age, ethnicity, physical abilities, religion, 
and race. We strive to create a culture 
where all stakeholders feel welcomed 

and valued.
These values reflect our entrepreneurial 
spirit; our relentless quest for better; 
and our commitment to putting people 
first. Consistent application of our 
values, across all of our activities, 
continues to build the bank, providing 
the fundamentals upon which to build 
further success.

Delivering our strategies
After a challenging 2021, we set out 
in 2022 to grow our business by 
implementing our 5-year strategic plan 
which largely focused on the following 
goals:
●	 Create capacity to invest and grow 

income;
●	 Harness technology to enhance 

our customers’ experience by 
strengthening our digital capabilities;

●	 Prudent Financial management;
●	 Long-term sustainable growth;
●	 Conduct business to the highest 

levels of ethics and integrity;
●	 Manage our risks, returns, and 

capital to create real value for our 
shareholders.

In the course of implementing our 
strategic plan, we were able to re-align 
our focus to make the business more 
customer centric. We identified People, 
Risk, Innovation and Digitalization as 
key pillars that are instrumental in 
driving our business forward. 
To realize our goal of being the market 
leader in digital banking in the Gambia, 
we continued to invest and enhance 
our digital capabilities in 2022 to boost 
customer experience and improve 
efficiency. Some of the projects we 
launched include migration from SWIFT 
MT message format to SWIFT MX 
format. This is an upgrade to V7.6.xx 
version of the SWIFT Alliance System 
which seeks to enable customers 
in the cross-border space to enjoy 
uninterrupted payment flows.
We have also embarked on replacing 
our branch network cables from CAT5 
to CAT6 model which performs better 
and can serve the future needs of the 
bank. In addition, we also replaced 
the D-Link Switches in use to a more 
advanced Sisqo Cisco Switches both 
in terms of performance and reliability. 
These upgrades are critical to the level 
of service delivery that we set out to 
achieve and the overall success of the 
Bank.
As part of efforts to remain compliant 
with specific regulations enhancing 
customer trust, we set up an Information 
Security Unit headed by the Chief 
Information Security Officer (CISO)-
Mr. Nicolas Gomez. This unit hosts 
the Security Operations Centre (SOC) 
which is dedicated and organized to 

prevent, detect, assess and respond to 
cybersecurity threats and incidents. As 
far as we are compliant, we are much 
less likely to suffer from a data breach 
and the substantial costs associated 
with it.
We made strides towards streamlining 
our Corporate Banking products and 
services, improving processes such as 
credit turnaround times, tightening our 
underwriting standards to improve the 
quality of our loan books and deepening 
existing relationships. Following the 
completion of internal alignments and 
strengthening of our operational and 
risk efficiencies, your Bank is poised to 
record sustained growth in the 2023 
financial year. 
We have been focusing on the 
innovation, improvement and 
implementation of projects on our digital 
platforms such as ATM, online banking, 
mobile banking and other emerging 
technologies such as the QR Code. 
During the financial year, there is a 
substantial increase in the volume of our 
electronic Banking transactions.
In order to consolidate our gains, the 
Bank acquired five new NCR Automated 
Teller Machines (ATM). In the next 
few months, you will see more of our 
ATMs deployed in strategic locations 
particularly in our provincial branches. 
We will continue to focus on quality 
lending while maximizing cross 
selling opportunities to the Bank’s 
existing customer base and leveraging 
the Bank’s wide geographical and 
digital infrastructure network for cost 
optimization.
In August 2021, the Bank consulted 
DataPro Limited-an external 
compliance solution firm to carry out an 
independent compliance audit. The audit 
findings revealed seven deficiencies 
necessitating the need to put in place 
a comprehensive Customer Risk Rating 
and Transactional Monitoring tools. This 
recommendation was supported by 
our main corresponding Bank-Ghana 
International Bank (GHIB) following the 
testing of the Bank’s financial crime 
framework. I am pleased to announce 
that we have since acquired and fully 
deployed the RADAPRO SOLUTION.

Your Bank’s Performance 
Ladies and gentlemen, let me take you 
through the overview of our performance 
in 2022 and the way forward. The Bank 
registered growth in deposits on the 
liability side of our balance sheet and 
on-boarded quite a significant highly 
rated accounts in the corporate segment 
while on the assets side, we increased 
business and personal loans. 
During the year, we enforced higher 
standards of credit underwriting 
with enhanced credit administration 
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standards. The Bank through an efficient 
recovery team, recovered GMD8.63 
million on debts that were already 
written off the books. 
In spite of the challenging environment, 
your Bank achieved an all-time high 
profit for the year of GMD250.9 million 
with a customer deposit base of GMD9.2 
billion and gross loans and advances 
of GMD4.5 billion as at December 31st, 
2022. Please refer to the Chairman’s 
statement and the financial highlights 
in the annual report for greater details 
on the Group’s performance. We are 
encouraged by the strong performance 
we have delivered this year and remain 
optimistic about the future.
Against an uncertain economic outlook, 
the strength of our balance sheet and 
the quality of our loan book and deposit 
base allow us to continue lending 
responsibly while also helping our 
customers to navigate the challenges 
they are facing.
Our strong capital position and 
continued capital generation means that 
we are well placed to invest for growth, 
to provide the support our customers 
need as the economy recovers 
and to drive sustainable returns to 
shareholders.

Human Resources
Human resources are one of the most 
valuable assets. Our success as a 
Bank largely depends on the staff and 
their collective efforts in executing the 
mission, vision and strategic plan. Every 
employee is a vital factor for smooth 
functioning by bridging the gap between 
customer’s expectations and the 
organization’s delivery of the services. 
In 2022, we made gains from our 
organizational transformation journey 
with the objective of creating efficiency 
and effectiveness in the way we work 
and approach business opportunities. 
We are committed to providing our 
people with opportunities to develop 
their capabilities and grow their careers.
Learning and Development has assumed 
significant importance. The Bank’s 
Human Resource Department continues 
to work with the Training Committee on 
identifying the gaps in the capabilities 
of our staff and train them for qualitative 
improvement. The development of 
employees is essential for the strength 
of our Bank. 
We shall continue on the transformation 
journey to ensure that we deliver a 
more strategically aligned, efficient 
Bank through optimizing capacity and 
capability. 
In 2022, Mr. Sheikh Ndow and Mr. 
Karamo Saidykhan reached the statutory 
retirement and four others took 
voluntary retirement. We wish them a 
smooth transition to their new life and 

also pray that they enjoy many blissful 
years of retirement.

Corporate Social Responsibility 
Program
Ladies and gentlemen, your Bank 
maintains a proactive stance in being 
a socially responsible organization. 
In fulfilment of this, through our 
comprehensive corporate social 
responsibility (CSR) Program, the Bank 
regularly engages in activities that 
promote the development of our Health 
sector, Education sector, Sports sector, 
and the environment, while enhancing 
the lives of the communities around us.
In 2022, we extended support in excess 
of D4.7 million in various interventions 
including disaster relief for the victims 
of the flash flood that hit the country 
in August; donations of medical 
consumables to major hospitals across 
the length and breadth of the country; 
donation of computers to schools and 
organizations of the less privileged and 
donations towards the promotion and 
development of sports. Please refer 
to the CSR pictorials on these annual 
report for further details.
In addition to the adoption of 
Environmental, Social and Governance 
(ESG) policies in our strategic plan, we 
take pride in our efforts to conserve the 
environment by working closely with the 
National Environment Agency (NEA). 
Trust Bank cares for the community 
and welfare of the people around us. 
We have supported various community 
projects and charitable institutions 
such as the Pipeline Community blood 
donation through monetary and other 
contributions.

The year ahead 
The year 2022 has shown us the 
importance of being a disciplined Bank 
by sticking to our 5-year strategic 
plan. Against a volatile economic 
environment, we continued to 
demonstrate the strength and resilience 
of our business, delivering a strong 
financial performance while supporting 
our customers to navigate through 
difficult economic environment. To 
continue to do this, we are evolving our 
capabilities. Underpinned by the strong 
foundations of our strategy, we are 
investing in our technology and people 
so we can serve our customers in new 
ways that make their lives easier. Our 
focus now is on the opportunities the 
relationships we build offer for growth; 
for our customers, for the Bank, and for 
the economy by extension. 
Sustainable growth will come from 
building closer relationships that better 
serve our customers at every stage 
of their lives. These relationships will 
be based on insight, understanding, 
and shared goals. This will enable 

us to make a real difference to our 
customers’ lives by providing the right 
advice, products and support to unlock 
potentials. We will also strengthen our 
relationships by working with partners 
to ensure we deliver the services and 
products customers expect, when they 
want them, tailored to fit their lives. 
By getting closer to our customers, by 
offering them better service, day in, day 
out, we will create sustainable growth 
for the bank because those customers, 
over a lifetime, will recommend us to 
others and use us in more parts of their 
lives. We’ve always known relationships 
matter, and now we are doing more 
than ever before to harness them. By 
providing the support and security 
our customers, and colleagues need, 
together we can help build a more 
sustainable future for our employees, 
customers, and the Bank. 
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report and the 
financial statements of the Bank and its 
subsidiary (The Group) for the year ended 31 
December 2022. 
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 
The Directors are responsible for the 
preparation of consolidated and separate 
financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of Trust Bank, comprising the 
statements of financial position at 31 
December 2022 and the statements of 
comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and cashflows for the year then ended and 
notes to the financial statements, which 
include a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory notes, in 
accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and in the manner 
required by the Companies Act 2013 and the 
Banking Act 2009. In addition, the Directors 
are responsible for the preparation of the 
Directors' report. 
The Directors are also responsible for such 
internal controls as the Directors determine 
are necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate 
accounting records and an effective system 
of risk management. 
The Directors have made an assessment of 
the ability of the Bank and its subsidiaries 
to continue as going concerns and have no 
reason to believe that the businesses will 
not be going concerns in the year ahead. 
The Auditor is responsible for reporting on 
whether the consolidated and separate 
financial statements give a true and fair 
view in accordance with the applicable 
financial reporting framework. 
Principal Activities of the Company 
The company provides commercial banking 
services to the general public in accordance 
with the regulations of the Central Bank of 
The Gambia and the Banking Act 2009. It 
also engages in the business of local and 
international money transfer through its 
wholly owned subsidiary, Bayba Financial 
Services Ltd. 
The Bank's mission is to be the leading 
bank in The Gambia by operating a 
profitable banking institution, which 
meets the needs of all local, international, 
corporate and individual clients and returns 
excellent results to its shareholders. The 
Bank is a direct and indirect economic 
contributor with relationships with external 
stakeholders and partners, suppliers, 
government bodies and legislators. 
The Bank combines innovative products, 
quality service, responsiveness to social and 
economic issues and a team of professional 
and inspired Gambians to fulfill its mission 

of being the best bank for customers, 
shareholders and the community at large. 
Subsidiaries 
Bayba Financial Services Limited, a 
company incorporated in The Gambia 
to engage in micro finance and money 
transfer activities, is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Bank. 
Results for the Year and Dividends 
The results of the Group are as detailed in 
the accompanying financial statements. 
The Directors have recommended a final 
dividend of D0.30 per ordinary share for 
the year ended 2022. The final dividend of 
D0.30 per share together with the interim 
dividend paid of D0.45 per share, gives a 
total dividend of D0.75 for the year. 
Significant Changes in Fixed Assets 
Tangible fixed assets are as detailed in 
note 20 of the financial statements. There 
has not been any permanent diminution 
in the value of the fixed assets. However, 
in 2021 the bank revalued its freehold 
properties on an open market basis. 
The resulting surplus of D202M Million 
which is comprised of the adjustments of 
D151.2M and D52.2M as shown in note 20 
was transferred to a revaluation reserve 
account. 
Employees 
The number of employees and the costs 
associated with these employees is as 
detailed in note 9. 
Donations 
During the year the company made 
charitable donations amounting to 
D4.705M (2021: D1.478M). 
Related Party Transactions 
The expression related party transaction 
shall be understood to mean any transfer 
of resources, services or obligations 
between related parties whether 
consideration is stipulated or not. The 
Bank considers a party to be a related 
party if: 
●	 the party in question directly or 

indirectly, through subsidiaries, 
nominees, a third party or otherwise 
controls the Bank, is controlled by it or 
is under joint control; 

●	 holds an equity interest in the Bank 
that makes it possible to exercise a 
significant influence over the Bank; 

●	 exercises control over the Bank jointly 
with other parties; 

●	 is an affiliated company of the Bank; 
●	 is one of the Bank’s Directors or 

Statutory Auditors; 
●	 is one of the Bank’s key management 

personnel; 

●	  is an executive with strategic 
responsibilities of the Bank or its 
controlling company; 

●	 is a member of the immediate family of 
one of the parties listed above 

The Governance and Risk Committee is 
the committee responsible for reviewing 
related party transactions. Should a 
circumstance occur in which a committee 
member where to cease to qualify as 
independent, cease to be in office or hold 
an interest with regard to the approval of 
a transaction reviewed by the committee, 
the committee member in question shall 
be replaced with an independent Director 
designated by the Board of Directors. 
The Managing Director submits to the 
committee a report detailing any proposed 
transactions with related parties and the 
committee participates in the negotiations 
and information gathering and makes a 
recommendation to the Board for approval 
or otherwise depending on their opinion 
as to the Bank’s interest in executing the 
transaction and about the transaction’s 
suitability and substantive fairness of the 
transaction’s terms. 
During the year, no related party 
transactions arose other than remuneration 
and loans transacted for key management 
personnel as disclosed in Note 30 of the 
financial statements. 
Directors with interest in the shares of the 
Bank are as disclosed below. 
Directors and their Interest 
The Directors who held office during 
the year are as shown on page 10. The 
directors retiring by rotation in accordance 
with Article 98 of the Articles of Association 
are Mr. Franklin Hayford and Ansumana L.N 
Touray. Being eligible, Mr. Frankie Hayford 
and Ansumana L.N Touray offer themselves 
for re-election. 
The following Directors who held office 
during the year had beneficial financial 
interest in the shares of the company 
as detailed below. There have been no 
changes between the year end and the 
date of this report. 
Number of Shares held	

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

Mr. Pa Macoumba 
Njie

1,236,033 1,236,033 

Mrs. Angela  
Andrews-Njie

33,333  33,333 

Mr. Franklin Hayford 14,620  14,620 
Total 1,283,986 1,283,986
Internal Control Systems 
The Directors have overall responsibility 
for the Bank’s internal control systems 
and annually review their effectiveness, 
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including a review of financial, 
operational, compliance and risk 
management controls. 
The implementation and maintenance 
of the risk management and internal 
control systems are the responsibility 
of the Executive Directors and Heads of 
Department. The systems are designed 
to manage rather than eliminate risk of 
failure to achieve business objectives and 
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance against material misstatement 
or loss. The Directors have reviewed 
the effectiveness of the internal control 
systems, including controls related to 
financial, operational and reputational risk 
identified by the Group as at the reporting 
date and found no significant failings or 
weaknesses during this review. 
The Audit , Budget and Recovery 
Committee is the committee responsible 
for providing oversight function and 
consultative links between the External 
and Internal Auditors and the Board. They 
meet quarterly with the Internal Auditors 
and annually with the External Auditors at 
the end of each external audit to discuss 
issues arising from the Audit that require 
the attention of the Board. 
Auditor 
The Audit, Budget & Recovery Committee 
has responsibility delegated from 
the Board of Directors for making 
recommendations on the appointment, 
reappointment, removal and remuneration 
of the external auditor. DT Assocciates 
were appointed as the Auditors of the 
bank for the financial year 2022. They do 
not provide any non audit services. 
External auditors are appointed at 
the Annual General Meeting by the 
shareholders. 
Directors’ Performance Evaluation 
The performance and effectiveness of 
the Board of Directors and its committees 
are internally assessed to be satisfactory. 
In compliance with the Central Bank of 
The Gambia's Guideline 13   issued in 
January 2023 and the Bank's revised 
Corporate Governance Charter, an 
external consultant has been recruited to 
carry out an independent assessment of 
the  performance of the Directors,  Board 
structure and committees, Board meetings 
and procedures; Board management 
relations; succession planning and 
training. 
Professional Development and 
Training 
On appointment to the Board, Directors 
are provided with an induction which 
focuses on their key responsibilities, 
code of ethics, confidentiality and other 
expectations. Directors received training 
on Bank's compliance regime, conduct 
and culture. 
Conflict of Interest 
The Bank has established appropriate 

conflict authorization procedures, under 
which actual or potential conflicts are 
regularly reviewed and authorizations 
sought as appropriate. During the year, 
no such conflicts arose and no such 
authorizations were sought. 
Board Balance and Independence 
The composition of the Board of Directors 
and its Committees is regularly reviewed 
to ensure that the balance and mix 
of skills, independence, knowledge 
and experience is maintained. The 
Board considers the Chairman to be 
independent. Non� Executive 
Directors are independent as it pertains 
to the Management of the Company. The 
continuing independence and objective 
judgment of the Non-Executive Directors 
has been confirmed by the Board of 
Directors. The mix of Non-Executive 
to Executive Directors is considered 
sufficient. Out of the seven Board of 
Directors, five are Non-Executives. 
One of the ways the Board puts in checks 
and balances is by separating the roles 
and responsibilities of the Managing 
Director and the Chairman to ensure that 
no single individual has an unfettered 
power or control of the Bank’s Board of 
Directors and Executive Management. 
Code of Ethics 
The Corporate Governance Charter 
provides guidelines on ethical standards 
and values for the board members and the 
Bank’s Service Rules is used as a guide for 
the non-board members. 
The Directors confirm that: 
●	 There is a code of ethics for staff and 

this has been made available to them; 
●	 There is a code of ethics for Directors 

and there are no waivers to the code 
of ethics or the rules governing ethical 
procedures for the Board. 

Determination of and Composition of 
Directors’ Remuneration 
Remuneration and HR of members of 
the Board of Directors is determined 
each year at the Annual General Meeting 
by shareholders. Board members 
receive fixed monthly fees Board sitting 
allowances for sittings which they attend 
as well as annual bonuses. 
Executive Management's remuneration 
is determined by the Remuneration and 
HR Committee which comprises of five 
board members. The remuneration and HR 
committee is responsible for advising the 
Board on the overall remuneration policies 
to be applied within the Bank. 
Type and Duties of Outside Board and 
Management Positions 
Although the board charter or regulation 
within the jurisdiction of the country does 
not limit the number of outside board 
positions that one can hold, the following 
members held more than one position. 
The board governance committee 

does not feel that this will hamper their 
effectiveness and performance: 
♦	 Mr. Franklin Hayford is an Executive 

Director of Databank Financial Services 
Ltd. He is in addition a Director of 
Databank Securities Limited and a 
Director at Ghana Reinsurance Co. 
Ltd, He is also a Director at Insurance 
Company of Africa [Liberia], Grace 
Strategic Ventures Ltd, International 
Bank (Liberia) Ltd, Rhun Palm Consult 
Ltd. 

♦	 Mrs. Angela Andrews Njie is a 
Co-founder, Director and Company 
Secretary of West African Tours Ltd 
,She also served as Executive Board 
Member of the Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry in The Gambia. 

♦	 Mr. Saloum Malang is the current 
Managing Director of Social Security 
and Housing Finance Corporation and 
a Board member of Gambia Transport 
Service Company (GTSC), Gambia Food 
and Feed Industry (GFFI), West Africa 
Leisure Group (WALG). 

♦	 Mr. Ansumana LN Touray is currently a 
Director on Board of Gambia Transport 
Services Company Limited and Bayba 
Financial Services 

♦	 Mrs. Haddy Sallah is currently a board 
member of West African Leisure 
Group (WALG), Gambia Food and 
Feed Industries (GFFI) and the Current 
Interim Board Chair of Gam-Petroleum 
Storage Company LTD 

♦	 Mrs. Njilan Senghore sits on the Boards 
of Royal Insurance Co. Ltd, GamSwitch 
Company Limited, Bayba Financial 
services Ltd and International Bank of 
Liberia Ltd. 

♦	 Mr. Omar Mboob sits on the Board 
of Bayba Financial Services and 
Enterprise Life Assurance Company 
(Gambia) 

Qualifications, biographical information 
and ages of Directors can be found on the 
published annual report of the Group. 
Risk Management Objectives, System 
and Activities 
Risk is at the heart of the Bank’s strategy. 
The risk management objectives of 
the bank include the establishment of 
systems, processes and structures with 
a view to ensuring that risks relating 
to general banking, both locally and 
internationally are well managed. This 
involves the establishment of all relevant 
arrangements and protocols to ensure 
that the occurrence of all the associated 
risks are either eliminated or minimized as 
much as possible. 
The Risk overview on page 44 provides a 
summary of risk management within the 
Group. It highlights a brief overview of the 
Group’s Risk Management Framework, 
the potential risks and impacts arising 
from the external environment and the 
principal risks faced by the Group and key 
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mitigating actions. 
The Risk Department, which reports to the 
Board Governance and Risk Subcommittee, 
has Risk Management policy manuals 
which provide an in-depth picture of 
how risk is managed within the Group, 
detailing emerging risk, risk governance, 
risk appetite, stress testing approach and a 
full analysis of the primary risk categories 
and how risks are identified, managed, 
mitigated and monitored. 
Corporate Responsibilities and 
Compliance 
The Bank’s policy is to invest in local 
communities throughout the Country to 
help them prosper economically and build 
social cohesion. The Bank's support for 
local communities focuses on education, 
health, sports and natural disasters. A 
detailed report of the Bank’s Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives can 
be found in the Chairman’s statement. 
The Bank’s CSR activities are not merely of 
charitable nature, but they also contribute 
to its positive image, to increased 
employee and customer satisfaction as 
well as other factors that need to be taken 
into account when measuring business 
success and sustainability. 
Corporate Governance 
The Bank is committed to strong corporate 
governance practices that allocate rights 
and responsibilities among the Bank's 
shareholders, the Board and Executive 
Management to provide for effective 
oversight and management of the Bank in 
a manner that enhances shareholder value. 
The Bank's corporate governance 
principles are contained in a number of 
corporate documents, including the Bank's 
regulations, the Board Charter, the Staff 
Service Rules and other policies issued 
from time to time. 
Role of the Board 
The Bank has a board that is comprised 
of Directors with the right mix of skills 
and experience to set the Bank’s strategy, 
oversee its delivery and establish the 
Bank’s culture, values and standards. It is 
the Board’s responsibility to manage risk 
effectively, monitor financial performance 
and reporting and ensure that effective 
policies are in place. There is a formal 
schedule of matters reserved for the 
board of Directors, including approval of 
the Bank’s annual budget and business 
plan, the Bank’s strategy, acquisitions, 
disposals and capital expenditure projects 
above certain thresholds, treasury policies, 
the financial statements, the Bank’s 
dividend policy, transactions involving the 
issue or purchase of the Bank’s shares, 
borrowing powers, appointments to the 
Board, alterations to the memorandum 
and articles of association, legal actions 
brought by or against the Bank and the 
scope of delegation to Board committees, 
subsidiary boards and management 

committees. Responsibility for the 
development of policy and strategy and 
operational management is delegated to 
the Executive Directors and Management, 
which as at the date of this report includes 
two (2) Executive Directors and eight (8) 
Heads of Department. 
The company's board consists of seven 
members, five of whom are non executive 
Directors. The board meets every quarter 
to review strategic matters relating to the 
operations of the Bank. 
Board committee members are appointed 
by the Board. Each Board committee has 
its own written terms of reference, duties 
and authorities as determined by the 
Board. 
Governance and Risk Committee 
The corporate governance and Risk sub 
committee examines all compliance 
issues with both local and international 
legislation, regulations and best practices 
which impact on the bank. Its duties are 
to: 
●	 To advise the Board on Risk and Capital 

Management related issues; 
●	 To establish, review and recommend 

the Bank's risk appetite o the Board as 
well as assessing the appropriateness 
of the strategy with respect to risk 
appetites; 

●	 To review and maintain an adequate 
Risk Management Framework, 
including risk policies; 

●	 To review risk reports and monitor the 
Bank's risk exposures; 

●	 To provide oversight of risk 
management activities; 

●	 To monitor and advise on the adequacy 
of Asset and Liability Management and 
Capital Management processes; 

●	 Review the effectiveness of conflict 
of interest and related party policies, 
guidelines and procedures and report 
its findings to the Board annually; 

●	 Receive reports of, investigate, discuss 
and make recommendations in respect 
of breaches or suspected breaches 
of ethical standards and values as 
contained in the Bank’s Charter; 

●	 Review annually and recommend 
changes to the composition of the 
Board when warranted; 

●	 Review annually and recommend 
changes to the Terms of Reference for 
all Board Sub Committees; 

●	 Recommend to the Board any reports 
or activities on Corporate Governance 
that may be required or considered 
advisable; 

●	 Review reports from Management 
on governance best practice and the 
Trust Bank Board’s performance and 
practices compared to those standards; 

●	 Assess the needs of the Board and 

Board committees regularly in terms 
of frequency of meetings, meeting 
agendas, reports, information and the 
conduct of all such meetings. 

●	 Ensure that evaluations of the Board 
and Sub Committees are carried out, 
results reviewed and recommendations 
made to ensure continued 
effectiveness of the Board. 

●	 Review the Directors’ and 
Chairperson’s compensation at least 
every two years and recommend 
changes to the Board when warranted. 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦	 Mr. Pa Macoumba Njie, Chairperson, up 

to May,2022 
♦	 Mr.Saloum Malang, Chairperson, From 

June,2022 
♦	 Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou , Member, up 

to June,2022 
♦	 Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, Member 
♦	 Ms. Njilan Sengore, Member 
♦	 Mr.Omar Mboob, Member, From 

January,2022 
Audit, Budget and Recovery 
Committee 
The Committee carries out the duties set 
out below, giving full consideration to 
relevant laws and regulations and best 
practices in discharging its responsibilities: 
●	 Reviewing the Quarterly and 

Annual Financial Statements with 
Management, including major issues 
regarding accounting and audit 
principles and practices and also the 
adequacy of internal controls; 

●	 Approving the Internal Audit plans, 
monitoring and reviewing the 
effectiveness of the Bank's internal 
controls and Internal Audit function; 

●	 Recommending the appointment of 
External Auditors and overseeing the 
external audit process and resolution 
of all issues of concern raised by the 
Auditors; 

●	 In Consultation with the External 
Auditors and the Internal Audit 
Department, review the integrity of the 
Bank’s financial reporting process; 

●	 Consider the External Auditors’ 
recommendations on the quality 
and appropriateness of the Bank’s 
accounting principles as reflected in its 
financial reporting; 

●	 Meet periodically with Management 
to review the Bank’s major financial 
risk exposures and steps Management 
has taken to monitor and control such 
exposures; 

●	 Overseeing the compliance function to 
ensure adherence to applicable laws 
and operating standards including 
Anti-Money Laundering and Terrorism 
Financing regulations; 
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●	 Reviewing the adequacy and security 
of the Bank's assets and employees 
to raise concerns about any possible 
wrongdoing in all matters. 

●	 Review the Bank's annual budget and 
ensure Management's compliance 
with its implementation while also 
reviewing significant variances and 
seeking for explanations where 
necessary. 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦	 Mr. Ansumana L. N. Touray, Chairperson 
♦	 Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, Member 
♦	 Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦	 Mrs. Haddy Sallah, Member, From 

September,2022 
Strategy Committee 
This committee gives strategic direction 
for the attainment of the Group's 
corporate vision and objectives aimed at 
maximizing shareholder value through 
growth and development. Its duties are: 
●	 To integrate the outputs from the 

different activities of the Bank and 
suggest strategic priorities and specific 
objectives to follow; 

●	 To evaluate outputs, outcomes and 
impacts of the various strategies 
adopted by the Bank and make 
recommendations for improvement 
and/or change as and when necessary; 

●	 To integrate input from the industry, 
market and environment and make 
recommendations to the Board on 
proactive activities to advance the 
strategic objectives of the Bank; 

●	 To direct research and development 
and make use of the results to identify 
any gaps, opportunities, strengths and 
weaknesses and recommend changes 
to the Bank’s strategy; 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦	 Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, Chairperson 
♦	 Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦	 Mr. Pa Macoumba Njie, Member up to 

May 2022 
♦	 Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou, Member up to 

June 2022 
♦	 Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦	 Mr. Ansumana L. N. Touray, Member 
♦	 Mr.Omar Mboob, Member, From 

January 2022 
♦	 Mr.Saloum Malang, Member, From 

June 2022 
♦	 Mrs.Haddy Sallah, Member, From 

September 2022 
Remuneration/ Human Resource 
Committee 
This committee has the responsibility 
to determine the remuneration of 
Executive Management and set criteria for 

determining general staff remuneration. 
Its duties are: 
●	 To recommend to the Board a policy 

and structure for remuneration of all 
staff; 

●	 To review and approve, each year, the 
staff salaries, allowances and benefits 
in kind proposed in the budget for all 
staff; 

●	 To ensure compliance with all 
contractual terms and legal issues 
affecting all categories of staff. This 
also entails ensuring that the Bank 
is at all times in compliance with the 
Labour and other relevant Acts; 

●	 To act as Trustees of the Employee 
Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) of the 
Bank; 

●	  To examine and approve such matters 
in the field of remuneration, contract 
terms and employment matters as the 
Board may delegate from time to time. 

●	 To advise the Board on the Bank's 
planning of its building infrastructure 
projects; 

●	 To make recommendations to the 
Board on the plans and program of 
construction for building projects, 
including additions and/or alterations 
to existing buildings; 

●	 To make recommendations on the 
acquisition and disposal of freehold 
and leasehold property; 

●	 To make recommendations to the 
Board on the program for the repair 
and maintenance of the Bank's 
buildings. 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦	 Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou , Chairperson, 

up to May 2022 
♦	 Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, 

Chairperson, From June 2022 
♦	 Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦	 Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦	 Mr.Omar Mboob, Member 
♦	 Mr.Saloum Malang, Member, From 

September 2022 
Infrastructure & Information 
Technology Committee 
This committee has the responsibility to 
determine the IT Administrative issues of 
the Bank and set criteria for determining 
admin and IT issues. Its duties are: 
●	 To advise the Bank on the planning of 

its building infrastructure projects; 
●	 To approve on behalf of the Bank the 

plans and program of construction 
for building projects, including 
additions and/or alterations to existing 
buildings; 

●	 To approve on behalf of the Bank the 
acquisition and disposal of freehold 
and leasehold property 

●	 To approve, on behalf of the Bank, 
the program for the repair and 
maintenance of Bank buildings. 
In cases where a major problem 
or priority arises in respect of 
such repair and maintenance, the 
Building Committee will make 
recommendations to the Board. 

●	 To advise the Board on Information 
Technology matters and on emerging 
risks connected thereto. 

●	 The Committee is responsible for 
all information technology related 
matters; 

●	 Exercise efficient oversight on security 
concerns relating to information 
technology 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦	 Mr.Saloum Malang, Chairperson, From 

June 2022 
♦	 Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou, Chairperson, 

up to May 2022 
♦	 Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦	 Mr. Ansumana L. N. Touray, Member 
♦	 Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦	 Mr.Omar Mboob, Member, From 2022 
Going concern 
Directors has made an assessment of 
the group's ability to continue as a going 
concern and is satisfied that it has the 
resources to continue in business for 
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, 
directors are not aware of any material 
uncertainties that may cast significant 
doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. Therefore, the 
financial statements continue to be 
prepared on the going concern basis. 
Auditors 
The auditors, DT Associates, having 
indicated their willingness , will be 
proposed for re-appointment in 
accordance with section 34 2 (2c) of the 
companies Act 2013. 

By order of the Board of Directors 	

Company Secretary
Date: 28/4/23

● Reviewing the adequacy and security 
of the Bank's assets and employees 
to raise concerns about any possible 
wrongdoing in all matters. 

● Review the Bank's annual budget and 
ensure Management's compliance 
with its implementation while also 
reviewing significant variances and 
seeking for explanations where 
necessary. 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mr. Ansumana L.N. Touray, Chairperson 
♦ Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, Member 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Mrs. Haddy Sallah, Member, From 

September,2022 
Strategy Committee 
This committee gives strategic direction 
for the attainment of the Group's 
corporate vision and objectives aimed at 
maximizing shareholder value through 
growth and development. Its duties are: 
● To integrate the outputs from the 

different activities of the Bank and 
suggest strategic priorities and specific 
objectives to follow; 

● To evaluate outputs, outcomes and 
impacts of the various strategies 
adopted by the Bank and make 
recommendations for improvement 
and/or change as and when necessary; 

● To integrate input from the industry, 
market and environment and make 
recommendations to the Board on 
proactive activities to advance the 
strategic objectives of the Bank; 

● To direct research and development 
and make use of the results to identify 
any gaps, opportunities, strengths and 
weaknesses and recommend changes 
to the Bank’s strategy; 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, Chairperson 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Mr. Pa Macoumba Njie, Member up to 

May 2022 
♦ Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou, Member up to 

June 2022 
♦ Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦ Mr. Ansumana L.N. Touray, Member 
♦ Mr.Omar Mboob, Member, From 

January 2022 
♦ Mr.Saloum Malang, Member, From 

June 2022 
♦ Mrs.Haddy Sallah, Member, From 

September 2022 
Remuneration/ Human Resource 
Committee 
This committee has the responsibility 
to determine the remuneration of 
Executive Management and set criteria for 

determining general staff remuneration. 
Its duties are: 
● To recommend to the Board a policy 

and structure for remuneration of all 
staff; 

● To review and approve, each year, the 
staff salaries, allowances and benefits 
in kind proposed in the budget for all 
staff; 

● To ensure compliance with all 
contractual terms and legal issues 
affecting all categories of staff. This 
also entails ensuring that the Bank 
is at all times in compliance with the 
Labour and other relevant Acts; 

● To act as Trustees of the Employee 
Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) of the 
Bank; 

●  To examine and approve such matters 
in the field of remuneration, contract 
terms and employment matters as the 
Board may delegate from time to time. 

● To advise the Board on the Bank's 
planning of its building infrastructure 
projects; 

● To make recommendations to the 
Board on the plans and program of 
construction for building projects, 
including additions and/or alterations 
to existing buildings; 

● To make recommendations on the 
acquisition and disposal of freehold 
and leasehold property; 

● To make recommendations to the 
Board on the program for the repair 
and maintenance of the Bank's 
buildings. 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou , Chairperson, 

up to May 2022 
♦ Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, 

Chairperson, From June 2022 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦ Mr.Omar Mboob, Member 
♦ Mr.Saloum Malang, Member, From 

September 2022 
Infrastructure & Information Technology 
Committee 
This committee has the responsibility to 
determine the IT Administrative issues of 
the Bank and set criteria for determining 
admin and IT issues. Its duties are: 
● To advise the Bank on the planning of 

its building infrastructure projects; 
● To approve on behalf of the Bank the 

plans and program of construction 
for building projects, including 
additions and/or alterations to existing 
buildings; 

● To approve on behalf of the Bank the 
acquisition and disposal of freehold 
and leasehold property 

● To approve, on behalf of the Bank, 
the program for the repair and 
maintenance of Bank buildings. 
In cases where a major problem 
or priority arises in respect of 
such repair and maintenance, the 
Building Committee will make 
recommendations to the Board. 

● To advise the Board on Information 
Technology matters and on emerging 
risks connected thereto. 

● The Committee is responsible for 
all information technology related 
matters; 

● Exercise efficient oversight on security 
concerns relating to information 
technology 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mr.Saloum Malang, Chairperson, From 

June 2022 
♦ Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou, Chairperson, 

up to May 2022 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Mr. Ansumana L.N. Touray, Member 
♦ Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦ Mr.Omar Mboob, Member, From 2022 
Going concern 
Directors has made an assessment of 
the group's ability to continue as a going 
concern and is satisfied that it has the 
resources to continue in business for 
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, 
directors are not aware of any material 
uncertainties that may cast significant 
doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. Therefore, the 
financial statements continue to be 
prepared on the going concern basis. 
Auditors 
The auditors, DT Associates, having 
indicated their willingness , will be 
proposed for re-appointment in 
accordance with section 34 2 (2c) of the 
companies Act 2013. 

By order of the Board of Directors  

Company Secretary
Date: 00/00/23

Independent Auditor’s Report

Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated 
financial statements of Trust Bank and 
its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which 
comprise the consolidated statements of 
financial position as at 31 December 2022 
and statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statements 
of changes in equity and the statements 
of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial 
statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at 31 December 
2022 and its consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements 
of the Companies Act of 2013 and the 
Banking Act, 2009.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing 
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) 
together with other ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in The Gambia 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters 
that, in our professional judgement, 

were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. For 
each matter below, our description of 
how our audit addressed the matter is 
provided in that context
We have fulfilled the responsibilities 
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report, including in relation 
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit 
included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements. The results 
of our audit procedures, including the 
procedures performed to address the 
matters below, provide the basis for 
our audit opinion on the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
To the shareholders of Trust Bank Group

IFRS 9 Impairment
In assessing impairment reserve, we performed the following procedures:
We gained understanding of the Bank’s key credit processes comprising granting, 
booking, monitoring and provisioning.We read the Bank’s IFRS 9 based impairment 
provisioning policy and compared it with the requirements of IFRS 9;
We assessed the modeling techniques and methodology against the requirements of 
IFRS 9.
We checked and understood the key data sources and assumptions for data used in the 
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) models used by the Bank to determine impairment provisions. 
We examined a sample of exposures and performed procedures to evaluate the:
● Data used to determine the impairment reserve, including transactional data captured 

at loan origination, ongoing internal credit quality assessments and interfaces to the 
expected credit loss model;

● Expected credit loss model, including the models developed and approval, ongoing 
monitoring/validation, model governance and mathematical accuracy;

● We checked the appropriateness of the Bank’s staging;
● Basis for and data used to determine overlays;
● For Probability of Default (PD) used in the ECL calculations we checked the Through 

the Cycle (TTC) PDs calculation and checked the appropriateness of conversion of the 
TTC PDs to point in time (PIT) PDs;

● We checked the appropriateness of determining Exposure at Default, including the 
consideration of prepayments and repayments in the cash flows and the resultant 
arithmetical calculations;

● We checked the calculation of the Loss Given Default (LGD) used by the Bank in 
the ECL calculations, including the appropriateness of the use of collateral and the 
resultant arithmetical calculations;

As described in note three (3) to the 
financial statements, the impairment 
losses have been determined in 
accordance with IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments reserve.
● The interpretation of the requirements 

to determine impairment under 
application of IFRS 9, reflected in the 
Bank’s expected credit loss model.

● The identification of exposures with 
a significant deterioration in credit 
quality

● Assumptions used in the expected 
credit loss model such as the financial 
condition of the counterparty, 
expected future cash flows and 
forward-looking macroeconomic 
factors (e.g. unemployment rates, 
interest rates, gross domestic product 
growth, property prices).

● The need to apply additional overlays 
to reflect current or future external 
factors that are not appropriately 
captured by the expected credit loss 
model.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit MatterKey Audit Matter 
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated 
financial statements of Trust Bank and 
its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which 
comprise the consolidated statements of 
financial position as at 31 December 2022 
and statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statements 
of changes in equity and the statements 
of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial 
statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at 31 December 
2022 and its consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements 
of the Companies Act of 2013 and the 
Banking Act, 2009.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing 
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants 
Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (IESBA Code) together 
with other ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in The Gambia and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters 
that, in our professional judgement, 
were of most significance in our audit of 

the financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 
For each matter below, our description 
of how our audit addressed the matter is 
provided in that context
We have fulfilled the responsibilities 
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report, including in relation 
to these matters. 
Accordingly, our audit included the 
performance of procedures designed to 
respond to our assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial 
statements. The results of our audit 
procedures, including the procedures 
performed to address the matters below, 
provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
To the Shareholders of Trust Bank Group

IFRS 9 Impairment
In assessing impairment reserve, we performed the following procedures:
We gained understanding of the Bank’s key credit processes comprising granting, 
booking, monitoring and provisioning. We read the Bank’s IFRS 9 based impairment 
provisioning policy and compared it with the requirements of IFRS 9;
We assessed the modeling techniques and methodology against the requirements of 
IFRS 9.
We checked and understood the key data sources and assumptions for data used in the 
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) models used by the Bank to determine impairment provisions. 
We examined a sample of exposures and performed procedures to evaluate the:
●	 Data used to determine the impairment reserve, including transactional data captured 

at loan origination, ongoing internal credit quality assessments and interfaces to the 
expected credit loss model;

●	 Expected credit loss model, including the models developed and approval, ongoing 
monitoring/validation, model governance and mathematical accuracy;

●	 We checked the appropriateness of the Bank’s staging;
●	 Basis for and data used to determine overlays;
	 For Probability of Default (PD) used in the ECL calculations we checked the Through 

the Cycle (TTC) PDs calculation and checked the appropriateness of conversion of the 
TTC PDs to point in time (PIT) PDs;

●	 We checked the appropriateness of determining Exposure at Default, including the 
consideration of prepayments and repayments in the cash flows and the resultant 
arithmetical calculations;

●	 We checked the calculation of the Loss Given Default (LGD) used by the Bank in 
the ECL calculations, including the appropriateness of the use of collateral and the 
resultant arithmetical calculations;

As described in note three (3) to the 
financial statements, the impairment 
losses have been determined in 
accordance with IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments reserve.
●	 The interpretation of the requirements 

to determine impairment under 
application of IFRS 9, reflected in the 
Bank’s expected credit loss model.

●	 The identification of exposures with 
a significant deterioration in credit 
quality

●	 Assumptions used in the expected 
credit loss model such as the financial 
condition of the counterparty, 
expected future cash flows and 
forward-looking macroeconomic 
factors (e.g. unemployment rates, 
interest rates, gross domestic product 
growth, property prices).

●	 The need to apply additional overlays 
to reflect current or future external 
factors that are not appropriately 
captured by the expected credit loss 
model.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit MatterKey Audit Matter 
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●	 For forward looking assumptions used by the Bank’s management in its ECL 
calculations, we held discussions with management and corroborated the 
assumptions using publicly available information;

●	 We checked the completeness of loans and advances, off balance sheet items, 
investment securities, placements and other financial assets included in the ECL 
calculations;

●	 Other key modeling assumptions adopted by the Bank; and
	 We then challenged the appropriateness of the models and management assumptions 

included in the ECL calculations.
We also performed procedures to ensure the competence, objectivity and independence 
of the Bank’s consultant.
We involved our credit specialists in areas that required specific expertise (i.e. data 
reliability and the expected credit loss model).
We checked the appropriateness of the opening balance adjustments and assessed the 
accuracy of the disclosures in the financial statements. 
We found that the assumptions used by management were comparable with historical 
performance and have been assessed as reasonable. We considered the disclosure of 
loan impairment to be appropriate and adequate.
We further assessed also as appropriate the classifications of the Bank’s loans and 
advances in accordance with Central Bank of The Gambia, prudential guidelines and 
the transfer of any excess provision over the IFRS computed provisions to the regulatory 
credit risk reserve.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit MatterKey Audit Matter 

Other Information
The directors are responsible for the 
other information. The other information 
comprises the Chairman’s Statement, 
Directors’ Report, Audit Committee’s 
Report, Corporate Governance report,  
Internal Control and Risk Management 
systems report. The other information 
does not include the financial statements 
and our report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements 
does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the 
financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 
Based on the work we have performed 
on the other information that we obtained 
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, 
if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the directors 
for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
The directors are responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of 
the Companies Act 2013, and for such 
internal control as the directors determine 

is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, 
the directors are responsible for 
assessing the Group’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the directors 
either intend to liquidate the Group or 
to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with 
ISAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

● 	 Identify and assess the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

● 	 The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

● 	 Obtain an understanding of internal 
control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group’s internal control. 

● 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by the directors. 

● 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of 
the directors’ use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are 
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inadequate, to modify our opinion.  
Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause 
the Group to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

● 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the 
consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether 
the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged 
with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during 
our audit.
From the matters communicated with 
those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the 
financial statements of the current year 
and are therefore the key audit matters.
We also provide those charged with 
governance a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 
We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
benefits derivable by the public from such 
communication. 
The engagement partner on the audit 
resulting in this independent auditor’s 
report is Aji Penda Sankareh.
DT Associates
Chartered Accountants 
Registered Auditors

Date: 28/4/2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

Notes D’000 D’000 D’000 D’000

Interest and similar income 5 666,311 529,807 652,133 525,124
Interest and similar expense 5 & 19 (46,798) (84,130) (45,594) (83,553)

Net Interest Income 619,513 445,677 606,539 441,571 

Fees and commission income 6 212,454 153,470 207,945 127,777 
Fees and commission expense 6 (12,501) (8,104) (12,501) (8,104)

Net fee and commission income 199,953 145,366 195,444 119,673 

Net trading income 7 87,278 57,319 62,395 57,319 
Other operating income 8 45,183 29,881 44,258 29,397 

Operating income 951,927 678,243 908,636 647,960 

Net impairment loss on financial asset 16 (37,302) (179) (37,119) (880)
Personnel expenses 9 (253,597) (207,804) (232,937) (191,569)
Depreciation and amortization 20 (74,570) (73,795) (70,511) (69,554)
Depreciation of Right-of-Use 19 (1,082) (1,364) (1,082) (1,364)
Other expenses 10 (238,969) (215,651) (224,426) (199,246)

(605,520) (498,793) (566,075) (462,613)

Profit before income tax 346,407 179,450 342,561 185,347 
Income tax expense 11 (98,159) (36,028) (96,998) (35,714)

Profit for the year 248,248 143,422 245,563 149,633

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: - - - - 
Net gain on fair value equity instrument at FVOCI 18a 2,644 28,468 6,881 50,844 
Revaluation reserve 20a - 202,592 - 202,592 
Other comprehensive income for the year 2,644 231,060 6,881 253,436 

Total comprehensive income for the year 250,892 374,482 252,444 403,069 

Profit attributable to:
Controlling equity holders of the Bank/Group 248,248 153,155 245,563 149,633 
Non-controlling interest - (9,733) - - 

Profit for the year 248,248 143,422 245,563 149,633 

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Controlling equity holders of the Bank/Group 250,892 153,155 245,563 149,633 
Non controlling interest - (9,733) - - 

Total comprehensive income for the year 250,892 143,422 245,563 149,633 

Basic/diluted earnings per share (Bututs) 12 124 75 123 75

For the year ended 31 December 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

For the year ended 31 December 2022

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

Notes D’000 D’000 D’000 D’000

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 14 2,817,104        3,564,187  2,801,255        3,514,355 
Financial assets at amortised cost 15 2,023,784 3,009,963  2,005,034 3,009,963 
Loans and advances to customers 16 4,537,463 2,296,767 4,468,270 2,271,351 
Investment in subsidiary 17 -   - 75,113 55,876 
Investment in other equity securities 18    119,349 116,705 119,349 116,705 
Property, plant and equipment 20a 820,539 794,464 807,154 782,077 
 Right-of-Use Assets 19 4,145     5,227 4,145 5,227 
Intangible assets 20b 46,440   62,171 42,583 57,600 
Deferred tax 21 11,553   16,874 11,553   16,874 
Other assets 22 106,991 274,233 84,316 231,760 

TOTAL ASSETS 10,487,368      10,140,591 10,418,772 10,061,788 

LIABILITIES
Deposits from Banks 23 4,015   26,984 4,015   26,984 
Deposits from Customers 24 9,176,477        8,847,011  9,120,509        8,807,225 
Current tax 11 5,559     4,268        5,779     4,102 
Employee benefit obligations 1,252 -   1,252 -   
Finance Lease Liabiliies 19       3,441     3,099        3,441     3,099 
Other liabilities 25    104,170 167,718      89,904 128,950 

Total liabilities 9,294,914        9,049,080  9,224,900 8,970,360 

EQUITY
Stated capital 26 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 
Income surplus 26    215,109 153,644    179,376 120,982 
Statutory reserves 26    332,688 295,854    332,688 295,854 
Credit Risk reserve 26     -   -      10,538   10,203 
Revaluation reserve 26    385,401 385,401    385,401 385,401 
Equity revaluation reserve 26 59,256   56,612 85,869 78,988 

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Group 1,192,454        1,091,511  1,193,872        1,091,428 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 10,487,368 10,140,591 10,418,772 10,061,788

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 28/4/2023, and were signed on its behalf by: 

Chairperson Managing Director    

Director Secretary

● Reviewing the adequacy and security 
of the Bank's assets and employees 
to raise concerns about any possible 
wrongdoing in all matters. 

● Review the Bank's annual budget and 
ensure Management's compliance 
with its implementation while also 
reviewing significant variances and 
seeking for explanations where 
necessary. 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mr. Ansumana L.N. Touray, Chairperson 
♦ Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, Member 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Mrs. Haddy Sallah, Member, From 

September,2022 
Strategy Committee 
This committee gives strategic direction 
for the attainment of the Group's 
corporate vision and objectives aimed at 
maximizing shareholder value through 
growth and development. Its duties are: 
● To integrate the outputs from the 

different activities of the Bank and 
suggest strategic priorities and specific 
objectives to follow; 

● To evaluate outputs, outcomes and 
impacts of the various strategies 
adopted by the Bank and make 
recommendations for improvement 
and/or change as and when necessary; 

● To integrate input from the industry, 
market and environment and make 
recommendations to the Board on 
proactive activities to advance the 
strategic objectives of the Bank; 

● To direct research and development 
and make use of the results to identify 
any gaps, opportunities, strengths and 
weaknesses and recommend changes 
to the Bank’s strategy; 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, Chairperson 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Mr. Pa Macoumba Njie, Member up to 

May 2022 
♦ Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou, Member up to 

June 2022 
♦ Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦ Mr. Ansumana L.N. Touray, Member 
♦ Mr.Omar Mboob, Member, From 

January 2022 
♦ Mr.Saloum Malang, Member, From 

June 2022 
♦ Mrs.Haddy Sallah, Member, From 

September 2022 
Remuneration/ Human Resource 
Committee 
This committee has the responsibility 
to determine the remuneration of 
Executive Management and set criteria for 

determining general staff remuneration. 
Its duties are: 
● To recommend to the Board a policy 

and structure for remuneration of all 
staff; 

● To review and approve, each year, the 
staff salaries, allowances and benefits 
in kind proposed in the budget for all 
staff; 

● To ensure compliance with all 
contractual terms and legal issues 
affecting all categories of staff. This 
also entails ensuring that the Bank 
is at all times in compliance with the 
Labour and other relevant Acts; 

● To act as Trustees of the Employee 
Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) of the 
Bank; 

●  To examine and approve such matters 
in the field of remuneration, contract 
terms and employment matters as the 
Board may delegate from time to time. 

● To advise the Board on the Bank's 
planning of its building infrastructure 
projects; 

● To make recommendations to the 
Board on the plans and program of 
construction for building projects, 
including additions and/or alterations 
to existing buildings; 

● To make recommendations on the 
acquisition and disposal of freehold 
and leasehold property; 

● To make recommendations to the 
Board on the program for the repair 
and maintenance of the Bank's 
buildings. 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou , Chairperson, 

up to May 2022 
♦ Mrs. Angela Andrews-Njie, 

Chairperson, From June 2022 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦ Mr.Omar Mboob, Member 
♦ Mr.Saloum Malang, Member, From 

September 2022 
Infrastructure & Information Technology 
Committee 
This committee has the responsibility to 
determine the IT Administrative issues of 
the Bank and set criteria for determining 
admin and IT issues. Its duties are: 
● To advise the Bank on the planning of 

its building infrastructure projects; 
● To approve on behalf of the Bank the 

plans and program of construction 
for building projects, including 
additions and/or alterations to existing 
buildings; 

● To approve on behalf of the Bank the 
acquisition and disposal of freehold 
and leasehold property 

● To approve, on behalf of the Bank, 
the program for the repair and 
maintenance of Bank buildings. 
In cases where a major problem 
or priority arises in respect of 
such repair and maintenance, the 
Building Committee will make 
recommendations to the Board. 

● To advise the Board on Information 
Technology matters and on emerging 
risks connected thereto. 

● The Committee is responsible for 
all information technology related 
matters; 

● Exercise efficient oversight on security 
concerns relating to information 
technology 

The members of the committee are as 
follows: 
♦ Mr.Saloum Malang, Chairperson, From 

June 2022 
♦ Mr. Abdoulie Tambedou, Chairperson, 

up to May 2022 
♦ Mr. Franklin Hayford, Member 
♦ Mr. Ansumana L.N. Touray, Member 
♦ Ms. Njilan Senghore, Member 
♦ Mr.Omar Mboob, Member, From 2022 
Going concern 
Directors has made an assessment of 
the group's ability to continue as a going 
concern and is satisfied that it has the 
resources to continue in business for 
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, 
directors are not aware of any material 
uncertainties that may cast significant 
doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. Therefore, the 
financial statements continue to be 
prepared on the going concern basis. 
Auditors 
The auditors, DT Associates, having 
indicated their willingness , will be 
proposed for re-appointment in 
accordance with section 34 2 (2c) of the 
companies Act 2013. 

By order of the Board of Directors  

Company Secretary
Date: 00/00/23

Independent Auditor’s Report

Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated 
financial statements of Trust Bank and 
its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which 
comprise the consolidated statements of 
financial position as at 31 December 2022 
and statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statements 
of changes in equity and the statements 
of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial 
statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at 31 December 
2022 and its consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements 
of the Companies Act of 2013 and the 
Banking Act, 2009.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing 
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) 
together with other ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in The Gambia 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters 
that, in our professional judgement, 

were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. For 
each matter below, our description of 
how our audit addressed the matter is 
provided in that context
We have fulfilled the responsibilities 
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report, including in relation 
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit 
included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements. The results 
of our audit procedures, including the 
procedures performed to address the 
matters below, provide the basis for 
our audit opinion on the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
To the shareholders of Trust Bank Group

IFRS 9 Impairment
In assessing impairment reserve, we performed the following procedures:
We gained understanding of the Bank’s key credit processes comprising granting, 
booking, monitoring and provisioning.We read the Bank’s IFRS 9 based impairment 
provisioning policy and compared it with the requirements of IFRS 9;
We assessed the modeling techniques and methodology against the requirements of 
IFRS 9.
We checked and understood the key data sources and assumptions for data used in the 
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) models used by the Bank to determine impairment provisions. 
We examined a sample of exposures and performed procedures to evaluate the:
● Data used to determine the impairment reserve, including transactional data captured 

at loan origination, ongoing internal credit quality assessments and interfaces to the 
expected credit loss model;

● Expected credit loss model, including the models developed and approval, ongoing 
monitoring/validation, model governance and mathematical accuracy;

● We checked the appropriateness of the Bank’s staging;
● Basis for and data used to determine overlays;
● For Probability of Default (PD) used in the ECL calculations we checked the Through 

the Cycle (TTC) PDs calculation and checked the appropriateness of conversion of the 
TTC PDs to point in time (PIT) PDs;

● We checked the appropriateness of determining Exposure at Default, including the 
consideration of prepayments and repayments in the cash flows and the resultant 
arithmetical calculations;

● We checked the calculation of the Loss Given Default (LGD) used by the Bank in 
the ECL calculations, including the appropriateness of the use of collateral and the 
resultant arithmetical calculations;

As described in note three (3) to the 
financial statements, the impairment 
losses have been determined in 
accordance with IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments reserve.
● The interpretation of the requirements 

to determine impairment under 
application of IFRS 9, reflected in the 
Bank’s expected credit loss model.

● The identification of exposures with 
a significant deterioration in credit 
quality

● Assumptions used in the expected 
credit loss model such as the financial 
condition of the counterparty, 
expected future cash flows and 
forward-looking macroeconomic 
factors (e.g. unemployment rates, 
interest rates, gross domestic product 
growth, property prices).

● The need to apply additional overlays 
to reflect current or future external 
factors that are not appropriately 
captured by the expected credit loss 
model.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit MatterKey Audit Matter 
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

 
 Stated  
capital 

 Statutory 
reserve 

 Credit risk 
reserve 

 Revaluation 
reserve 

 Equity 
Revaluation 

reserve 
 Income 
surplus 

 Total  
equity 

D’000 D’000 D’000 D’000 D’000  D’000  D’000 

At 1 January 2021 200,000 273,409 8,496 182,809 28,144 95,501 788,359 
Net income for the year - - - - - 149,633 149,633 
Transfer from credit risk reserve - - 1,707 - - (1,707) - 
Transfer to statutory reserve - 22,445 - - - (22,445) - 
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - - - 
Revaluation on Equity investment - - - - 50,844 - 50,844 
Dividend paid to equity holders - (100,000) (100,000)
Revaluation on PPE - - - 202,592 - - 202,592 

Balance At 31 December 2021 200,000 295,854 10,203 385,401 78,988 120,982 1,091,428 

Net income for the year - - - - - 245,563 245,563 
Transfer from credit risk reserve - - 335 - - (335) - 
Transfer to statutory reserve - 36,834 - - - (36,834) - 
Dividend paid to equity holders - - - - - (150,000) (150,000)
Revaluation on Equity investment - - - - 6,881 - 6,881 

At 31 December 2022 200,000 332,688 10,538 385,401 85,869 179,376 1,193,872 

 
 Stated  
capital 

 Statutory 
reserve 

 Revaluation 
reserve 

 Equity 
Revaluation 

reserve 
 Income 
surplus 

 Total  
equity 

D’000 D’000 D’000 D’000  D’000  D’000 

At 1 January 2021 200,000 274,235 182,809 28,144 131,807 816,995 
Net income for the year - - - - 143,422 143,422 
Transfer from credit risk reserve - - - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve - 21,619 - - (21,619) -
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - - 
Dividend paid/returned to equity holders - - - - (99,966) (99,966)
Revaluation on Equity investment - - - 28,468 - 28,468 
Post acquisition NCI - - - - - 
Revaluation on PPE 202,592 202,592 

At 31 December 2021 200,000 295,854 385,401 56,612 153,644 1,091,511 

Net income for the year - - - - 248,248 248,248 
Transfer to statutory reserve - 36,834 - - (36,834) - 
Dividend paid/returned to equity holders - - - - (149,949) (149,949)
Revaluation on Equity investment - - - 2,644 - 2,644 

At 31 December 2022 200,000 332,688 385,401 59,256 215,109 1,192,454

The Bank

The Group

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Cashflow

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

Notes D’000 D’000 D’000 D’000

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year before taxes 346,407 179,450 342,561 185,347 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before taxes to net cash 
provided by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization 19,20 75,652 75,159 71,593 70,918 
  Net impairment loss on financial assets 16 37,302 179 37,119 880 
  Net interest income (619,513) (445,677) (606,539) (441,571)
  Profit on sale of assets (839) (3,364) (839) (3,364)
  Fair value Gain on subsidiary - - - 22,376 
  Fixed assets written off 4,195 6,478 4,195 628 

(156,796) (187,775) (151,910) (164,786)

Changes in trading assets 986,179 84,624 1,004,929 58,011 
Changes in loans and advances to customers (2,277,998) (571,198) (2,234,038) (586,984)
Changes in other assets 167,242 41,320 147,444 58,232 
Changes in deposits from banks (22,969) (20,317) (22,969) (20,317)
Changes in deposits from customers 329,466 1,115,414 313,284 1,098,454 
Changes in other liabilities and provisions (62,296) (70,864) (37,794) (76,353)

(1,037,172) 391,204 (981,054) 366,257 
Interest and dividends received 666,311 529,807 652,133 525,124 
Interest paid (46,456) (83,822) (45,252) (83,245)
Income tax paid (91,547) (58,477) (90,000) (55,142)

Net cash used in operating activities (508,864) 778,712 (464,173) 752,994 

CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
changes of investment securities - (9,732) (15,000) (10,318)

Investment written-down - (1,597) - (1,597)
Lease Payment 19 - - - - 
addition of ROU - - - - 

Purchase of property and equipment 20 (84,360) (36,375) (80,017) (31,454)
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment 1,631 10,566 1,631 10,015 
Purchase of intangible assets 20 (5,541) (23,273) (5,541) (18,526)

Net cash used in investing activities (88,270) (60,411) (98,927) (51,880)

CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (149,949) (99,966) (150,000) (100,000)

Net cash used in investing activities (149,949) (99,966) (150,000) (100,000

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (747,083) 618,335 (713,100) 601,114 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,564,187 2,945,852 3,514,355 2,913,241 
Effects of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held - - - - 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 2,817,104 3,564,187 2,801,255 3,514,355
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1  Reporting entity
Trust Bank PLC (“the Bank”) was 
established in July 1997 and is domiciled 
in The Gambia. The address of the Bank's 
registered office is: 3-4 ECOWAS Avenue, 
Banjul, The Gambia.
The principal activities of the Bank are as 
follows:
●	 receiving deposits;
●	 provision of loans;
●	 system of payments and clearing;
●	 dealing in financial instruments of the 

money market in the Gambia and in 
foreign currencies exchange services;

●	 managing clients’ receivables and 
securities on clients’ accounts 
including consulting service (portfolio 
management);

●	 providing banking information;
●	 performing mortgage activities;
Operating income was mainly generated 
from the provision of banking services 
in The Gambia. The Bank considers that 
its products and services arise from one 
segment of business - the provision of 
banking and related services. 
The Bank’s shareholders as a percentage 
of subscribed registered capital is as 
follows:

2022 2021

Social Security & Housing 
Finance Corporation

36.98% 36.98%

Databank    22.12% 22.12%

Others 40.90% 40.90%

The Bank’s ordinary shares are publicly 
traded on the Ghana Stock Exchange. 
The Bank performs its activities in the 
Gambia through its 18 branches as 
follows:
●	 Banjul	 ●	Basse
●	 Bakau	 ●	Soma
●	 Westfield	 ●	Bakoteh
●	 Kololi	 ●	Lamin
●	 Bundung	 ●	Barra
●	 Yundum	 ●	Latrikunda
●	 Brikama	 ●	Serrekunda Saho kunda
●	 Farafenni	 ●	Serrekunda Market
●	 Sinchu	 ●	Brusubi

The consolidated financial statements of 
the Group as at and for the year ended 
31st December, 2022 comprise the Bank 
and its subsidiary (together referred to 

as the ''Group"). The Group primarily is 
involved in Corporate and Retail Banking. 
It also engages in local and international 
money transfers through its subsidiary.

2  Basis of preparation

2.1  Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)  
issued by International Accounting 
standards board (IASB) and current 
interpretations issued by the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee (“IFRIC”) . 
Additional information required under the 
Companies Act (2013) and the Banking 
Act (2009) have been included, where 
appropriate.
The financial statements were approved 
by the Board of Directors on 28th April 
2023.

2.2  Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis 
except for the following:
●	 financial instruments at fair value 

through profit or loss are measured at 
fair value;

●	 financial instruments held fair value 
through other comprehensive income 
are measured at fair value;

●	 Non current assets whose markets 
values can be reliably measured at 
reporting dates.

2.3  Functional and presentation 
currency
The financial statements are presented 
in Dalasi currency which represents the 
functional currency of the Bank, being the 
currency of the economic environment in 
which the Bank operates. The financial 
statements are rounded to the nearest 
thousand.

2.4  Use of estimates and 
judgments
The presentation of financial statements 
in conformity with IFRS requires the 
preparation of estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities as of 
the date of the financial statements and 
their reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those 

estimates and future changes in the 
economic conditions, business strategies, 
regulatory requirements, accounting rules 
or/and other factors could subsequently 
result in a change in estimates that 
could have a material impact on the 
reported financial position and results of 
operations. The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects 
only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision 
affects both current and future periods.
The following are the critical judgments 
that the directors have made in the 
process of applying the Group’s 
accounting policies and that have the 
most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in financial statements.
●	 Business model assessment: 
Classification and measurement of 
financial assets depends on the results 
of the SPPI and the business model test 
(as shown in the financial assets sections 
of note 16). The Group determines the 
business model at a level that reflects 
how groups of financial assets are 
managed together to achieve a particular 
business objective. This assessment 
includes judgment reflecting all relevant 
evidence including how the performance 
of the assets is evaluated and their 
performance measured, the risks that 
affect the performance of the assets and 
how these are managed and how the 
managers of the assets are compensated.
●	 Significant increase of credit risk: 
Expected Credit Loss ( ECL) are measured 
as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL 
for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL assets 
for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset 
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk 
has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what 
constitutes a significant increase in credit 
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk 
of an asset has significantly increased the 
Group takes into account qualitative and 
quantitative reasonable and supportable 
forward looking information.
●	 Establishing groups of assets with 
similar credit risk characteristics: When 
ECLs are measured on a collective basis, 
the financial instruments are grouped on 
the basis of shared risk characteristics 
of the characterics considered in this 
judgement. The Group monitors the 
appropriateness of the credit risk 
characteristics on an ongoing basis to 
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assess whether they continue to be similar. 
This is required in order to ensure that 
should credit risk characteristics change 
there is appropriate re-segmentation 
of the assets. This may result in new 
portfolios being created or assets moving 
to an existing portfolio that better reflects 
the similar credit risk characteristics of 
that group of assets. Re-segmentation 
of portfolios and movement between 
portfolios is more common when there 
is a significant increase in credit risk (or 
when that significant increase reverses) 
and so assets move from 12-month to 
lifetime ECLs, or vice versa, but it can also 
occur within portfolios that continue to be 
measured on the same basis of 12-month 
or lifetime ECLs but the amount of ECL 
changes because the credit risk of the 
portfolios differ.
●	 Models and assumptions used: The 
Group uses various assumptions eg GDP 
growth , interest rate movements etc in 
measuring fair value of financial assets as 
well as in estimating ECL. Judgement is 
applied in identifying the most appropriate 
model for each type of asset, as well as for 
determining the assumptions used in these 
models, including assumptions that relate 
to key drivers of credit risk
● Provisioning for expected credit 

losses and identified contingencies 
involve many uncertainties about the 
outcome of those risks and require the 
management of the Bank to make many 
subjective judgments in estimating the 
loss amounts.

● The income taxes rules and regulations 
have recently experienced significant 
changes; there is no major historical 
precedent and interpretation judgment 
with respect to the extensive and 
complex issue affecting the banking 
sector. 

The following are key estimations that 
the directors have used in the process of 
applying the Group’s accounting policies 
and that could have effect on the amounts 
recognised in financial statements:
Establishing the number and relative 
weightings of forward-looking scenarios 
for each type of product/market and 
determining the forward looking 
information relevant to each scenario: 
When measuring ECL the Group uses 
reasonable and supportable forward 
looking information, which is based on 
assumptions for the future movement of 
different economic drivers and how these 
drivers will affect each other. 
Probability of default: PD constitutes a key 
input in measuring ECL. PD is an estimate 
of the likelihood of default over a given 
time horizon, the calculation of which 
includes historical data, assumptions and 

expectations of future conditions.  
Loss Given Default: LGD is an estimate of 
the loss arising on default. It is based on 
the difference between the contractual 
cash flows due and those that the lender 
would expect to receive, taking into 
account cash flows from collateral and 
integral credit enhancements. 
Fair value measurement and valuation 
process: In estimating the fair value of 
a financial asset or a liability, the Group 
uses market-observable data to the 
extent it is available. Where such Level 1 
inputs are not available the Group uses 
valuation models to determine the fair 
value of its financial instruments. 

3  �Significant accounting 
policies

The accounting policies set out below 
have been applied consistently to all 
the periods presented in these financial 
statements and have been applied 
consistently by Group entities.

A ● Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements 
incorporate the financial statements 
of the Bank and entities controlled by 
the Bank (its subsidiary) made up to 31 
December each year. Control is achieved 
when the Bank:
● 	has the power over the investee;
● 	is exposed, or has rights, to variable 

return from its involvement with the 
investee; and

● 	has the ability to use its power to affect 
its returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not 
it controls an investee if facts and 
circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three 
elements of control listed above.
When the Bank has less than a majority 
of the voting rights of an investee, it 
considers that it has power over the 
investee when the voting rights are 
sufficient to give it the practical ability 
to direct the relevant activities of the 
investee unilaterally. The Bank considers 
all relevant facts and circumstances in 
assessing whether or not the Bank’s 
voting rights in an investee are sufficient 
to give it power, including:
● 	the size of the Bank’s holding of 

voting rights relative to the size and 
dispersion of holdings of the other vote 
holders;

● 	potential voting rights held by the 
Bank, other vote holders or other 
parties;

● 	rights arising from other contractual 

arrangements; and
● 	any additional facts and circumstances 

that indicate that the Bank has, or 
does not have, the current ability to 
direct the relevant activities at the 
time that decisions need to be made, 
including voting patterns at previous 
shareholders’ meetings

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins 
when the Bank obtains control over the 
subsidiary and ceases when the Bank 
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, 
the results of subsidiaries acquired or 
disposed of during the year are included 
in the consolidated profit or loss account 
from the date the Bank gains control until 
the date when the Bank ceases to control 
the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of 
OCI are attributed to the owners of the 
Bank and to the non-controlling interests 
(NCI). Total comprehensive income of the 
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of 
the Bank and to the NCI even if this results 
in the NCI having a deficit balance.
Where necessary, adjustments are made 
to the financial statements of subsidiaries 
to bring the accounting policies used into 
line with the Group’s accounting policies.
All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows relating 
to transactions between the members of 
the Group are eliminated on consolidation, 
with the exception of foreign currency 
gains and losses on intragroup monetary 
items denominated in a foreign currency 
of at least one of the parties.
NCI in subsidiary are identified separately 
from the Group’s equity therein. Those 
interests of non-controlling shareholders 
that are present ownership interests 
entitling their holders to a proportionate 
share of net assets upon liquidation may 
initially be measured at fair value or at 
the NCI’s proportionate share of the fair 
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net 
assets. The choice of measurement is 
made on an acquisition-by-acquisition 
basis. Other NCI are initially measured at 
fair value. Subsequent to acquisition, the 
carrying amount of NCI is the amount of 
those interests at initial recognition plus 
the NCI’s share of subsequent changes in 
equity. 
Changes in the Group’s interests in 
subsidiaries that do not result in a loss 
of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions. The carrying amount of 
the Group’s interests and the NCI are 
adjusted to reflect the changes in their 
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any 
difference between the amount by which 
the NCI are adjusted and the fair value 
of the consideration paid or received 
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is recognised directly in equity and 
attributed to the owners of the Bank.
When the Group loses control of a 
subsidiary, the gain/loss on disposal 
recognised in profit or loss is calculated as 
the difference between (i) the aggregate 
of the fair value of the consideration 
received and the fair value of any retained 
interest and (ii) the previous carrying 
amount of the assets (including goodwill), 
less liabilities of the subsidiary and any 
NCI. All amounts previously recognised 
in OCI in relation to that subsidiary are 
accounted for as if the Group had directly 
disposed of the related assets or liabilities 
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to 
profit or loss or transferred to another 
category of equity as specified/permitted 
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of 
any investment retained in the former 
subsidiary at the date when control is 
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial 
recognition for subsequent accounting 
under IFRS 9 when applicable, the cost on 
initial recognition of an investment in an 
associate or a joint venture.

B ● Foreign currency 
(i) Foreign currency transactions
For the purpose of the consolidated 
financial statements, the results and 
financial position of each group company 
are expressed in Gambian Dalasis (GMD) 
which is the functional currency of the 
Bank, and the presentation currency for 
the consolidated financial statements.
The individual financial statements of 
each group company are presented in 
the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which it operates (its 
functional currency). In preparing the 
financial statements of the individual 
companies, transactions in currencies 
other than the entity’s functional currency 
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the 
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates 
of the transactions. At each balance sheet 
date, monetary assets and liabilities that 
are denominated in foreign currencies 
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at 
that date. Non-monetary items carried at 
fair value that are denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the rates 
prevailing at the date when the fair value 
was determined. Non-monetary items that 
are measured in terms of historical cost in 
a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences are recognised in 
profit or loss in the period in which they 
arise except for:
● 	exchange differences on transactions 

entered into to hedge certain foreign 
currency risks (see below under 
Derivative financial instruments and 
Hedge accounting); and

● 	exchange differences on monetary 
items receivable from or payable to a 
foreign operation for which settlement is 
neither planned nor likely to occur in the 
foreseeable future (therefore forming 
part of the net investment in the foreign 
operation), which are recognised initially 
in OCI and reclassified from equity 
to profit or loss on disposal or partial 
disposal of the net investment.

For the purpose of presenting 
consolidated financial statements, the 
assets and liabilities of the group’s foreign 
operations are translated at exchange 
rates prevailing on the balance sheet 
date. Income and expense items are 
translated at the average exchange rates 
for the period, unless exchange rates 
fluctuate significantly during that period, 
in which case the exchange rates at the 
date of transactions are used. Exchange 
differences arising, if any, are recognised 
in OCI and accumulated in a separate 
component of equity (attributed to NCI if 
appropriate).
On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. 
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest 
in a foreign operation, or a disposal 
involving loss of control over a subsidiary 
that includes a foreign operation or a 
partial disposal of an interest in a joint 
arrangement or an associate that includes 
a foreign operation of which the retained 
interest become a financial asset), all of 
the exchange differences accumulated in a 
separate component of equity in respect of 
that operation attributable to the owners 
of the Bank are reclassified to profit or 
loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal 
of a subsidiary that includes a foreign 
operation that does not result in the 
Group losing control over the subsidiary, 
the proportionate share of accumulated 
exchange differences are re-attributed 
to NCI and are not recognised in profit or 
loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. 
partial disposals of associates or joint 
arrangements that do not result in the 
Group losing significant influence or joint 
control), the proportionate share of the 
accumulated exchange differences is 
reclassified to profit or loss.

C ● Net Interest Income 
Interest income and expense for all 
financial instruments except for those 
classified as held for trading or those 
measured or designated as at FVTPL are 
recognised in ‘Net interest income’ as 
‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ 
in the profit or loss account using the 
effective interest method. Interest on 
financial instruments measured as at 
FVTPL is included within the fair value 

movement during the period, see ‘Net 
trading income’ and ‘Net income from 
other financial instruments at FVTPL’.
The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash flows of the financial instrument 
through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, where appropriate, a 
shorter period, to the net carrying amount 
of the financial asset or financial liability. 
The future cash flows are estimated taking 
into account all the contractual terms of 
the instrument.
The calculation of the EIR includes all 
fees and points paid or received between 
parties to the contract that are incremental 
and directly attributable to the specific 
lending arrangement, transaction costs, 
and all other premiums or discounts. For 
financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs 
are recognised in profit or loss at initial 
recognition.
The interest income/ interest expense is 
calculated by applying the EIR to the gross 
carrying amount of non-credit impaired 
financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost 
of the financial asset before adjusting for 
any expected credit loss allowance), or to 
the amortised cost of financial liabilities. 
For credit-impaired financial assets the 
interest income is calculated by applying 
the EIR to the amortised cost of the 
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the 
gross carrying amount less the allowance 
for expected credit losses (ECLs)). For 
financial assets originated or purchased 
credit-impaired (POCI) the EIR reflects the 
ECLs in determining the future cash flows 
expected to be received from the financial 
asset.
Interest income and expense in the 
Group’s consolidated statement of profit 
or loss also includes the effective portion 
of fair value changes of derivatives 
designated as hedging instruments in cash 
flow hedges of interest rate risk. For fair 
value hedges of interest rate risk interest 
income and expense, the effective portion 
of fair value changes of the designated 
derivatives as well as the fair value 
changes of the designated risk of the 
hedged item are also included in interest 
income and expense.

D ● Fees and commissions income/
expense 
Fee and commission income and expense 
include fees other than those that are 
an integral part of EIR (see above). The 
fees included in this part of the Group’s 
consolidated statement of profit or loss 
include among other things fees charged 
for servicing a loan, non-utilisation fees 
relating to loan commitments when it is 
unlikely that these will result in a specific 
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lending arrangement and loan syndication 
fees.
Fee and commission expenses with 
regards to services are accounted for as 
the services are received. 

E ● Net trading income
Net trading income comprises gains 
less losses related to trading assets 
and liabilities, and includes all realized 
and unrealized fair value changes, 
interest, dividends and foreign exchange 
differences.

F ● Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current 
and deferred tax. Income tax expense 
is recognized in the income statement 
except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised directly in equity, in which 
case, it is recognised in equity.
(i) Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable 
on the taxable income for the year, using 
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted 
at the balance sheet date, and any 
adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years.
(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided, using 
the balance sheet liability method, for 
temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary 
differences can be utilized. Deferred tax 
assets are reviewed at each reporting 
date and are reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
offset when there is a legally enforceable 
right to set off tax assets against tax 
liabilities. 
The Bank recognizes corporate income 
tax and deferred tax on the balance sheet 
as “Income tax assets” or “Income tax 
liabilities” as appropriate.
Additional income taxes that arise from the 
distribution of dividends are recognized 
at the same time as the liability to pay the 
related dividend is recognized.

G ● Financial assets
(i) Recognition
Loans and advances are recognized on the 
date that they are originated. Investments 
are recognized on trade date where the 
purchase or sale of an investment is under 
a contract whose terms require delivery 
of the investment within the timeframe 

established by the market concerned, 
and are initially measured at fair value, 
plus transaction costs, except for those 
financial assets classified as at fair value 
through profit or loss, which are initially 
measured at fair value. 
Financial assets are classified into the 
following specified categories: financial 
assets ‘at fair value through profit or 
loss’ (FVTPL), ‘financial assets at fair 
value through other comprehensive 
income(FVTOCI) , financial assets at 
amortised cost’. The classification 
depends on the banks business model 
and contractual cash flow characteristic 
of the financial assets.
(ii) Modification and derecognition of 
financial assets
A modification of a financial asset occurs 
when the contractual terms governing 
the cash flows of a financial asset are 
renegotiated or otherwise modified 
between initial recognition and maturity 
of the financial asset. A modification 
affects the amount and/or timing of the 
contractual cash flows either immediately 
or at a future date. In addition, the 
introduction or adjustment of existing 
covenants of an existing loan would 
constitute a modification even if these 
new or adjusted covenants do not yet 
affect the cash flows immediately but 
may affect the cash flows depending on 
whether the covenant is or is not met 
(e.g. a change to the increase in the 
interest rate that arises when covenants 
are breached).
The Group renegotiates loans to 
customers in financial difficulty to 
maximise collection and minimise the risk 
of default. A loan forbearance is granted 
in cases where although the borrower 
made all reasonable efforts to pay under 
the original contractual terms, there is a 
high risk of default or default has already 
happened and the borrower is expected 
to be able to meet the revised terms. 
The revised terms in most of the cases 
include an extension of the maturity of 
the loan, changes to the timing of the 
cash flows of the loan (principal and 
interest repayment), reduction in the 
amount of cash flows due (principal and 
interest forgiveness) and amendments to 
covenants. The Group has an established 
forbearance policy which applies for 
corporate and retail lending.
When a financial asset is modified the 
Group assesses whether this modification 
results in derecognition. In accordance 
with the Group’s policy a modification 
results in derecognition when it gives 
rise to substantially different terms. To 
determine if the modified terms are 
substantially different from the original 

contractual terms the Group considers the 
following:
• 	Qualitative factors, such as contractual 

cash flows after modification are no 
longer SPPI, change in currency or 
change of counterparty, the extent 
of change in interest rates, maturity, 
covenants. If these do not clearly 
indicate a substantial modification, then;

• 	A quantitative assessment is performed 
to compare the present value of the 
remaining contractual cash flows under 
the original terms with the contractual 
cash flows under the revised terms, 
both amounts discounted at the original 
effective interest. If the difference 
in present value is greater than 25% 
the Group deems the arrangement 
is substantially different leading to 
derecognition. 

In the case where the financial asset is 
derecognised the loss allowance for ECL is 
remeasured at the date of derecognition to 
determine the net carrying amount of the 
asset at that date. The difference between 
this revised carrying amount and the fair 
value of the new financial asset with the 
new terms will lead to a gain or loss on 
derecognition. The new financial asset will 
have a loss allowance measured based on 
12-month ECL except in the rare occasions 
where the new loan is considered to be 
originatedcredit impaired. This applies 
only in the case where the fair value of 
the new loan is recognised at a significant 
discount to its revised par amount because 
there remains a high risk of default which 
has not been reduced by the modification. 
The Group monitors credit risk of modified 
financial assets by evaluating qualitative 
and quantitative information, such as if the 
borrower is in past due status under the 
new terms. 
When the contractual terms of a financial 
asset are modified and the modification 
does not result in derecognition, the Group 
determines if the financial asset’s credit 
risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognition by comparing:
● 	the remaining lifetime PD estimated 

based on data at initial recognition and 
the original contractual terms; with

● 	the remaining lifetime PD at the 
reporting date based on the modified 
terms.

For financial assets modified as part 
of the Group’s forbearance policy, 
where modification did not result in 
derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects 
the Group’s ability to collect the modified 
cash flows taking into account the Group’s 
previous experience of similar forbearance 
action, as well as various behavioural 
indicators, including the borrower’s 
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payment performance against the 
modified contractual terms. If the credit 
risk remains significantly higher than what 
was expected at initial recognition the loss 
allowance will continue to be measured at 
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The loss 
allowance on forborne loans will generally 
only be measured based on 12-month ECL 
when there is evidence of the borrower’s 
improved repayment behaviour following 
modification leading to a reversal of the 
previous significant increase in credit risk.
Where a modification does not lead to 
derecognition the Group calculates the 
modification gain/loss comparing the 
gross carrying amount before and after 
the modification (excluding the ECL 
allowance). Then the Group measures 
ECL for the modified asset, where the 
expected cash flows arising from the 
modified financial asset are included in 
calculating the expected cash shortfalls 
from the original asset.
The Group derecognises a financial 
asset only when the contractual rights to 
the asset’s cash flows expire (including 
expiry arising from a modification with 
substantially different terms), or when 
the financial asset and substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset are transferred to another entity. 
If the Group neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership and continues to control the 
transferred asset, the Group recognises 
its retained interest in the asset and 
an associated liability for amounts it 
may have to pay. If the Group retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the Group continues to recognise 
the financial asset and also recognises a 
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds 
received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in 
its entirety, the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of 
the consideration received and receivable 
and the cumulative gain/loss that had 
been recognised in OCI and accumulated 
in equity is recognised in profit or loss, 
with the exception of equity investment 
designated as measured at FVTOCI, 
where the cumulative gain/loss previously 
recognised in OCI is not subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss.
On derecognition of a financial asset 
other than in its entirety (e.g. when the 
Group retains an option to repurchase 
part of a transferred asset), the Group 
allocates the previous carrying amount 
of the financial asset between the part it 
continues to recognise under continuing 
involvement, and the part it no longer 
recognises on the basis of the relative 

fair values of those parts on the date of 
the transfer. The difference between the 
carrying amount allocated to the part that 
is no longer recognised and the sum of 
the consideration received for the part 
no longer recognised and any cumulative 
gain/loss allocated to it that had been 
recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or 
loss. A cumulative gain/loss that had been 
recognised in OCI is allocated between 
the part that continues to be recognised 
and the part that is no longer recognised 
on the basis of the relative fair values of 
those parts. This does not apply for equity 
investments designated as measured 
at FVTOCI, as the cumulative gain/
loss previously recognised in OCI is not 
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
(iii)  Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are set 
off and the net amount presented in the 
balance sheet when, and only when, 
the Bank has a legal right to set off the 
amounts and intends either to settle on a 
net basis or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on 
a net basis only when permitted by the 
accounting standards, or for gains and 
losses arising from a group of similar 
transactions such as in the Bank's trading 
activity.
(iv)  Amortized cost measurement
The amortized cost of a financial asset or 
liability is the amount at which the financial 
asset or liability is measured at initial 
recognition, minus principal repayments, 
plus or minus the cumulative amortization 
using the effective interest method of any 
difference between the initial amount 
recognized and the maturity amount, 
minus any reduction for impairment. 
The effective interest method is a method 
of calculating the amortized cost of a 
financial asset and of allocating interest 
income over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts (including all fees on points paid 
or received that form an integral part of 
the effective interest rate, transaction 
costs and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life of the financial 
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter 
period.
(v) Financial assets at fair value through 
profit and loss
This category comprises two sub 
categories; financial assets classified 
as held for trading and financial assets 
designated at fair value through profit or 
loss upon initial recognition.
Investments in equity instruments are 
classified as at FVTOC, unless the Group 

designates an equity investment that is 
either held for trading or a contingent 
consideration arising from a business 
combination as at FVTPL on initial 
recognition
A financial asset is classified as held 
for trading if it is acquired or incurred 
principally for the purpose of selling 
or repurchasing in the near term or if 
part of a portfolio of identified financial 
instruments for which there is evidence of 
recent actual patterns of short term profit 
taking.
The determination of fair values of 
financial assets and financial liabilities is 
based on quoted market prices or dealer 
price quotations for financial instruments 
traded in active markets.
For all other financial instruments, fair 
value is determined by using valuation 
techniques. Valuation techniques include 
net present value techniques, the 
discounted cash flow method, comparison 
to similar instruments for which market 
observable prices exist, and valuation 
models.
(vi) Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognizes loss allowances 
for ECLs on the following financial 
instruments that are not measured at 
FVTPL:
(i) loans and advances to banks( ii)loans 
and advances to customers; and (iii) 
financial guarantee contracts issued .No 
impairment loss is recognized on equity 
investments.
With the exception of Purchased and 
Originated Credit Impaired ( POCI ) 
financial assets ECLs are required to be 
measured through a loss allowance at an 
amount equal to:
12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result 
from those default events on the financial 
instrument that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date, full 
lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result 
from all possible default events over the 
life of the financial instrument.
A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is 
required for a financial instrument if the 
credit risk on that financial instrument 
has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. For all other financial 
instruments, ECLs are measured at an 
amount equal to the 12-month ECL 
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate 
of the present value of credit losses. 
These are measured as the present value 
of the difference between the cash flows 
due to the Group under the contract and 
the cash flows that the Group expects 
to receive arising from the weighting 
of multiple future economic scenarios, 
discounted at the asset’s EIR.
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For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is 
the difference between the present value 
of the difference between the contractual 
cash flows that are due to the Group if 
the holder of the commitment draws 
down the loan and the cash flows that 
the Group expects to receive if the loan is 
drawn down; and for financial guarantee 
contracts, the ECL is the difference 
between the expected payments to 
reimburse the holder of the guaranteed 
debt instrument less any amounts that the 
Group expects to receive from the holder, 
the debtor or any other party.
The Group measures ECL on an individual 
basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios 
of loans that share similar economic risk 
characteristics. The measurement of the 
loss allowance is based on the present 
value of the asset’s expected cash 
flows using the asset’s original Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR), regardless of whether 
it is measured on an individual basis or a 
collective basis.
(vii) Credit impaired financial assets 
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when 
one or more events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows 
of the financial asset have occurred. 
Credit-impaired financial assets are 
referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of 
credit-impairment includes observable data 
about the following events: (i) significant 
financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
(ii) a breach of contract such as a default 
or past due events; (iii) the lender of the 
borrower, for economic or contractual 
reasons relating to the borrower's financial  
difficulty, having granted to the borrower 
a concession that the lender would not 
otherwise considered .
It may not be possible to identify a single 
discrete event—instead; the combined 
effect of several events may have caused 
financial assets to become credit-
impaired. The Group assesses whether 
debt reporting date. Instruments that are 
financial assets measured at amortised 
cost or Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 
(FVTOCI) are credit-impaired at each 
reporting date. The definition of default 
includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and 
a backstop if are overdue for 90 days or 
more.
(viii) Definition of default 
Critical to the determination of ECL is 
the definition of default. The definition of 
default is used in measuring the amount of 
ECL and in the determination of whether 
the loss allowance is based on 12-month 
or lifetime, as default is a component of 
the probability of default (PD) which affects 

both the measurement of ECLs and the 
identification of a significant increase in 
credit risk.
The Group considers the following as 
constituting an event of default:
●  the borrower is past due more than 90 

days on any material credit obligation to 
the Group; or

●  the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit 
obligations to the Group in full.

The definition of default is appropriately 
tailored to reflect different characteristics 
of different types of assets. Overdrafts are 
considered as being past due once the 
customer has not paid interest on his OD 
facility for more than three months or has 
been advised of a limit smaller than the 
current amount outstanding.
When assessing if the borrower is unlikely 
to pay its credit obligation, the Group 
takes into account both qualitative and 
quantitative indicators. The information 
assessed depends on the type of the 
asset, for example in corporate lending 
a qualitative indicator used is the breach 
of covenants, which is not relevant for 
retail lending. Quantitative indicators, 
such as overdue status etc. The Group 
uses a variety of sources of information to 
assess default which are either developed 
internally or obtained from external 
sources.
(ix) Significant increase in credit risk 
The Group monitors all financial assets, 
issued loan commitments and financial 
guarantee contracts that are subject to 
the impairment requirements to assess 
whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition. If there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk the Group will 
measure the loss allowance based on 
lifetime rather than 12-month ECL. The 
Group’s accounting policy is not to use the 
practical expedient that financial assets 
with ‘low’ credit risk at the reporting date 
are deemed not to have had a significant 
increase in credit risk. As a result the Group 
monitors all financial assets, issued loan 
commitments and financial guarantee 
contracts that are subject to impairment for 
significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk on 
a financial instrument has increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the 
Group compares the risk of a default 
occurring on the financial instrument 
at the reporting date based on the 
remaining maturity of the instrument with 
the risk of a default occurring that was 
anticipated for the remaining maturity 

at the current reporting date when the 
financial instrument was first recognised. 
In making this assessment, the Group 
considers both quantitative and qualitative 
information that is reasonable and 
supportable, including historical experience 
and forward-looking information that is 
available without undue cost or effort, 
based on the Group’s historical experience 
including forward-looking information.
For corporate lending, forward-looking 
information includes the future prospects 
of the industries in which the Group’s 
counterparties operate, financial analysts 
etc. , as well as consideration of various 
internal and external sources of actual and 
forecast economic information.  
For retail, lending forward looking 
information includes the same economic 
forecasts as corporate lending with 
additional forecasts of local economic 
indicators, including internally generated 
information of customer payment behavior. 
The Group allocates its counterparties 
to a relevant internal credit risk grade 
depending on their credit quality. The 
quantitative information is a primary 
indicator of significant increase in credit 
risk and is based on the change in lifetime 
(Probability of Default) PD by: comparing:
● 	the remaining lifetime PD at the 

reporting date; with
● 	the remaining lifetime PD for this point in 

time that was estimated based on facts 
and circumstances at the time of initial 
recognition of the exposure.

The PDs used are forward looking and the 
Group uses the same methodologies and 
data used to measure the loss allowance 
for ECL.
The qualitative factors that indicate 
significant increase in credit risk are 
reflected in PD models on a timely 
basis. However the Group still considers 
separately some qualitative factors 
to assess if credit risk has increased 
significantly. For corporate lending 
there is particular focus on assets that 
are included on a ‘watch list’ given an 
exposure is on a watch list once there is a 
concern that the creditworthiness of the 
specific counterparty has deteriorated. 
For retail lending the Group considers the 
expectation of forbearance and events 
such as unemployment, bankruptcy or 
death.
As a back-stop when an asset becomes 
30 days past due, the Group considers 
that a significant increase in credit risk has 
occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the 
impairment model, i.e. the loss allowance 
is measured as the lifetime ECL.
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(x) Write‑off
Loans and debt securities are written 
off when the Group has no reasonable 
expectations of recovering the financial 
asset (either in its entirety or a portion 
of it). This is the case when the Group 
determines that the borrower does not 
have assets or sources of income that could 
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the 
amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off 
constitutes a derecognition event. The 
Group may apply enforcement activities 
to financial assets written off. Recoveries 
resulting from the Group’s enforcement 
activities will result in impairment gains. 
(xi) Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments that are issued 
are classified as either financial liabilities or 
as equity in accordance with the substance 
of the contractual arrangement.
A financial liability is a contractual 
obligation to deliver cash or another 
financial asset or to exchange financial 
assets or financial liabilities with another 
entity under conditions that are potentially 
unfavourable to the Group or a contract that 
will or may be settled in the Group’s own 
equity instruments and is a non-derivative 
contract for which the Group is or may be 
obliged to deliver a variable number of its 
own equity instruments, or a derivative 
contract over own equity that will or may 
be settled other than by the exchange of a 
fixed amount of cash (or another financial 
asset) for a fixed number of the Group’s 
own equity instruments.
(xii) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract 
that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of an entity after deducting all of 
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by 
the Group are recognised at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Group’s own equity 
instruments is recognised and deducted 
directly in equity. No gain/loss is recognised 
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue 
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity 
instruments.

H ● Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either 
financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other 
financial liabilities’.
(i) Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at 
FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) held 
for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at 
FVTPL.
A financial liability is classified as held for 
trading if:

● 	it has been incurred principally for the 
purpose of repurchasing it in the near 
term; or

● 	on initial recognition it is part of 
a portfolio of identified financial 
instruments that the Group manages 
together and has a recent actual pattern 
of short-term profit-taking; or

● 	it is a derivative that is not designated 
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial 
liability held for trading or contingent 
consideration that may be paid by an 
acquirer as part of a business combination 
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition if:
● 	such designation eliminates or 

significantly reduces a measurement 
or recognition inconsistency that would 
otherwise arise; or

● 	the financial liability forms part of a 
group of financial assets or financial 
liabilities or both, which is managed 
and its performance is evaluated on a 
fair value basis, in accordance with the 
Group’s documented risk management 
or investment strategy, and information 
about the grouping is provided internally 
on that basis; or

● 	it forms part of a contract containing one 
or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS 
9 permits the entire hybrid (combined) 
contract to be designated as at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at 
fair value, with any gains/losses arising 
on remeasurement recognised in profit 
or loss to the extent that they are not part 
of a designated hedging relationship. 
The net gain/loss recognised in profit or 
loss incorporates any interest paid on the 
financial liability and is included in the ‘net 
income from other financial instruments 
at FVTPL’ line item in the profit or loss 
account. 
However, for non-derivative financial 
liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, 
the amount of change in the fair value of 
the financial liability that is attributable to 
changes in the credit risk of that liability is 
recognised in OCI, unless the recognition 
of the effects of changes in the liability’s 
credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge 
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. 
The remaining amount of change in the 
fair value of liability is recognised in profit 
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable 
to a financial liability’s credit risk that are 
recognised in OCI are not subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they 
are transferred to retained earnings upon 
derecognition of the financial liability. 

For issued loan commitments and financial 
guarantee contracts that are designated 
as at FVTPL all gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss.
In making the determination of whether 
recognising changes in the liability’s 
credit risk in OCI will create or enlarge an 
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the 
Group assesses whether it expects that the 
effects of changes in the liability’s credit 
risk will be offset in profit or loss by a 
change in the fair value of another financial 
instrument measured at FVTPL. This 
determination is made at initial recognition.
(ii) Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including deposits 
and borrowings, are initially measured 
at fair value, net of transaction costs. 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method.
The effective interest method is a method 
of calculating the amortised cost of a 
financial liability and of allocating interest 
expense over the relevant period. The EIR 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments through the expected 
life of the financial liability, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition.
(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities 
when, and only when, the Group’s 
obligations are discharged, cancelled or 
have expired. The difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognised and the consideration paid 
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group exchanges with the 
existing lender one debt instrument into 
another one with substantially different 
terms, such exchange is accounted for 
as an extinguishment of the original 
financial liability and the recognition of a 
new financial liability. Similarly, the Group 
accounts for substantial modification of 
terms of an existing liability or part of it as 
an extinguishment of the original financial 
liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. It is assumed that the terms are 
substantially different if the discounted 
present value of the cash flows under the 
new terms, including any fees paid net of 
any fees received and discounted using the 
original effective rate is at least 10 per cent 
different from the discounted present value 
of the remaining cash flows of the original 
financial liability. 
Note 4 (h) sets out the amount of each class 
of financial asset or liability that has been 
designated at fair value through profit or 
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loss. A description of the basis for each 
designation is set out in the note for the 
relevant asset or liability class.
(iv) Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract 
that requires the issuer to make specified 
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss 
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to 
make payments when due in accordance 
with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by a 
group entity are initially measured at their 
fair values and, if not designated as at 
FVTPL and not arising from a transfer of a 
financial asset, are subsequently measured 
at the higher of:
● 	the amount of the loss allowance 

determined in accordance with IFRS 9 
with 20% Credit Conversion Factor; and

● 	the amount initially recognised less, 
where appropriate, cumulative amount 
of income recognised in accordance with 
the Group’s revenue recognition policies.

Financial guarantee contracts not 
designated at FVTPL are presented 
as provisions on the consolidated 
statement of financial position and the 
remeasurement is presented in other 
revenue.
The Group has not designated any financial 
guarantee contracts as at FVTPL.

I ● Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include notes 
and coins on hand, balances held with 
the Central Bank of the Gambia (CBG), 
including the compulsory minimum cash 
reserve requirement and highly liquid 
financial assets with original maturities 
of less than three months, which are 
subject to insignificant risk of changes 
in their fair value, and are used by the 
Bank in the management of its short term 
commitments.
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose 
of cash flow statement preparation 
comprise cash held in local and foreign 
currencies, local and foreign bank 
deposits, and cash balances with the 
Central Bank of The Gambia,T-bills, 
demand deposits with other banks. 

J ● Loan collateral
In terms of handling collateral, the Bank 
places great emphasis mainly on the 
valuation and revaluation of real estates, 
determination of collateral acceptability for 
the purposes of credit risk mitigation and 
collateral enforcement, should the client 
be in default. there was no changes in the 
bank's collateral policy during the year. 
The Bank mainly accepts the following 
types of collateral: 

●	 Financial collateral, 
●	 Real estates,
●	 Receivables.
The value of pledged collateral is 
determined on a case-by-case basis for 
each type of collateral depending on the 
type of collateral and transaction, and 
individual risk characteristics. 

K ● Property, Plant and Equipment 
and Right of Use 
Land and buildings held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services 
for rental to others (excluding investment 
properties), or for administrative purposes, 
are stated in the statement of financial 
position at their revalued amounts, being 
the fair value at the date of revaluation, 
less any accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses. 
Revaluations are performed with sufficient 
regularity such that the carrying amount 
does not differ materially from that which 
would be determined using fair values at 
the reporting date.
Any revaluation increase arising on the 
revaluation of such land and buildings 
is credited to the properties revaluation 
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses 
a revaluation decrease for the same asset 
previously recognised as an expense, in 
which case the increase is credited to 
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease 
previously expensed. A decrease in 
carrying amount arising on the revaluation 
of such land and buildings is charged as 
an expense to the extent that it exceeds 
the balance, if any, held in the properties 
revaluation reserve relating to a previous 
revaluation of that asset. Depreciation on 
revalued buildings is recognised in profit or 
loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement 
of a revalued property, the attributable 
revaluation surplus remaining in the 
properties revaluation reserve is transferred 
directly to retained earnings.
Properties in the course of construction 
for production, supply or administrative 
purposes, or for purposes not yet 
determined, are carried at cost, less any 
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes 
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance 
with the Group’s accounting policy. 
Depreciation of these assets, determined 
on the same basis as other property assets, 
commences when the assets are ready for 
their intended use.
When components of an item of property or 
equipment have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of property and equipment.
Depreciation is determined separately for 
each category of asset and is charged so 
as to write off the cost or valuation of the 

assets (other than land and items under 
construction) to their residual value over 
their estimated useful lives, using the 
straight-line method. 
The estimated useful lives of property, plant 
and equipment and intangible fixed assets 
are as follows:

Number  
of Years

Buildings 50
Furniture and equipment 1 to 5
Office machines 1 to 5
Computer equipment 5
Vehicles 3
Computer software 5
Right to use of Land 99

Residual values and estimated useful lives 
are assessed on an annual basis. Surpluses 
or deficits on the disposal of property 
and equipment are recognised in the 
income statement. The surplus or deficit 
is the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset.
Properties in the course of construction for 
administrative purposes, or for purposes not 
yet determined, are carried at cost, less any 
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes 
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance 
with the Bank’s accounting policy. 
Depreciation of these assets, on the same 
basis as other property assets, commences 
when the assets are ready for their intended 
use.
i. Lease (Policy applicable as at 1 January 
2019)
The Bank assesses at contract inception 
whether a contract is, or contains, a 
lease. That is, if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration.
ii. Bank as a lessee
The Bank applies a single recognition and 
measurement approach for all leases, 
except for short-term leases and leases 
of low-value assets. The Bank recognises 
lease liabilities to make lease payments and 
right-of-use assets representing the right to 
use the underlying assets.
Right-of-use assets
The Bank recognises right-of-use assets at 
the commencement date of the lease (i.e., 
the date the underlying asset is available 
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured 
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any 
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost 
of right-of-use assets includes the amount 
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct 
costs incurred, and lease payments made 
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at or before the commencement date less 
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use 
assets are depreciated on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.
The right-of-use assets are presented within 
Note 19 Right-of-use assets and are subject 
to impairment in line with the Bank’s policy 
as described in Note  Impairment of non-
financial assets.
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the 
Bank recognises lease liabilities measured 
at the present value of lease payments to 
be made over the lease term. The lease 
payments include fixed payments (less 
any lease incentives receivable), variable 
lease payments that depend on an index 
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid 
under residual value guarantees. The lease 
payments also include the exercise price 
of a purchase option reasonably certain to 
be exercised by the Bank and payments of 
penalties for terminating the lease, if the 
lease term reflects exercising the option 
to terminate. Variable lease payments that 
do not depend on an index or a rate are 
recognised as expenses in the period in 
which the event or condition that triggers 
the payment occurs.
Bank as a lessor
Leases in which the Bank does not transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset are 
classified as operating leases. Rental 
income arising is accounted for on a 
straight-line basis over the lease terms and 
is included in revenue in the statement of 
profit or loss due to its operating nature. 
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
and arranging an operating lease are added 
to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognised over the lease term on the 
same basis as rental income. Contingent 
rents are recognised as revenue in the 
period in which they are earned.
(i) Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of 
property or equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable 
that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Bank and its 
cost can be measured reliably. The costs 
of the day to day servicing of property and 
equipment are recognised in profit or loss 
as incurred.
(ii) Impairment of property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets
At each balance sheet date, the Bank 
reviews the carrying amounts of its 
property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets to determine whether 
there is any indication that those assets 
have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable 

amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss 
(if any).  Recoverable amount is the higher 
of fair value less costs to sell and value in 
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset for which the estimates 
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset 
is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset 
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is recognised immediately 
in profit or loss. Where an impairment loss 
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount 
of the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that 
the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in 
prior years. A reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in income 
statement. 

L ● Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is generally considered 
as an identifiable non monetary asset 
without physical substance. It is 
distinguished from goodwill based on the 
identifiability concept. It is recognised 
when future economic benefits will flow to 
the Group and it can be reliably measured. 
The useful life may be finite or indefinite 
depending on the nature and legal 
framework underpinning the transaction. 
Impairment assessment is made of all 
indefinite intangibles at each reporting date 
and the appropriate adjustments made.
Software license costs are recognized 
as intangible assets carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization. Software cost 
is amortized over a period of 5 years. 
However, purchased software that is 
integral to the functionality of the related 
equipment is capitalised as part of that 
equipment.
Subsequent expenditure on software is 
capitalized only when it increases the 
future economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. All other 
expenditure is expensed as incurred.

M ● Impairment of non financial 
assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's non 
financial assets, other than investment 
property and deferred tax assets, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment. If any such indication exists, 
then the asset's recoverable amount is 

estimated. The recoverable amount of 
goodwill is estimated at each reporting 
date.
An impairment loss is recognised if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash 
generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount. A cash generating unit is the 
smallest identifiable asset group that 
generates cash flows that largely are 
independent from other assets and 
groups. Impairment losses recognised 
in respect of cash generating units are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill allocated to the 
units and then to reduce the carrying 
amount of the other assets in the unit 
on a pro rata basis.
The recoverable amount of an asset or 
cash generating unit is the greater of 
its value in use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset.
An impairment loss in respect of 
goodwill is not reversed. In respect 
of other assets, impairment losses 
recognised in prior periods are 
assessed at each reporting date for any 
indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss 
is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset's carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised.

N ● Credit Risk Reserve
This is a reserve created to set aside 
the shortfalls between amounts 
recognised as impairment loss on 
loans and advances based on ECL 
computation and  provisions made for 
bad and doubtful loans and advances 
calculated in accordance with IFRS and 
the Central Bank's prudential guidelines 
respectively.

O ● Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the 
Bank has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events, 
for which it is probable that an outflow 
of economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. Provisions are 
determined by discounting the expected 
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future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability.

P ● Employee benefits
The Bank operates a defined contribution 
plan for all employees. Under the plan, 
fixed contributions are paid into a separate 
entity and the Bank will have no legal 
or constructive obligation to pay further 
amounts. Obligations for contributions 
to defined contribution pension plans 
are recognised as an employee benefit 
expense in profit or loss in the periods 
during which services are rendered by 
employees. Prepaid contributions are 
recognised as an asset to the extent that 
a cash refund or a reduction in future 
payments is available. Contributions to 
a defined contribution plan that are due 
more than 12 months after the end of the 
period in which the employees render the 
service are discounted to their present 
value.

Q ● Basic and diluted earnings per 
share
The Bank presents basic and diluted 
earnings per share (EPS) data for its 
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by 
the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting 
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders and the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares, which comprise 
convertible notes and share options 
granted to employees.

R ● Dividend 
Dividend revenue from investments is 
recognised when the shareholder’s right 
to receive payment has been established 
(provided that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Bank and 
the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably).
Dividends payable are recognised as a 
liability in the period in which they are 
declared.

4  �Financial risk management

A ● Introduction and overview
Effective risk management is of critical 
importance and key to the delivery of 
sustainable returns for shareholders. Risk 
taking is an inherent part of the Bank's 
business activities and is defined as the 
possibility of losing some or all of an 
original investment. Risk management 

committee is assisted in these functions 
by the Internal Audit Department, Legal 
and Compliance Department. These 
departments undertake both regular and 
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls 
and procedures, the results of which are 
reported to the Audit committee.
The Credit committee oversees control 
and management of all policies, processes 
and procedures relating to the Bank's 
lending function. The scope of risks covered 
by this committee includes credit risk, 
concentration risk and country risk.
The Asset and liability committee (ALCO) 
is a decision making body for developing 
policies relating to all asset and liability 
management matters.
The Risk Management department is 
responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Bank's risk management policies and 
procedures over specified areas on a day 
to day basis. It reports to the Board on its 
activities through the Audit Committee.

B ● Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to 
the bank if a customer or counterparty 
to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations to pay the bank in 
accordance with agreed terms. Credit risk 
is the most important risk for the bank's 
business and is attributed to both on 
balance sheet financial instruments such as 
loans, overdrafts, investments and credit 
equivalent amounts related to off balance 
sheet financial items.
(i) Significant increase in credit risk
The Group monitors all financial assets that 
are subject to impairment requirements 
to assess whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition. If there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk the Group 
will measure the loss allowance based on 
lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.
(ii) Internal credit risk ratings 
In order to minimise credit risk, the 
Group has tasked its credit management 
committee to develop and maintain the 
Group’s credit risk grading to categorise 
exposures according to their degree of risk 
of default. The Group’s credit risk grading 
framework comprises diffrent categories. 
The credit rating information is based on 
a range of data that is determined to be 
predictive of the risk of default and applying 
experienced credit judgement. The nature 
of the exposure and type of borrower are 
taken into account in the analysis. 
(iii) Incorporation of forward‑looking 
information 
The Group uses forward-looking information 
that is available without undue cost or effort 
in its assessment of significant increase of 

systems and governance structures are 
designed to reduce earnings volatility and 
achieve an appropriate balance between 
risk and reward and increased profitability.
The main risks the Bank is exposed to are 
as follows:
●	 Credit risk this reflects the possible 

inability of a customer to meet his/her 
repayment obligations.

●	 Liquidity risk this reflects the inability 
to accommodate liability maturities and 
withdrawals, fund asset growth or meet 
contractual obligations.

●	 Market risk this reflects the risk of 
fluctuations in asset and commodity 
values caused by changes in market 
prices and yields and it includes foreign 
currency risk, interest rate risk and other 
price risks.

●	 Operational risk 	this reflects the 
potential loss result from inadequate 
or failed internal processes, systems, 
people, legal issues, external events and 
non compliance with regulatory issues.

These are principal risks of the Bank. The 
notes to the financial statements presents 
information about the Bank's exposure 
to these risk, as well as their impact on 
earnings and capital.

Risk management framework
The Risk management framework consists 
of a comprehensive set of policies, 
procedures and processes designed 
to identify, measure, monitor, mitigate 
and report significant risk exposure in 
a consistent and effect manner across 
the Bank. The Board of Directors has 
established the Asset and Liability (ALCO), 
Audit, Credit and Risk Management 
committees which are responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Bank's risk 
management policies in their specified 
areas. 
The Bank's risk management policies 
are established to identify and analyse 
the risks faced by the Bank, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and 
to monitor adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are 
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in 
market conditions, products and services 
offered. The Bank, through its training and 
management standards and procedures, 
aims to develop a disciplined and 
constructive control environment, in which 
all employees understand their roles and 
obligations.
The Audit committee is responsible for 
monitoring compliance with the Bank's 
risk management policies and procedures, 
and for reviewing the adequacy of the 
risk management framework in relation 
to the risks faced by the Bank. The Audit 
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2022 2023 2024 2025

Inflation 13% 11.07% 8.40% 6.05%
Base scenario 70% 70% 70% 70%
Range of upside scenarios 15% 15% 15% 15%
Range of downside scenarios 15% 15% 15% 15%

Average PD Average LGD Average EAD ECL

As expected 0.2090 0.5810 0.71400  (69,565)
Inflation +15% 0.0782 0.6682 0.8211  (80,000)

-15% 0.0578 0.4939 0.6069  (59,130)

credit risk as well as in its measurement 
of ECL. The Group employs experts who 
use external and internal information to 
generate a ‘base case’ scenario of future 
forecast of relevant economic variables 
along with a representative range of 
other possible forecast scenarios. The 
external information used includes 
economic data and forecasts published 
by governmental bodies and monetary 
authorities.
The Group applies probabilities to the 

forecast scenarios identified. The base 
case scenario is the single most-likely 
outcome and consists of information used 
by the Group for strategic planning and 
budgeting. The Group has identified and 
documented key drivers of credit risk and 
credit losses for each portfolio of financial 
instruments and, using a statistical 
analysis of historical data, has estimated 
relationships between macro-economic 
variables and credit risk and credit losses. 
The Group has not made changes in 

the estimation techniques or significant 
assumptions made during the reporting 
period.
The table below summarises the principal 
macroeconomic (Fom Trading Economics 
and MPC) indicators included in the 
economic scenarios used at 31 December 
2022 for the years 2022 to 2025, of the 
Gambia , which is the country where 
the Group operates and therefore is the 
country that has a material impact in 
ECLs.

Predicted relationships between the key indicators and default and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assets have been 
developed based on analysing historical data over the past 5 years.
The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on how ECL on the main portfolios will change if the key assumptions used to calculate 
ECL change by 15%. The table below outlines the total ECL per portfolio as at 31 December , if the assumptions used to measure ECL 
remain as expected (amount as presented in the statement of financial position), as well as if each of the key assumptions used change 
by plus or minus 15%. The change are applied to each probability weighted scenarios used to develop the estimate of expected credit 
losses.

Loans and advances to customers

The Group is not able to estimate the 
impact on ECL of the following uncertain 
events/factors, despite best efforts, due 
to lack of reasonable and supportable 
information or statistically co-related:
●	 Unemployment rates
●	 Benchmark interest rates
●	 House prices
(iv) Measurement of ECL
The key inputs used for measuring ECL 
are:
●  probability of default (PD);
●	  loss given default (LGD); and
●  exposure at default (EAD).
PD is an estimate of the likelihood of 
default over a given time horizon. It 
is estimated as at a point in time. The 
calculation is based on Markov statistical 
models,. These statistical models are 
based on market data (where available), 
as well as internal data comprising both 
quantitative and qualitative factors. PDs 
are estimated considering the contractual 
maturities of exposures. The estimation 
is based on current conditions, adjusted 
to take into account estimates of future 
conditions that will impact PD.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising 
on default. It is based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due 
and those that the lender would expect 
to receive, taking into account cash flows 
from any collateral. The LGD models 
for secured assets consider forecasts 
of future collateral valuation taking into 
account sale discounts, time to realization 
of collateral, cross collateralization and 
etc. LGD models for unsecured assets 
ignore time of recovery but recovery 
rates. The calculation is on a discounted 
cash flow basis, where the cash flows are 
discounted by the original EIR of the loan.
EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a 
future default date, taking into account 
expected changes in the exposure 
after the reporting date and expected 
drawdowns on committed facilities. 
The Group’s modeling approach for 
EAD reflects expected changes in the 
balance outstanding over the lifetime 
of the loan exposure that are permitted 
by the current contractual terms, such 
as amortization profiles, changes in 
utilization of undrawn commitments and 
credit mitigation actions taken before 
default. The Group uses EAD models that 

reflect the characteristics of the portfolios.
The Group measures ECL considering 
the risk of default over the contractual 
period over which the entity is exposed to 
credit risk and not a longer period, even if 
contract extension or renewal is common 
business practice. The group manages 
its financial instruments on a collective 
basis and is canceled only when the Group 
becomes aware of an increase in credit 
risk at the facility level. The longer period 
is estimated taking into account the credit 
risk management actions that the Group 
expects to take to mitigate ECL, e.g. 
reduction in limits or cancellation of the 
loan commitment.
The measurement of ECL is based on 
probability weighted average credit loss. 
As a result, the measurement of the loss 
allowance should be the same regardless 
of whether it is measured on an individual 
basis or a collective basis (although 
measurement on a collective basis is more 
practical for large portfolios of items). In 
relation to the assessment of whether 
there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk it can be necessary to perform 
the assessment on a collective basis as 
noted below.
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(v) Groupings based on shared risks 
characteristics
When ECL are measured on a collective 
basis, the financial instruments are 
grouped on the basis of shared risk 
characteristics, such as:
●	 instrument type;
●	 collateral type;
●	 industry; 
●	 income bracket of the borrower;
● 	credit risk grade;

Management of credit risk
For risk management purposes, the 
bank considers and consolidates all 
elements of credit risk exposure. Credit 
risk arising on trading securities is 
managed independently, but reported as a 
component of market risk exposure.
Credit risk is managed through a 
framework that sets out policies and 
procedures covering the identification, 
measurement and management of credit 
risk. The management of credit risk is 

delegated to the Credit committee whose 
goal is to enhance a strong credit culture 
by:
●	 Formulating credit policies in 

consultation with business units, 
covering collateral requirements, credit 
assessment, risk grading and reporting, 
documentary and legal procedures 
and compliance with regulatory and 
statutory requirements;

●	 Establishing the authorization and 
structure for the approval and renewal 
of credit facilities. Authorization limits 
are allocated to branch and corporate 
officers. Larger facilities require 
approval by the head of the credit 
committee or the Board of Directors as 
appropriate;

●	 Reviewing and assessing credit risk. 
The bank assesses all credit exposures 
in excess of designated limits prior to 
facilities being committed to customers. 
Renewals and reviews of facilities are 
subject to the same review process;

●	 Monitor credit concentration. Credit 
concentration is the risk of loss to 
the bank arising from an excessive 
concentration of exposure to a single 
counterparty, industry or sector. Large 
exposure limits have been established 
under the Central Bank of The 
Gambia's guidelines and concentration 
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis;

●	 Mitigate potential credit losses from 
any given account, customer or 
portfolio using a range of tools such 
as collateral. Risk mitigation policies 
determine the eligibility of collateral 
types;

●	 Reviewing compliance of business 
units with agreed exposure limits, 
including those for selected industries, 
country risk and product type;

●	 Providing advice, guidance, specialist 
skills and training to business units to 
promote best practice throughout the 
bank in the management of credit risk;

Loans and  
advances to 

customers

Loans and  
advances to 

customers

Exposure to credit risk 2022 
D'000

2021 
D'000

Stage 3 impairment
Grade 6: Impaired (substandard) 2,493 138 
Grade 7: Impaired (standard) - - 
Grade 8: Impaired (doubtful) 7,028 4,341 
Grade 9: Impaired (loss) 23,021 13,506 

Gross amount 32,542 17,985 
Allowance for impairment (389) (376)

Carrying amount 32,153 17,609 

Stage 1 impairment
Grade 1-3 Normal 4,412,131 2,248,795 

Gross amount 4,412,131 2,248,795 
Allowance for impairment (68,717) (30,882)

Carrying amount 4,343,414 2,217,913 

Stage 2 impairment
Grade 4-5 Watch list 93,162 36,288 
Allowance for impairment (459) (459)

Carrying amount 92,703 35,829 

Past due comprises:
90-180 days 2,493 138 
181-360 days 30,049 17,847 

Carrying amount 32,542 17,985 

Neither past due nor impaired
Grade 1-3 Normal 4,412,131 2,248,795 
Grade 4-5 Watch list - - 

Carrying amount 4,412,131 2,248,795 
Includes loans with renegotiated terms

Total carrying amount 4,468,270 2,271,351
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Credit Quality Analysis 2022 Life-Time

Loans and Advances at amortised cost 12-Months ECL ECL not credit 
impaired 

ECL credit  
impaired Total 

Grade 1-3: Normal 4,412,131  -  - 4,412,131 
Grade 4-5: Watch list  -  93,162  -  93,162 
Grade 6 Substandard  -  -  2,493  2,493 
Grade 7: Standard  -  -  -  - 
Grade 8: Doubtful  -  -  7,028  7,028 
Grade 9: Loss  -  -  23,021  23,021 
Loss Allowance  (68,717) (459) (389)  (69,565)

Carrying Value  4,343,414  92,703  32,153 4,468,270 

Credit Quality Analysis 2022 Life-Time

Impairment of Financial guarantees contracts 12-Months ECL ECL not credit 
impaired 

ECL credit  
impaired Total 

Grade 1-3: Normal 413 413 
Grade 4-5: Watch list - -  - - 
Grade 6 Substandard - -  - - 
Grade 7: Standard - -  - - 
Grade 8: Doubtful - -  - - 
Grade 9: Loss - -  - - 
Loss Allowance  (309) -  - (309)

Closing Balance  104 -  - 104 

(i) Impaired loans and securities
Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities for which the bank determines that it is probable that it will be unable to collect all 
principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of the loan/security agreements. Interest on these loans are calculated and 
treated on non-accrual basis and portions shall only be considered when payments (settlement) is made.	
(ii) Past due or non performing but not impaired loans
Loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due or non performing are not treated as impaired when 
the discounted cash flows of the forced sale value of the collateral is estimated to be more than the loan.  
(iii) Loans with renegotiated terms
Loans with renegotiated terms are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower's financial position and where 
the bank has made concessions that it would not otherwise consider. The status or risk grade of a restructured facility does not change 
until there is evidence of performance over a reasonable period of time.
(iv) Allowances for impairment
The bank establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents the estimate of expected losses in the loan portfolios. The main 
components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loan loss 
allowance established for groups of homogeneous assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but have not been identified on 
loans subject to individual assessment for impairment.
Set out below is an analysis of the gross and net (of allowance for impairment) amounts of individually impaired financial assets by risk 
grade.

For further detail on IFRS 9 credit quality refer to tables below:
The following table sets out information about the credit quality of  financial assets measured at amortised cost. For loan commitments 
and financial guarantee contracts the amounts represent amount committed and or guaranteed respectively. 
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Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers
Gross 
D'000

Net 
D'000

31st December 2022
Grade 6: Individually impaired 2,493 2,454 
Grade 7: Individually impaired 7,028 6,930 
Grade 8: Individually impaired 23,021 22,769 

Total 32,542 32,153

31st December 2021
Grade 6: Individually impaired 2,017 1,850 
Grade 7: Individually impaired -   -   
Grade 8: Individually impaired 17,229 17,085 

Total 19,246 18,935

The bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of mortgage interests over property, other registered 
securities over assets, and guarantees. Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, and 
generally are not updated except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired. Collateral for loans and advances to banks is in the 
form of treasury bills. Collateral is not usually held against investment securities, and no such collateral was held at 31 December 2022 or 
2021. 
An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held against financial assets is shown below. Collateral values 
of impaired loans are at cash flows of the forced sale values less estimated costs of sale as discounted to present values.

Loans and advances to customers
2022 

D'000
2021 

D'000

Against stage 1 impaired

Property 8,475,900 6,129,375 
Cash 301,538 641,000 
Equity -   -   
Other -   -   

Against stage 2 impaired

Property 219,759 190,036 
Cash 230 -   
Equity -   -   
Other

Against stage 3 impaired

Property 1,546,860 424,963 
Cash   -   -   
Equity -   -   
Other -   -   
Other -   -   

Total 10,544,287 7,385,374

(vii) Assets held for sale
The type and carrying amount of collateral that the bank has taken possession of in the period are measured at the lower of its carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell as stated below:

Loans and advances to customers
2022 

D'000
2021 

D'000

Against individually impaired
Property  -    -   
Cash  -    -   
Equity  -    -   

Total  -    -   

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

35



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector. An analysis of concentrations of credit risk at the reporting date is shown 
below:

Loans and advances  
to customers
2022 

D'000
2021 

D'000

Carrying amount
Concentration by sector

Agriculture 461 3,964 
Manufacturing 13 305 
Service Industry 178,434 48,414 
Construction 861,447 507,463 
Energy 951,845 202,984 
Tourism 223,915 227,278 
Distributive Trade 569,998 
Other 1,682,157 1,280,943 

Total 4,468,270 2,271,351 

C ● Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the bank 
will encounter difficulty in meeting 
obligations from its financial liabilities 
as they fall due. The risks arise from 
mismatches in cash flows.
Management of liquidity risk
Liquidity risk means a risk of possible 
loss of the Bank’s ability to fulfil its 
liabilities when they become due. The 
Bank wishes to maintain its solvency, i.e. 
the ability to meet its financial liabilities 
in a proper manner and in time, and to 
manage its assets and liabilities so as 
to ensure continuous liquidity. Liquidity 
management is the responsibility of the 
Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) 
and the Treasury Department. Regular 
meetings of ALCO are held on a weekly 
basis, during which the Bank’s liquidity is 
evaluated and, subsequently, decisions 
are taken based on the current state of 
affairs. 
The Bank’s liabilities represent primarily 
deposits from customers. These amounts 

generally bear no specific maturity date 
and are payable on demand. The few 
customer deposits maintained on fixed 
terms all matures with a maximum period 
of one year. This means the undiscounted 
cash flows are not materially different 
from the discounted ones.
The Bank is exposed to daily calls on its 
available cash resources from current 
accounts, maturing deposits, loan draw 
downs and guarantees. The Bank does 
not maintain cash resources to meet 
all of these needs as experience shows 
that a minimum level of reinvestment 
of maturing funds can be predicted 
with a high level of certainty. The Bank 
sets limits on the minimum proportion 
of maturing funds available to meet 
such calls and on the minimum level 
of interbank and other borrowing 
facilities that should be in place to cover 
withdrawals at unexpected levels of 
demand.
The Integrated Risk Management function 
monitors the Bank’s liquidity on a daily 
basis and reports on its development. 

Information on the liquidity position is 
reported to ALCO on a weekly basis. 
The Asset and Liabilities Management 
function submits reports on the Bank’s 
structure of assets and liabilities to ALCO 
for approval. 
The Bank is obliged to perform its 
activities so as to ensure that at any time 
it meets the liquidity requirements of the 
Central Bank of The Gambia. 
Exposure to liquidity risk
The key measure used by the bank for 
managing liquidity risk is the ratio of net 
liquid assets to deposits from customers. 
For this purpose, the net liquid assets are 
considered as including cash and cash 
equivalents and investment in securities 
for which there is an active and liquid 
market less any deposits from banks, 
debt securities issued, other borrowings 
and commitments maturing within the 
next month. Details of the reported ratio 
of net liquid assets to customer deposits 
at the reporting date and during the 
reporting period were as follows:

2022 2021

At 31 December 40.0% 61.8%
Average for the period 47.4% 59.9%
Maximum for the period 64.1% 66.3%
Minimum for the period 39.0% 51.4%
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Carrying  
amount

Gross nominal 
inflow/outflow

Less than  
1 month

1 month to  
3 months

3 months  
to 1 year 1-5 years

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

31st December 2022  
Deposits from Banks 4,015 4,015 -   4,015 -   -   
Deposits from Customers 9,120,509 9,120,509 8,907,852 36,795 175,862 -   

 9,124,524 9,124,524 8,907,852 40,810 175,862 -  

31st December 2021  
Deposits from Banks 6,984 26,984 -   26,984 -   -   
Deposits from Customers 8,807,225 8,807,225 8,564,126 148,490 94,609 -   

 8,834,209 8,834,209 8,564,126 175,474 94,609 -   

Residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities

D ● Market risk	
The Bank is exposed to market risks. Market risks result from open positions from transactions with interest rate, cross-currency and 
equity products that are subject to general and specific market changes. To assess the approximate level of market risks associated with 
the Bank’s positions, and the expected maximum amount of potential losses, the Bank uses internal reports and models for individual 
types of risks faced by the Bank. The Bank uses a system of limits, the aim of which is to ensure that the level of risks the Bank is 
exposed to at any time does not exceed the level of risks the Bank is willing and able to take. These limits are monitored on a daily basis. 
For risk management purposes, market risk is regarded as the risk of potential losses the Bank may incur due to unfavorable 
development in market rates and prices. 
The Bank primarily faces the following market risks:
●	 Currency risk
●	 Interest rate risk
Sensitivity analysis of market risks 
Sensitivity analysis reflects the implications on the Bank’s profit/loss arising from the movements in market parameters (interest rates, 
exchange rates, share prices, etc.) by predetermined values. For monitoring and limiting of risk, the Bank uses 2% for interest rates, a 5% 
movement in exchange rates and 20% movement in share and commodity prices. 
These movements represent management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange and interest rates. The 
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period 
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. 
Currency risk
Currency risk represents the potentiality of loss resulting from unfavorable movements in foreign currency exchange rates. The Bank 
controls this risk by the determination and monitoring of open position limits.
Open currency positions are subject to real-time monitoring through the banking information system. Limits for these positions are set in 
line with the CBG guidelines. Data on the Bank currency positions and on the Bank’s compliance with the limits set by CBG are reported 
on a weekly basis.
The Bank’s foreign exchange balance as of 31 December 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Net FX positions
2022 2021

D'000 D'000

EURO  21,199 7,768 
USD  5,382 (20,921)
GBP  33,926 882 
Other 6,633 5,444 

Total net FX balance sheet position 67,140 (6,827)
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TRUST BANK CSR ACTIVITIES 2022

TRUST BANK DISTRIBUTES MEDICAL ITEMS WORTH D1.8 MILLION 
TO HOSPITALS ACROSS THE COUNTRY

TRUST BANK ADOPTED THE PAEDIATRIC WARD OF BANSANG 
GENERAL HOSPITAL



TRUST BANK PRESENTS A CHEQUE OF D1 MILLION 
TO THE LATE VP JOOF TO COMPLEMENT GOVERNMENT’S 

DISASTER RELIEF EFFORTS

TRUST BANK DONATES D500,000 
TO GRTS FOR THE WORLD CUP COVERAGE
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 Present value  
of exchange rate

Exchange rate 
 in sensitivity 

scenario

Bank's position  
in respective 

currency

Bank's loss  
in respective 

scenario
D'000

EURO 60.50 63.53 7,768 23,498 
USD 51.98 54.58 (20,921) (54,374)
GBP 70.75 74.29 882 3,120 

Total  (27,755)

Change in the present value of assets and liabilities of the Bank following the movements in exchange rates of the selected currencies to 
the detriment of the Bank as of 31 December 2021:

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The length of 
time for which the rate of interest is fixed on a financial instrument therefore indicates to what extent it is exposed to interest rate risk. 
Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.
The ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits and is assisted by Risk management in its day to day monitoring 
activities. A summary of the bank's interest rate gap position on non trading portfolios is as follows:

Carrying  
amount

Less than  
3 months

3-6  
months

6 to  
12 months 1-5 years More than  

5 years
D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

31st December 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 2,801,255 2,801,255 -   -   -   -   
Loans/advances to customers 4,468,270 1,847,274 474,361 32,671 1,738,372 375,592 
Investment securities 2,005,034 510,625 136,785 382,625 974,999 -   

9,274,559 5,159,154 611,146 415,296 2,713,371 375,592 

Deposits from banks 4,015 4,015 -   -   -   -   
Deposits from customers 9,120,509 8,907,852 36,795 175,862 -   -   

9,124,524 8,911,867 36,795 175,862 -   -   

(150,035) 3,752,713 (574,351) (239,434) (2,713,371) (375,592)

31st December 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 3,514,355 3,514,355  - - -  - 
Loans/advances to customers 2,271,351 1,367,910  140,745 246,920 362,308  153,468 
Investment securities 3,009,963 582,453  758,609  1,615,295  53,606  - 

8,795,669  5,464,718  899,354  1,862,215 415,914  153,468 

Deposits from banks 26,984  26,984  - - -  - 
Deposits from customers 8,807,225  8,564,126  148,490  94,609 -  - 

8,834,209  8,591,110  148,490  94,609 -  - 

38,540  3,126,392  (750,864) (1,767,606)  (415,914) (153,468)

 Present value  
of exchange rate

Exchange rate 
 in sensitivity 

scenario

Bank's position  
in respective 

currency

Bank's loss  
in respective 

scenario
D'000

EURO 64.00 67.20 21,199 67,837 
USD 61.00 64.05 5,382 16,415 
GBP 74.00 77.70 33,926 125,526 

Total 209,778 

Change in the present value of assets and liabilities of the Bank following the movements in exchange rates of the selected currencies to 
the detriment of the Bank as of 31 December 2022:
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The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of the Bank's financial 
assets and liabilities to various standard and non standard interest rate scenarios. Standard scenarios that are considered on a monthly 
basis include a 100 basis point (bp) parallel fall or rise in yield curves worldwide and a 50 bp rise or fall in the greater than 12 month 
portion of all yield curves. 
Overall non trading interest rate risk positions are managed by Assets and Liabilities Management Committee, which uses investment 
securities, advances to banks and deposits from banks to manage the overall position arising from the bank's non trading activities. 
Exposure to other market risks - non trading portfolios and trading portfolio
The following table sets out the allocation of the carrying value of assets and liabilities subject to market risk between trading and non-
trading portfolios:

Market risk type
Carrying  
amount Trading portfolios Non-trading 

portfolios 

31st December 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 2,801,255  -  2,801,255 
Trading assets 2,005,034 2,005,034 - 
Loans and advances to customers 4,468,270  -  4,468,270 
Investment in subsidiaries 75,113  -  75,113 
Investment in other equity securities 119,349  - 119,349 

 9,469,021 2,005,034  7,463,987 

Deposits from Banks 4,015  4,015 - 
Deposits from Customers 9,120,509 9,120,509 - 

 9,124,524 9,124,524 - 

Market risk type
Carrying  
amount Trading portfolios Non-trading 

portfolios 

31st December 2021
Cash and cash equivalents  3,514,355  -  3,514,355 
Trading assets 3,009,963 3,009,963 - 
Loans and advances to customers 2,271,351  -  2,271,351 
Investment in subsidiaries 55,876  -  55,876 
Investment in other equity securities 116,705  - 116,705 

  8,968,250 3,009,963  5,958,287 

Deposits from Banks 26,984 26,984 - 
Deposits from Customers  8,807,225 8,807,225 - 

  8,834,209 8,834,209 - 

E ● Operational risk 
Operational risk is the risk of loss 
resulting from inadequate or failed 
internal processes, people and systems, 
or from external events. As in the case 
of other types of risks, operational risk 
is managed by applying the standard 
principle including the separation of 
functions in risk management and 
controlling. 
The Bank puts the accent on process 
quality improvement and operational 
risk mitigation actions. The essential 
assumption of set goals is based 
on operational risk awareness and 
operational risk bank culture.
The primary responsibility for the 
development and implementation of 

controls to address operational risk is 
assigned to senior management within 
each business unit. This responsibility is 
supported by the development of overall 
bank standards for the management of 
operational risk in the following areas:
●	 requirements for appropriate 

segregation of duties, including 
the independent authorization of 
transactions.

●	 requirements for the reconciliation and 
monitoring of transactions

●	 compliance with regulatory and other 
legal requirements

●	 documentation of controls and 
procedures

●	 requirements for the periodic 

assessment of operational risks 
faced, and the adequacy of controls 
and procedures to address the risks 
identified

●	 requirements for the reporting of 
operational losses and proposed 
remedial action

●	 development of contingency plans
●	 training and professional development
●	 ethical and business standards
●	 risk mitigation, including insurance 

where this is effective.
Compliance with bank standards is 
supported by a programme of periodic 
reviews undertaken by Internal Audit. 
The results of internal audit reviews 
are discussed with the management of 
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the business unit to which they relate, 
with summaries submitted to the Audit 
Committee and senior management of 
the bank.

F ● Other risks
Simultaneously, in terms of 
implementation of internal process of 
capital adequacy determination, the Bank 
monitors and develops quantification and 
management methods aimed at other 
risks, in particular:
●	 Strategic risk;
●	 Reputation risk; 
●	 Other risks factors.
Trust Bank has prepared itself to fulfil 
requirements subject to the capital 
adequacy with special emphasis on the 
fulfilment of local legislative requirements 
as per the Banking Act 2009 and other 
directives of the Central Bank of the 
Gambia.

G ● Capital management
Regulatory capital
The Central Bank of The Gambia sets and 
monitors capital requirements for the 
bank as a whole. 
In implementing current capital 
requirements, The Central Bank of The 

Gambia requires the bank to maintain a 
prescribed ratio of total capital to total 
risk weighted assets. The bank is also 
required to maintain a credible capital 
plan to ensure that capital level of the 
bank is maintained in consonance with 
the bank's risk appetite.
The Bank's regulatory capital is analyzed 
into two tiers:
●	 Tier 1 capital, which includes ordinary 

share capital, share premium, retained 
earnings, translation reserve and 
other regulatory adjustments relating 
to items that are included in equity 
but are treated differently for capital 
adequacy purposes.

●	 Tier 2 capital, which includes qualifying 
subordinated liabilities, and the 
elements of the fair value reserve 
relating to unrealised gains on equity 
instruments classified as available for 
sale.

Various limits are applied to elements 
of the capital base, qualifying tier 2 
capital cannot exceed tier 1 capital; and 
qualifying subordinated loan capital may 
not exceed 50 percent of tier one capital. 
Other deductions from capital include 
the carrying amounts of investments in 
subsidiaries that are not included in the 

regulatory consolidation, investments 
in the capital of banks and certain other 
regulatory items.
Risk weighted assets are determined 
according to specified requirements that 
seek to reflect the varying levels of risk 
attached to assets and off balance sheet 
exposures.
The bank's policy is to maintain a strong 
capital base so as to maintain investor, 
creditor and market confidence and 
to sustain future development of the 
business. The impact of the level of 
capital on shareholders' return is also 
recognised and the bank recognizes the 
need to maintain a balance between the 
higher returns that might be possible 
with greater gearing and the advantages 
and security afforded by a sound capital 
position.
The bank has complied with all externally 
imposed capital requirements throughout 
the period.
There has been no material change in the 
bank's management of capital during the 
period.
The bank's regulatory capital position at 
31 December was as follows:

2022 2021
D'000 D'000

Tier 1 capital
Ordinary share capital 200,000  200,000 
Statutory reserves 332,688 295,854 
Retained earnings 179,376  120,982 

Total tier 1 capital 712,064 616,836

Tier 2 capital
Equity Revaluation reserves (50%) 42,935 39,494 
Property Revaluation reserves (50%)	 192,701  192,701 

Total tier 2 capital 235,635  232,194 

Total regulatory capital 947,699 849,030 

Risk weighted assets
Investment bank 194,462  162,263 
Retail bank, corporate bank and treasury 5,428,456 3,667,831 

Total risk weighted assets 5,622,918 3,830,094 

Capital Ratios

Total regulatory capital expressed as a percentage of total risk weighted assets 17% 22%

Total tier 1 capital expressed as a percentage risk weighted assets 13% 16%
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Designated at 
FVPL

Designated at 
FVOCI   Amortised cost  Total carrying 

amount  Fair value 

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

31st December 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 2,801,255 - - 2,801,255     2,801,255 
Financial assets at amortised cost -       2,005,034 2,005,034 2,005,034 
Loans and advances - 4,468,270 4,468,270 4,468,270 
Investment in equity securities 194,462 194,462 194,462 

2,801,255 194,462 6,473,304 9,469,021 9,469,021 

Trading liabilities
Deposits from banks - - 4,015 4,015 4,015 
Deposits from customers -   - 9,120,509 9,120,509 9,120,509 

-   -   9,124,524 9,124,524 9,124,524

31st December 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 3,514,355 - - 3,514,355     3,514,355 
Financial assets at amortised cost -   -     3,009,963 3,009,963 3,009,963 
Loans and advances -   - 2,271,351 2,271,351 2,271,351 
Investment in securities - 172,581 - 172,581 172,581 

3,514,355 172,581 5,281,314 8,968,250 8,968,250

Trading liabilities
Deposits from banks - - 26,984 26,984 26,984 
Deposits from customers -   -   8,807,225 8,807,225 8,807,225 

-   -       8,834,209 8,834,209 8,834,209

Capital allocation
The allocation of capital between specific 
operations and activities is, to a large 
extent, driven by optimization of the 
return achieved on the capital allocated. 
The amount of capital allocated to each 
operation or activity is based primarily 
upon the regulatory capital, but in some 
cases the regulatory requirements do 
not reflect fully the varying degree of 
risk associated with different activities. 
In such cases the capital requirements 
may be flexed to reflect differing risk 
profiles, subject to the overall level of 
capital to support a particular operation 
or activity not falling below the minimum 

required for regulatory purposes. The 
process of allocating capital to specific 
operations and activities is undertaken 
independently of those responsible for 
the operation, by bank, and is subject to 
review by the bank's credit committee or 
ALCO as appropriate.
Although maximization of the return 
on risk adjusted capital is the principal 
basis used in determining how capital is 
allocated within the bank to particular 
operations or activities, it is not the 
sole basis used for decision making. 
Consideration also is made of the 
synergies with other operations and 
activities, the availability of management 

and other resources, and the capability 
of the activity with the bank's longer term 
strategic objectives. The bank's policies 
in respect of capital management and 
allocation are reviewed regularly by the 
Board of Directors.

H ● Financial assets and liabilities
Accounting classifications and fair 
values
The table below sets out the Bank's 
classification of each class of financial 
assets and liabilities, and their fair value 
(excluding accrued interest)
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Principal Risks  Narration Key Mitigating actions Commentary on current status

Credit Risk As a provider of credit facilities 
to customers, any adverse 
changes in the economy or 
market in which the Group 
operates, or the credit quality 
and behavior of borrowers 
would reduce the value of the 
Group's assets and increase 
the allowances for impairment 
losses, thereby impacting 
profitability.

Credit policies incorporate prudent lending 
guidelines, oversight board control on risk 
appetite

Through effective risk management, 
Non performing loans continue to be 
managed within acceptable levels.  NPL 
ratio  is currently at less than  1%. 

Liquidity Risk The primary objective of 
liquidity risk management is to 
provide a planning mechanism 
for unanticipated changes in the 
demand or needs for liquidity 
created by customer behavior 
or abnormal market conditions.

The ALCO committee emphasizes the 
maximization and preservation of customer 
deposits and other funding sources. ALCO 
monitors deposit rates, levels, trends and 
significant changes. Liquidity is managed 
on a short to medium term basis ensuring 
that cash flow demands can be met as and 
when required.

A substantial portion of the Bank's 
assets are funded by customer deposits 
widely diversified by type and maturity. 
Lending is fully funded by Deposits, 
usually in the same currency and a loan 
to deposit ratio of not more than 60% 
is maintained. The Bank also maintains 
significant levels of Treasury Bills with 
widely diversified maturity periods. 
These provide a large pool of primary 
assets to meet cash outflows. The Bank's 
liquidity ratio has, on average, remained 
above 40%.

Market Risk The Group faces a number 
of market risks including 
interest rate risk and foreign 
exchange risks. The Bank's 
exposure to market risk arises 
principally from customer driven 
transactions.

 Market Risk is managed by the Bank's 
Retail and Corporate units both of which 
are supervised by ALCO to ensure that all 
regulatory ratios are met.  

The Bank has throughout the year 
maintained an FX exposure position 
of ±15% to guard against adverse 
movements in FX rates. The ALCO 
committee has also maintained oversight 
over interest rate gaps by ensuring 
appropriate match between assets and 
liabilities.

Operational 
Risk

The Group faces a number of 
key operational risks including 
fraud losses and failings in 
customer processes. The 
availability, resilience and 
security of the core IT systems 
is the most significant.

Operational Risk is inherent in the Group's 
business activities and is managed 
through an overall framework designed to 
balance strong corporate oversight with 
independent risk management. The Bank  
continues to upgrade and secure all it's 
major IT platforms

The Bank  experienced losses as a 
result of failed internal processes during 
the year amounting to D2.261M. An 
amount of 0.943M has been  recovered 
whilst efforts to continue to recover the 
balance of D1.317M is ongoing.

Compliance 
and Regulatory 
Risk

This includes the Risk of non 
compliance with regulatory 
requirements. 

This risk is managed by the Group's 
Compliance Department. They are 
responsible for establishing and 
maintaining the appropriate framework of 
Compliance policies and procedures. The 
Bank has invested in FIRCOSOFT , FIRCO 
Due Diligence Softwares  and Dow Jones 
for improved KYC processes.

The Bank generally complied with 
regulatory requirements.

Capital 
Management

The Group's policy is to maintain 
a strong capital base so as to 
maintain investor and market 
confidence and sustain future 
development of the Business.

Capital Adequacy and the use of 
regulatory capital are monitored daily by 
management. The required information is 
filed with the Central Bank on a monthly 
basis. The Central Bank requires all banks 
to hold a minimum regulatory capital of 
D200 Million and maintain a ratio of total 
regulatory capital to risk weighted assets 
plus risk weighted off-balance sheet assets 
above a required minimum of 10%.

The Bank complied with the statutory 
capital requirements throughout the 
period. Share Capital was D200M 
throughout the year and the capital 
adequacy ratio was maintained at above 
the minimum ratio of  10%.

I ● Risk Overview
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5  Interest income and expense

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Cash and cash equivalents 9,875 8,560 9,926 8,560
Loans and advances to customers 507,813 272,304 493,584 267,621
Investment securities/Treasury Bills & Bonds 148,623 248,943 148,623 248,943

Total interest income 666,311 529,807 652,133 525,124

Interest and similar expenses for the year ended consist of:

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Deposits from customers (43,421) (84,130) (42,217) (83,553)
Interbank undertakings (3,035) - (3,035) - 

Total interest expense (46,456) (84,130) (45,252) (83,553)

Net interest income 619,855 445,677 606,881 441,571

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Banking customer fees 78,913 59,724 74,404 59,724
Credit related fees 62,333 38,841 62,333 38,841
Foreign currency related fees and commissions 26,863 15,396 26,863 10,899
Commission on trade finance transactions 44,345 39,509 44,345 18,313

Total fees and commission income 212,454 153,470 207,945 127,777

Fees and commission expense
Interbank transaction fees (12,410) (8,059) (12,410) (8,059)
Foreign currency related fees (91) (45) (91) (45)

Total fees and commission expense (12,501) (8,104) (12,501) (8,104)

Net fees and commission income 199,953 145,366 195,444 119,673

Interest and other similar income for the year ended consist of:

The total interest income calculated using the EIR method for financial assets measured amortised cost is D 493.5 M during the financial 
year 2022 (2021: 267.6M).  There was no  interest expense calculated using the EIR method for financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost for both current and prior year
Included within various captions under interest income for the year ended 31 December 2022 is a total of D2.2M (2021: D4.2M) accrued 
on impaired financial assets.
There is no component of interest income and expense reported above that relate to financial assets or liabilities carried at fair value 
through profit or loss.

6  Net fee and commission income

Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income can be summarised as follows:	
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7  Net trading income

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Foreign currency revaluation gain 20,930 21,036 20,930 21,036

Exchange gain 66,348 36,283 41,465 36,283

Net trading income 87,278 57,319 62,395 57,319

8  Other Operating income

Other income can be summarized as follows:
The Group The Bank

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Sundry Income 16,859 16,296 15,359 15,287
Ebanking related income 17,798 7,166 17,798 7,166
Profit on sale of fixed assets 839 3,364 839 3,364
Dividend received 4,964 - 4,964 -   
Rental income - 474 575 999
ATM related charges 4,723 2,581 4,723 2,581 

Total other income 45,183 29,881 44,258 29,397

Sundry income is derived from activities unrelated to the main focus of a business or our balance sheet items. It is a single general ledger line 
that mainly constitutes: Sale of cheque books; Visa statement fees; commission on clearance certificate etc
Rental Income is the part of the low value lease applicable to bank's premises  rented to other business including any amounts received for sub-
renting spaces

9  Personnel costs
Personnel costs can be summarized as follows:

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

Notes D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Salaries and allowances 158,918 138,809 139,994 128,438
Contributions to defined contribution plans 24,141 23,700 23,615 23,113
staff medical expenses 8,269 7,644 8,269 7,007
Other staff costs 9a 10,650 11,008 10,450 6,973
Staff Bonus 35,000 12,999 35,000 12,999
Staff Leave allowance 1,956 1,331 1,567 1,140
Cashiers efficiency allowance 2,600 2,605 2,600 2,605
Weekend duty allowance 5,011 4,534 5,011 4,534
Directors fees 5,800 5,174 5,179 4,760
Increase/(decrease) in liability for leave arrears 1,252 - 1,252 -   

Total personnel costs 253,597 207,804 232,937 191,569

The total number of employees as at 31 December 2022 was 396 of which 51 employees are directors and senior management of the Bank 
(2021: 369 and 46 respectively). Pursuant to The Gambian legal regulations, an employer is obliged to pay contributions to the Social Security 
and Housing Finance Corporation based on a percentage of basic salary. These expenses are charged to the income statement in the period in 
which the employee was entitled to salary.
The Bank contributes to a supplementary pension plan administered internally, based on the employment period of the employee. No liabilities 
arise to the Bank from the payment of pensions to employees in the future. Supplementary pension contribution expenses amounted to 
D7.391M as of 31 December 2022 (2021: D7.315M).
9a. relates to staff expenses that are not directly within the scope of payroll, such as fringe Benefit Tax 
paid during the year , staff over time expenses and injury compensation cost etc 
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10  Other expenses

Other expenses
General and administration expenses can be summarized as follows:

The Group The Bank
Notes 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Advert/publicity 11,064 6,313 7,992 5,995 
Corporate rebranding 13,085 - 13,085 -   
Audit fees 1,526 1,416 1,210 1,100 
Consultancy fees 658 813 658 813 
Electricity and water 16,493 14,211 15,213 13,163 
Insurance premium 12,694 10,429 12,145 10,133 
Legal and professional fees 462 3,454 462 2,622 
Losses and charge offs 10a 5,182 19,149 5,182 13,152 
Motor vehicle expenses 12,334 10,962 11,221 10,533 
National education levy 100 100 100 100 
Other office expenses 10c 9,180 9,337 7,843 8,507 
Postage and DHL 92 63 92 63 
Printing and stationery 22,766 15,395 21,893 14,847 
Rent and rates 4,677 4,366 3,185 3,020 
Repairs and maintenance property/equipment 27,683 26,145 25,983 23,680 
Security 8,960 6,660 8,235 5,988 
Software and Hardware maintenance 59,293 66,235 57,207 65,641 
Staff training 9,294 4,122 9,294 3,691 
Stock exchange expenses 401 730 401 730 
Subscriptions and donations 7,171 3,202 7,171 3,202 
Telephone/Telex/Swift 7,330 6,092 7,330 5,940 
CBG Penalties 10b - 100 - 100 
Trade license 6,158 5,610 6,158 5,508 
Travel cost 2,366 747 2,366 718 

Total general and admin expenses 238,969 215,651 224,426 199,246

10a. Provisions for General Losses reporting under note 25b are estimations of potential losses that the Bank may experience due to 
frauds and other losses. The provision is treated as an expense in the Group’s income statement as losses and charge offs and shown in 
note 10 while the credit entry goes to provision for general loses in the statement of financial position until time of full write off.
10b. During the year there was no CBG penalty levied for non regulatory compliance . However,  a penalty charge of D0.1M imposed in 
2021 for non compliance with the Central Bank of The Gambia straight through process payment system as further disclosed in note 31.
10c. This line captures small expenses that do not necessarily have any specific GL by virtue of their nature and office consumable /assets 
or supplies that do not meet the capilitisation threshold

11  Income taxes

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Income tax expense
Current tax expense 92,838 49,667 91,677 49,353
Overprovision in prior year - - - -   

92,838 49,667 91,677 49,353 
Deferred tax expense
Origination/reversal of temporary differences 5,321 (13,639) 5,321 (13,639)

Total income tax 98,159 36,028 96,998 35,714

Legal entities in the Gambia must individually report taxable income and remit corporate income taxes thereon to the appropriate 
authorities at higher of 1% on revenue or 27% on profit.
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Reconciliation of effect tax rate
The Group The Bank

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Profit before income tax 346,407 179,450 342,561 185,347 

Income tax using enacted corporation tax rate 93,530 48,452 92,491 50,044 
Non deductible expenses 19,564 16,576 18,900 15,912 
Capital Allowances (18,473) (15,362) (19,715) (15,604)
Differed tax 5,321 (13,638) 5,321 (13,638)

Total income tax expense in income statement 99,943 36,028 96,998 36,714 

Reconciliation of effective tax rate % % % %
Domestic tax rate 27 27 27 27 

Non deductible expenses 5.65 9.24 5.52 8.59 
Capital Allowances (5.33) (8.56) (5.76) (8.96)
Over provided in prior year - - - - 

Total income tax expense in income statement 27.33 27.69 26.76 26.63

Income tax liability
The Group The Bank

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,268 13,078 4,102 9,891 
Adjustment - - - - 
Current tax expense 92,838 49,667 91,677 49,353 
Tax paid during the year (91,547) (58,477) (90,000) (55,142)

Tax liability at the end of the year 5,559 4,268 5,779 4,102

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2021 and as of 31 December 2022 relate to the following items: 

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Opening balance (16,874) (3,235) (16,874) (3,235)
Charged to income (non current tangible assets) 5,321 (13,639) 5,321 (13,639)

Tax (asset) at the end of the year (11,553) (16,874) (11,553) (16,874)

12  Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share at 31 December 2022 was based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and a 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding as shown below::

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 248,248 149,586 245,563 149,633
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  200,000 200,000 200,000  200,000 

Earnings per ordinary share (dalasis) 1.24 0.75 1.23 0.75

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

48



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Profit attributable to ord. shareholders (diluted) 248,248 149,586 245,563 149,633
Weighted average no. of ord. shares (diluted)  200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

Earnings per ordinary share (dalasis) 1.24 0.75 1.23 0.75

13  Dividends by share

At the Annual General Meeting to be held in June 2023, a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of D0.30 (2021: 
D0.30) for every ordinary share will be proposed. An interim dividend of D0.45 (2021: D0.25) for every ordinary share was declared and 
paid during the year. This will bring the total dividend for the year to D0.75 (2021: D0.55).
Payment of dividends is subject to withholding tax at the rate of 15%.

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Balances with banks 943,592 1,744,701 932,639 1,694,869
Cash in hand-Local & Foreign 586,896 565,000 582,000 565,000
Unrestricted balances with the Central Bank 1,286,616 1,254,486 1,286,616 1,254,486 

Total cash and cash equivalents 2,817,104 3,564,187 2,801,255 3,514,355

The minimum obligatory reserve is maintained as a non interest bearing deposit under the regulations of the Central Bank of The 
Gambia. The amount of the reserve depends on the level of deposits accepted by the Bank. The Bank’s ability to withdraw below the 
minimium 13% average threshold of the reserve is not restricted by statutory legislation but will be subject to the payment of a penalty. 
The prevailing Cash Reserve Requirement rate as at 31st December 2022 is 13% of average deposits.

15  Financial Assets at amortised Cost

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Treasury Bills 888,240 2,086,578 869,490 2,086,578
Treasury Bonds 1,135,544 923,385 1,135,544 923,385

Total financial assets at Amortised Cost 2,023,784 3,009,963 2,005,034 3,009,963

Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share at 31 December 2022 was based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and 
a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares as 
shown below:

14  Cash and cash equivalents
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16  Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost

An analysis of loans and advances to customers is as follows:
The Group The Bank

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Loans 2,701,643 948,347 2,621,123 911,787
Overdrafts 1,863,106 1,301,937 1,863,106 1,301,937
Nawec Bond 53,606 89,344 53,606 89,344

Total loans and advances at amortised cost 4,618,355 2,339,628 4,537,835 2,303,068 
Less:
Stage 3 impairment (1,273) (1,077) (389) (376)
Stage 2 impairment (4,940) (609) (4,940) (459)
Stage 1 impairment (74,679) (41,175) (64,236) (30,882)

Total loans and advances 4,537,463 2,296,767 4,468,270 2,271,351

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Corporate Clients 3,232,849 1,612,148 3,176,485 1,612,148
Retail Clients 1,385,507 727,480 1,361,351 690,920

Total loans and advances 4,618,355 2,339,628 4,537,835 2,303,068

Allowance for impairment
The movement in stage 3 allowances for impairment is as follows:

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,077 10,954 376 3,388 
Impairment loss for the year
  Charge for the year (533) (17,096) (716) (10,231)
  Recoveries 7,239 12,237 7,239 12,237 
  Write offs (6,510) (5,018) (6,510) (5,018)

Balance at the end of the year 1,273 1,077 389 376

The movement in stage 1 & 2 allowances for impairment is as follows:
The Group The Bank

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 41,784 22,170 31,341 17,891
Impairment loss for the year
Charge for the year stage 2 5,090 6,120 5,090 6,120 
Charge for the year stage 1 32,745 13,494 32,745 7,330 

Balance at the end of the year 79,619 41,784 69,176 31,341 

Portfolio allowance for financial assets - (2,339) - (2,339)
Charge for stage 2 impairment

Total impairment charge 37,302 179 37,119 880 

Explanation of the term 12 months ECL , life time ECL and credit impaired are included in notes under impairment. 

An analysis of loans by customer group is as follows:
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17  Investment in subsidiaries

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

% of ordinary 
shares D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Bayba Financial Services Limited 100% - - 70,876 33,500 
Home Finance Company Gambia Ltd 60% - - - -   
Fair Value gain on Bayba  -   4,237 22,376 

As at 31 December - - 75,113 55,876 

Home Finance Company of the Gambia 
Limited (HFC), is a mortgage company 
in the Gambia that specializes in the 
provision of Home Purchase Loans. HFC 
was incorporated as a private limited 
liability company in 2001 and licensed 
by the Central Bank of the Gambia 
(CBG) as a non-bank financial institution 
specializing in mortgages.
At the extra ordinary general meeting of 
the Board of Directors of Home Finance 
Company on 20th October 2020, it was 
resolved that the company be put into 
voluntary liquidation. Pursuant to this 
resolution by the Shareholders and after 
approval of Central Bank of The Gambia, 
the company appointed a Liquidator 
(Donald C Kaye) and VOLUNTARY 
LIQUIDATION commenced at the close 
of business on Wednesday 3rd November 
2021.
Since inception of Home Finance, 
the company experienced a lot of 
constraints and was seen as unprofitable, 
Management were not able to offer 
any return on shareholders’ investment 

throughout and recorded significant 
financial and capital deficiencies. 
Consequently, the shareholders 
decided not to invest further capital in 
order to bring its unimpaired capital 
to the minimum of D 50 million being 
the minimum capital requirement of a 
Non-Bank Financial Institution (NBFI) as 
directed by the Regulator in September 
2019.
As a consequence of this Voluntary 
Liquidation, the shareholders of which 
Trust Bank had 60% shares, no longer 
substantially retained all risks and 
rewards and therefore not expected 
to recognize the asset. All rights, 
obligations, controls and rewards 
from the Liquidation are strictly that of 
Liquidator whose main responsibility is 
to secure and realize all the Company’s 
assets then meet all expenses of 
the liquidation, pay all creditors and 
thereafter distribute residual funds to 
Shareholders.
According to the liquidator’s report, the 
net liquidation proceeds to Trust Bank is 

expected to exceed the carrying amount 
of the net assets and accordingly a fair 
value gain of D2.3M has been recognized 
as per the summary below. At as end 
year 2022 the bank has received an 
accumulated amount of D12.2M and a 
further D2.077M was received by April 
2023. Overall, the bank has received the 
entire expected D14.3M as at April 2023.

D,000

Cash and Bank 5,831
Investments-Treasury Bills 3,978
Fixed assest 575
Loans 17,700
Staff Debtors 360

Realizable value of assets 28,444

Payables (4,449)
Net Assets 23,995
TBL share of the net assets 
60%

14,397

Carrying amount of the 
investment

12,058

Fair Value gain 2,339

18  a Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

% of ordinary 
shares D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

International Bank of Liberia 12.97% 106,675 93,925 106,675 93,925
Gamswitch Co 5% 3,642 2,906 3,642 2,906
Enterprise Life Assurance Co 19% 9,032 19,874 9,032 19,874

As at 31 December 119,349 116,705 119,349 116,705

International Bank 
of Liberia Gamswitch Co Enterprise Life 

Assurance Co
D'000 D'000 D'000

Opening Balance 93,925 2,906 19,874
Fair Value Gain 12,750 736 (10,842)

As at 31 December 106,675 3,642 9,032

A professional valuer,Talent Factory Africa Limited in February 2023 revalued the bank's Equity investments on a Price Earning (P/E) and 
Price to Book ratio basis. The resulting surplus of D2.6M was recogmised in OCI and an impairment reversal of nil (2021:D0.877) was 
recognised in the Income Statement	
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Please refer to 
the table below for sensitivity analysis done on the investments .
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Financial assets/ 
financial liabilities

Valuation technique(s) and key 
input(s)

Significant unobservable  
input(s)

Relationship and sensitivity of 
unobservable inputs to fair value 

Investments in 
unlisted shares  
(note 18) 

Income approach – in this 
approach, the discounted 
cash flow method was used to 
capture the present value of 
the expected future economic 
benefits to be derived from the 
ownership of these investees.

long term revenue growth taking 
into account management’s 
experience and knowledge of 
market conditions of the specific 
industries, ranging from 2 to 5  
per cent 

The higher the revenue growth rate, 
the higher the fair value. If the revenue 
growth was  3.5 per cent higher/lower 
while all other variables were held 
constant, the carrying amount would 
increase/decrease by D6.8.M

Long-term pre-tax operating margin 
taking into account management’s 
experience and knowledge of 
market conditions of the specific 
industries, ranging from 3 to  9   
per cent

The higher the pre-tax operating margin, 
the higher the fair value. If the pre-tax 
operating margin was 6.0 per cent 
higher/lower while all other variables 
were held constant, the carrying amount 
would increase/ decrease by D11 M 

Weighted average cost of capital, 
determined using a Capital Asset 
Pricing Model, ranging from 7 to 16 
per cent 

The higher the weighted average cost 
of capital, the lower the fair value. If the 
weighted average cost of capital was   
12.1 per cent higher/lower while all other 
variables were held constant, the carrying 
amount would decrease/ increase by 
 D 23M 

Discount for lack of marketability, 
determined by reference to the 
share price of listed entities in 
similar industries, ranging from 5 
to 10 per cent 

The higher the discount, the lower the 
fair value If the discount was 5 per cent 
higher/ lower while all other variables 
were held constant, the carrying amount 
would decrease/increase by D9.7M

18  b �Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following 
table gives information about the valuation technique(s) , inputs used and sensitivity analysis.

19  Right of Use assets

Leasing
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000

Finance costs
Interest expense on lease liabilities 342 308 

Total finance costs 342 308 

Depreciation Charge
Depreciation of right-of-use-assets 1,082 1,364 

Total depreciation and amortisation expense 1,082 1,364
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Right-of-use assets
The Bank leases several assets which includes buildings for commercial and residential purposes. 
The average lease term is 5 years (2021: 5 years).

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000

At 1 January 7,608 7,608 
Additions - - 
Terminated contracts - - 

As at 31 December 7,608 7,608 

Depreciation Charge
At 1 January 2,381 1,017 
Charge for the period 1,082 1,364 

As at 31 December 3,463 2,381 

Carrying amount  
Opening NBV 5,227 6,591 

Closing NBV 4,145 5,227 

There was no expired lease contract in the current year 

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets  1,082  1,364 
Income from subleasing right-of-use assets  -  - 

As at 31 December  1,082  1,364 

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000

Lease Liability
At 1 January 2,791 
Addition during the year 3,099 - 
Interest expense for the period 342 308 
Payment during the year - - 

As at 31 December 3,441 3,099

Lease Liability
Lease prepaid for the Period -  1,050 

Total cash outflows as at 31 December -  1,050 

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000

Maturity Analysis of lease liability
Not more than one year
Over one year but less than five years 3,441 3,099
More than five years

3,441 3,099
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 The Group  
 and The Bank

Work in 
Progress

Land and 
buildings

Furniture & 
Fittings

Machines & 
equipment

Motor  
vehicles

Total 
The Bank

Total 
The Group

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

At 01-Jan-21 14,530 558,201 89,497 349,605 28,342 1,040,175 1,069,140 
Additions 25,604 - 0 0 5,850 31,454 36,375 
Transfers (33,548) - 12,700 20,848  -  -  -
Revaluation  - 151,185 -  -  - 151,185 151,185 
Disposal/write offs (4,231) - (2,783) (3,355) (3,588) (13,957) (22,106)
Reclassification  - (4,242) (4,242) (4,242)

At 31-Dec-21 2,355 709,386 99,414 367,098 26,362 1,204,615 1,230,352 
Additions 65,265 - -  - 14,752 80,017 84,360 
Transfers (40,731) 215 8,651 31,865  -  -  -
Disposal  -  - (27,946) (102,193) (8,415) (138,554) (138,554)

At 31-Dec-22 26,889 709,601 80,119 296,770 32,699 1,146,078 1,176,158 

Depreciation
At 01-Jan-21  - (55,690) (70,953) (288,743) (19,792) (435,178) (446,294)
Depreciation expense - (9,776) (8,594) (26,864) (5,173) (50,407) (54,389)
Revaluation  - 52,127  -  -  - 52,127 52,127 
Disposal/write offs  -  - 2,232 2,652 1,794 6,678 8,426 
Reclassification  -  - 4,242 4,242 4,242 

At 31-Dec-21  - (13,339) (77,315) (312,955) (18,929) (422,538)  (435,888)
Depreciation expense (12,258) (8,792) (24,385) (8,713) (54,148) (57,493)
Disposal  - 27,334 102,013 8,415 137,762 137,762 

At 31-Dec-22  - (25,597) (58,773) (235,327) (19,227) (338,924)  (355,619)

Carrying amount
At 31-Dec-21 2,355 696,047 22,099 54,143 7,433 782,077 794,464 

At 31-Dec-22 26,889 684,004 21,346 61,443 13,472 807,154 820,539

20  a Property, plant and equipment

A professional valuer, Francis Thomas Jones Associates,  in 2021 revalued the bank's freehold and leasehold properties on an open 
market basis. The resulting surplus of D202M Million which is comprised of the adjustments of D151.2M and D52.2M shown above was 
transferred to a revaluation reserve account as shown in the statement of financial position. 
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21  Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
The Group The Bank

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Property, plant, equipment and software (11,552) (16,873)  (11,552) (16,873)

Net tax (assets)/liabilities (11,552) (16,873)  (11,552) (16,873)

Movements during the year

2022 Opening Recognised 
 in P/L

Recognised  
in equity Closing

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Property, plant, equipment and software (16,873)  5,321  - (11,552)

(16,873)  5,321  - (11,552

Movements during the year

2021 Opening Recognised 
 in P/L

Recognised  
in equity Closing

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Property, plant, equipment and software (3,235) (13,548)  - (16,783)

(3,235) (13,548)  - (16,783)

20  b Intangible assets

The Group and The Bank Purchased  
software

Total  
The Bank

Total  
The Group

D'000 D'000 D'000

At 01-Jan-21 306,480 306,480 307,092 
Additions 18,526 18,526 23,273 

At 31-Dec-21 325,006 325,006 330,365 
Additions 5,541 5,541 5,541 
Write offs (38,270) (38,270) (38,270)

At 31-Dec-22 292,277 292,277 297,636 

Accumulated amortisation
At 01-Jan-21 (248,259) (248,259) (248,788)
Amortisation expense (19,147) (19,147) (19,406)

At 31-Dec-21 (267,406) (267,406) (268,194)
Amortisation expense (16,363) (16,363) (17,077)
Write offs 34,075 34,075 34,075 

At 31-Dec-22 (249,694) (249,694) (251,196)

Carrying amount
At 31-Dec-21 57,600 57,600 62,171 

At 31-Dec-22 42,583 42,583 46,440

Intangible assets represent licences for computer software.
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23  Deposits from banks

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Money market deposits 4,015  26,984 4,015  26,984 

Total deposits from banks 4,015  26,984 4,015  26,984 

24  Deposits from customers
Deposits from customers by product group are as follows:

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Time deposits 268,625 243,099 212,657 243,099
Current accounts 2,713,478 2,713,519 2,713,478 2,713,519
Savings accounts 6,194,374 5,890,393 6,194,374 5,850,607

Total deposits from customers 9,176,477 8,847,011  9,120,509 8,807,225

The amounts shown as deposits above are all current. The Bank does not hold deposits to be settled after 12 months.

22  Other assets

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Bills discounted - 54,682  - 54,682
Prepayments 38,451 29,954 36,481 29,954
MTO clearing 25,246 44,160 3,599 1,200 
Stationery Stock 12,209 16,316 12,209 16,316
Travelex receivable - 53,469  - 53,469 
Assets on order 1,467 1,574 1,467 1,574
Unpaid shares 1,739 12,364 1,739 12,364
Lease Vehicle 24,845 24,645 24,845 24,645 
Bond premium - 13,000  - 13,000 
Receivable from HFC liquidator 2,077 14,397 2,077 14,397 
Others 957 9,672 1,899 10,159

106,991 274,233 84,316 231,760

22a Other as used in this section, includes insignificant balance sheet asset accounts not covered specifically in other areas of 
the FS, for example receivables other than loans and Overdrafts that are fully provided but not yet written off. Individually, these 
accountsareinsignificant in the overall financial condition of the Bank. 
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25  Other liabilities

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

Notes D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Accounts payable 25a 31,746 32,749 31,746 27,513
Provision for general losses 25b 10,479 13,194 10,479 13,194
Provision for staff bonus 26,873 13,019 26,873 13,019
Building loan suspense 25c 519 719 519 719 
Dividend payable 9,041 15,442 9,041 15,442
Due to MTO Partners 25d  14,266  33,532 -    -   
Other creditors and accruals 4,244 5,231 4,244 5,231
Due to other Banks  -    47,063 -    47,063 
Accrued expenses 25e 7,002 6,769 7,002 6,769

Other liabilities  104,170  167,718 89,904  128,950

Included in Accounts Payable reporting 
under 25a is Unclaimed Funds of 
D26M that do not meet the statutory 
requirement of the CBG guideline on 
Unclaimed Funds to be transferred to 
Deposit Insurance Scheme but mainly 
inflows with wrong details after Bank 
queries were sent for further clarifications 
without any response from the remitting 
correspondent Bank and thus kept aside 
in a separate suspense account for 
tracking purpose until it is transferred to 
the CBG.
25b Provisions for General Losses 
reporting under note 25b are estimations 
of potential losses that the Bank may 
experience due to frauds. The provision 

is treated as an expense in the Group’s 
income statement as losses and charge 
offs and shown in note 10 while the credit 
entry goes to provision for general loses 
in the statement of financial position until 
time of full write off.
25c Included in the Staff building 
suspense reporting under note 25c are 
building loans granted to staff but not 
yet fully disbursed. The undisbursed 
part of the loans goes to this account if 
the property is not an outright purchase 
but for building a new property or 
completing property that that has 
not reached the certification level for 
further disbursement. The certification 
payment is done based on the advice 

of recognized and certified property 
appraisers. 
25d Due from MTO partners are 
remittances paid on behalf of our 
Money Transfer Partners with pending 
reimbursements based on the contractual 
terms as shown in note 25d.
25e The Group records revenue 
and expense when they are earned 
regardless of when the money is received 
or paid. As such, Accrued expenses 
reporting under 25e includes services 
that are provided to the Group by 
suppliers, recorded in the books but there 
was no actual cash payment based on the 
terms of the agreement. 

26  Statement of changes in equity

Share capital
The Group The Bank

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

On issue at 1 January 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Exercise of options  -    -    -    -   

On issue at 31 December  200,000  200,000 200,000 200,000

Share capital consists of 200 Million 
ordinary shares with a par value of D1 
each (2021: 200M ordinary shares of D1 
each). The structure of shareholders is 
included in the “General Information” 
section.

Description of rights:
Each holder of the equity share is the 
Company's shareholder. Each shareholder 
enjoys its fundamental shareholder rights 
resulting from the Bank’s Articles, namely:
•	 The right to share in the Company's 

profit (dividend), based on the 
proportion of total face value of their 

shares to the total face value of all 
shareholders;

●	 The right to attend the General 
Meeting, vote at the General Meeting, 
ask for information thereon and 
explanations regarding the Company's 
issues and/or issues concerning the 
controlled entities and related to the 
agenda of the General Meeting, make 
motions at the General Meeting; 

●	 The right to share in the liquidation 
balance. 

Each holder of preferred shares enjoys 
similar rights; the only difference is that 

the preferred shares are not equipped 
with the right of voting at a General 
Meeting, except for cases for which 
the law assigns voting power to such 
shares. Preferred shares are assigned a 
preferential right applicable to dividends, 
i.e. if the Company generates minimum 
net profit equal to the number of issued 
preferred shares, a minimum dividend of 
D1 per preferred share will be paid to the 
preferred shares holders.
Equity shares are publicly traded on the 
securities market, while preferred shares 
are non-publicly traded.
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Income surplus

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

At 1 January 153,644 131,807 120,982 95,501 
Profit for the year 248,248 143,422 245,563 149,633 
Transfer to other reserves - - (335) (1,707)
Transfer to statutory reserve (36,834) (21,619) (36,834) (22,445)
Post acquisition NCI - - 
Dividends paid (99,966) (150,000) (100,000)  (80,000)

Balance at 31 December 215,109 153,644 179,376 120,982

Statutory reserves
This represents amounts set aside as a non-distributable reserve from annual profits in accordance with Section 19 of the Banking Act 
2009, Guideline 3.

Credit risk reserve
Credit risk reserve represents the amount required to meet the Central Bank of The Gambia guidelines for allowances on impairment. 
This is not distributable and represents the excess of loan provisions computed in accordance with the Central Bank of The Gambia 
prudential guidelines over the impairment of loans and advances arrived at in accordance with IFRS 9.

Reconciliation between IFRS 9 and the Prudential Guidelines

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Opening balance - 0 10,203 8496
Provisions as per Prudential guidelines 70,214 33,738 69,900 33,424 
Provisions as per IFRS 9 (70,020) (32,172) (69,565) (31,717)

194 1,566 10,538 10,203

Revaluation reserve
A professional valuer, Francis Thomas Jones Associates, in 2021 revalued the bank's freehold and leasehold properties on an open 
market basis. The amount shown in these financial statements is the difference between the open market value and the book value.

Equity revaluation reserve
The Group's equity investments are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The reserve account shows the difference 
between the book value and the fair value as at the reporting period.

Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid by the Group for the year ended 31 December:

2022 2021
D'000 D'000

D0.45 per ordinary share (2021: D0.30) 90,000 60,000

90,000 60,000

After 31 December 2022, the following dividends were proposed by the directors in respect of  
2022. The dividends have not been provided for and there are no income tax consequences.

2022 2021
D'000 D'000

D0.30 per ordinary share (2021: D0.25) 60,000 50,000

60,000 50,000
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27  Off-balance sheet contingencies and commitments
In the ordinary course of business, the bank conducts business involving guarantees, acceptances and performance bonds. These 
facilities are offset by corresponding obligations of third parties. At the year end, the contingencies were as follows:
	

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Bonds and guarantees 251,579 37,703 251,579 37,703
Letters of credit, acceptances and other documentary credits 415,061 661,388 415,061 661,388

666,640 699,091 666,640 699,091

Derivatives/Commitments
The bank does not engage in any derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures for any purpose.

Nature of contingent liabilities
Guarantees are generally written by a bank to support performance by a customer to third parties. The bank will only be required to meet 
these obligations in the event of the customer's default.
Letters of credit commit the bank to make payments to third parties, on production of documents, which are subsequently reimbursed by 
customers.
An acceptance is an undertaking by a bank to pay a bill of exchange drawn on a customer. The bank expects most acceptances to be 
presented and reimbursement by the customer is almost immediate.

28  Other contingencies
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank is subject to legal actions and complaints. Based on legal advice, the Directors do not expect 
the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints to have a material effect on the financial situation or the results of the 
future operations of the Bank.

29  Significant subsidiaries

Country of 
incorporation Ownership interest

2022 2021

Bayba Financial Services Limited The Gambia 100% 100%

Bayba Financial Services Ltd operates accounts with the bank. Interest accrues on these accounts and placements are at normal 
commercial rates.

30  Related parties

Loans and Advances to Directors
Directors and their immediate relatives have transacted loans with the bank during the period as follows:

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Gross amount at 1 January 1,026 1,026 1,229 754 
Interest charged 216 52 195 31 
Loan disbursed 6,989 1,489 6,600 1,100 
Cash received (419) (803) (272) (656)
Net movement in overdraft balances - - -  (314)

Net amount at 31 December 7,812 1,764 7,752 1,229

For Directors and companies in which they have equity in, interest rates charged on balances outstanding are the same as that which 
would be charged in an arm's length transaction. However, interest has been suspended for non performing accounts amounting to Nil 
(2021: Nil).
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Impairment losses of nil have been recorded against balances outstanding from Directors (2021: Nil).
Included within loans and advances as at 31st December 2022 is Nil (2021: Nil) due from our subsidiaries. Interest and charges received 
on advances granted during the year amounted to nil (2021: 0.461M).
Included in deposits as at 31st December 2022 is D15.596Million (2021: D21.3 Million) due to our subsidiary company. Interest paid on 
these deposits during the year amounted to nil (2021: D0.462 Million)..

Loans and advances to employees
The Group The Bank

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Balance at 1 January 19,399 45,266 17,782 43,649 
Loans advanced during the year 58,101 25,794 54,482 22,175 
Loan repayments received (6,979) (49,837) (5,184) (48,042)

Balance at 31 December 70,521 21,223 67,080 17,782

For Senior Management and all other staff, interest rates charged on balances outstanding are a third of the rates that would be charged 
in an arm's length transaction.
Impairment losses of D0.826 Million have been recorded against balances outstanding from Staff (2021: D0.389Million)
Key management personnel compensation for the period comprised:

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Directors board fees 3,873 3,541 3,438 3,127 
Directors sitting fees 1,872 1,634 1,742 1,634 
Senior Management salaries 13,103 11,374 9,598 8,425 
Senior Management pension contributions 2,561 1,961 2,376 1,862 

21,409 18,510 17,154 15,048

31  Penalties

There was no penalty charge of Nil imposed by The Central Bank of The Gambia for non compliance with the CBG guidelines
The Bank has no events after the financial position date which would materially impact on its financial position or results.

32  Events after statement of financial position date
The Bank has no events after the financial position date which would materially impact on its financial position or results.
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33  New standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective

New and amended standards and 
interpretations
1) Classification of Liabilities as Current 
or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1)
Effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2023. 
Key requirements 
In January 2020, the Board issued 
amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of 
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 
to specify the requirements for classifying 
liabilities as current or non-current. The 
amendments clarify: 
● 	What is meant by a right to defer 

settlement 
● 	That a right to defer must exist at the 

end of the reporting period 
● 	That classification is unaffected by the 

likelihood that an entity will exercise its 
deferral right 

● 	That only if an embedded derivative in 
a convertible liability is itself an equity 
instrument, would the terms of a liability 
not impact its classification.

Right to defer settlement 
The Board decided that if an entity’s right 
to defer settlement of a liability is subject 
to the entity complying with specified 
conditions, the entity has a right to defer 
settlement of the liability at the end of the 
reporting period if it complies with those 
conditions at that date. 
Existence at the end of the reporting 
period 
The amendments also clarify that the 
requirement for the right to exist at the end 
of the reporting period applies regardless 
of whether the lender tests for compliance 
at that date or at a later date. 
Management expectations 
IAS 1.75A has been added to clarify that the 
‘classification of a liability is unaffected by 
the likelihood that the entity will exercise 
its right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period’. That is, management’s 
intention to settle in the short run does 
not impact the classification. This applies 
even if settlement has occurred when the 
financial statements are authorised for 
issuance
Meaning of the term ‘settlement’ 
The Board added two new paragraphs 
(paragraphs 76A and 76B) to IAS 1 to clarify 
what is meant by ‘settlement’ of a liability. 
The Board concluded that it was important 
to link the settlement of the liability with 
the outflow of resources of the entity. 
Settlement by way of an entity’s own equity 
instruments is considered settlement for 
the purpose of classification of liabilities as 

current or non-current, with one exception
Transition and impact 
Many entities will find themselves already 
in compliance with the amendments. 
However, entities need to consider 
whether some of the amendments may 
impact their current practice. Entities 
need to carefully consider whether there 
are any aspects of the amendments that 
suggest that terms of their existing loan 
agreements should be renegotiated. In 
this context, it is important to highlight 
that the amendments must be applied 
retrospectively
Proposed amendments 
In November 2021, the Board published 
an exposure draft in which it proposed 
that if a right to defer settlement for 
at least twelve months is subject to an 
entity complying with conditions after 
the reporting date, those conditions 
do not affect whether the right to 
defer settlement exists at the reporting 
date for the purpose of classifying 
a liability as current or non-current. 
Additional presentation and disclosure 
requirements would be applicable in 
such circumstances, including presenting 
non-current liabilities that are subject 
to covenants to be complied with within 
twelve months after the reporting period, 
separately in the statement of financial 
position. 
Furthermore, the Board proposed to defer 
the effective date to no earlier than 1 
January 2024 (from 1 January 2023).
2) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - 
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice 
Statement 2 
Effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2023. 
Key requirements 
In February 2021, the Board issued 
amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice 
Statement 2 Making Materiality 
Judgments (the PS), in which it provides 
guidance and examples to help entities 
apply materiality judgments to accounting 
policy disclosures. 
The amendments aim to help entities 
provide accounting policy disclosures that 
are more useful by: 
Replacing the requirement for entities 
to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting 
policies with a requirement to disclose 
their ‘material’ accounting policies and;
Adding guidance on how entities apply the 
concept of materiality in making decisions 
about accounting policy disclosures 
Replacement of the term ‘significant’ 
with ‘material’ 
In the absence of a definition of the term 

‘significant’ in IFRS, the Board decided to 
replace it with ‘material’ in the context of 
disclosing accounting policy information. 
‘Material’ is a defined term in IFRS and 
is widely understood by the users of 
financial statements, according to the 
Board. 
In assessing the materiality of accounting 
policy information, entities need to 
consider both the size of the transactions, 
other events or conditions and the nature 
of them. Examples of circumstances 
in which an entity is likely to consider 
accounting policy information to be 
material have been added.
Disclosure of standardized information 
Although standardized information is 
less useful to users than entity-specific 
accounting policy information, the Board 
agreed that, in some circumstances, 
standardized accounting policy 
information may be needed for users to 
understand other material information 
in the financial statements. In those 
situations, standardized accounting policy 
information is material, and should be 
disclosed. The amendments to the PS 
also provide examples of situations when 
generic or standardized information 
summarizing or duplicating the 
requirements of IFRS may be considered 
material accounting policy information
Transition 
Earlier application of the amendments 
to IAS 1 is permitted as long as this fact 
is disclosed. Since the amendments to 
the PS provide non-mandatory guidance 
on the application of the definition of 
material to accounting policy information, 
the Board concluded that transition 
requirements and an effective date for 
these amendments were not necessary
Impact 
The amendments may impact the 
accounting policy disclosures of entities. 
Determining whether accounting 
policies are material or not requires 
use of judgment. Therefore, entities are 
encouraged to revisit their accounting 
policy information disclosures to ensure 
consistency with the amended standard. 
Entities should carefully consider whether 
’standardized information, or information 
that only duplicates or summarizes the 
requirements of the IFRSs’ is material 
information and, if not, whether it should 
be removed from the accounting policy 
disclosures to enhance the usefulness of 
the financial statements
3) Definition of Accounting Estimates - 
Amendments to IAS 8 
Effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2023. 
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Key requirements 
In February 2021, the Board issued 
amendments to IAS 8, in which it 
introduces a new definition of ‘accounting 
estimates’. The amendments clarify the 
distinction between changes in accounting 
estimates and changes in accounting 
policies and the correction of errors. Also, 
they clarify how entities use measurement 
techniques and inputs to develop 
accounting estimates. 
Changes in accounting estimates 
The amended standard clarifies that 
the effects on an accounting estimate 
of a change in an input or a change in a 
measurement technique are changes in 
accounting estimates if they do not result 
from the correction of prior period errors. 
The previous definition of a change 
in accounting estimate specified that 
changes in accounting estimates may 
result from new information or new 
developments. Therefore, such changes 
are not corrections of errors. This aspect 
of the definition was retained by the 
Board. 
Transition 
The amendments apply to changes 
in accounting policies and changes in 
accounting estimates that occur on or 
after the start of the effective date. Earlier 
application is permitted. 
Impact 
The amendments are intended to provide 
preparers of financial statements with 
greater clarity as to the definition of 

accounting estimates, particularly in terms 
of the difference between accounting 
estimates and accounting policies. 
Although the amendments are not 
expected to have a material impact on 
entities’ financial statements, they should 
provide helpful guidance for entities in 
determining whether changes are to be 
treated as changes in estimates, changes 
in policies, or errors.
4) Deferred Tax related to Assets 
and Liabilities arising from a Single 
Transaction - Amendments to IAS 12 
Effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2023. 
Key requirements 
In May 2021, the Board issued 
amendments to IAS 12, which narrow the 
scope of the initial recognition exception 
under IAS 12, so that it no longer applies to 
transactions that give rise to equal taxable 
and deductible temporary differences. 
Determining the tax base of assets and 
liabilities 
The amendments clarify that where 
payments that settle a liability are 
deductible for tax purposes, it is a 
matter of judgment (having considered 
the applicable tax law) whether such 
deductions are attributable for tax 
purposes to the liability recognized in the 
financial statements (and interest expense) 
or to the related asset component (and 
interest expense). This judgment is 
important in determining whether any 
temporary differences exist on initial 

recognition of the asset and liability.
Changes to the initial recognition 
exception 
Under the amendments, the initial 
recognition exception does not apply to 
transactions that, on initial recognition, 
give rise to equal taxable and deductible 
temporary differences. It only applies if 
the recognition of a lease asset and lease 
liability (or decommissioning liability and 
decommissioning asset component) give 
rise to taxable and deductible temporary 
differences that are not equal
Nevertheless, it is possible that the 
resulting deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are not equal (e.g., if the entity is unable 
to benefit from the tax deductions or if 
different tax rates apply to the taxable 
and deductible temporary differences). In 
such cases, which the Board expects to 
occur infrequently, an entity would need 
to account for the difference between the 
deferred tax asset and liability in profit or 
loss. 
Transition 
An entity should apply the amendments 
to transactions that occur on or after the 
beginning of the earliest comparative 
period presented. In addition, at the 
beginning of the earliest comparative 
period presented, it should also recognize 
a deferred tax asset (provided that 
sufficient taxable profit is available) and a 
deferred tax liability for all deductible and 
taxable temporary differences associated 
with leases and decommissioning 
obligations.
	

34  Value Added Statement for the year ended 31 December 2022

The Group The Bank
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

D'000 D'000 D'000 D'000

Interest earned and other operating income 966,043 740,596 922,473 710,220 
Direct cost of services (59,299) (92,234) (58,095) (91,657)

Value added by banking services 906,744 648,362 864,378 618,563 
Non banking income 45,183 29,881 44,258 29,397 
Impairment (loss)/gains (37,302)  (179) (37,119)  (880)

Value added 914,625 678,064 871,517 647,080 

Distributed as follows:
To employees:
  Directors (without executives) 5,800 5,174 5,179 4,760
  Executive Management 15,664 13,335 11,974 10,287 
  Other Employees 232,133 189,295 215,784 176,522
To Government:
  Income Tax 92,838 49,667 91,677 49,353 
To providers of capital:
  Dividends to Shareholders 149,949 99,966 150,000 100,000 
To expansion and growth:
  Depreciation and amortisation 74,570 73,795 70,511 69,554 
  Retained earnings 215,109 153,644 179,376 120,982
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Name No of Shares % Holding

Social Security & Housing Finance Corp.  73,969,253 36.985%
Databank  44,240,000 22.120%
Trust Bank Employee  15,576,486 7.788%
Ventures & Acquisitions Ltd.  11,790,073 5.895%
Gambia Ports Authority  11,156,507 5.578%
Gambia Electrical Company  4,600,000 2.300%
Afedo Moses Kwasi Mr  3,013,800 1.507%
DSL Trading Portfolio  2,238,867 1.119%
Hobieka Charbel  1,420,000 0.710%
Njie Pa M.M.  1,250,000 0.625%
Bendavia Travel Agency Ltd  1,000,000 0.500%
Sarge Ardy  849,000 0.424%
Aziz Micheal A  833,333 0.417%
Banna Antione  833,333 0.417%
Rajwani Nandkishore  833,333 0.417%
Sillah Njundu  806,667 0.403%
West African Examination Council  700,000 0.350%
Saho Dodou K  696,667 0.348%
Quantum Net Ltd  666,667 0.333%
TAF Holding Co Ltd  666,667 0.333%
Others  22,859,347 11.430%

 200,000,000 

Top Twenty Shareholders

Shareholding Structure

Category No of shareholders No of issued shares % holding

Over 500,000 22 178,277,452 89.1%
100,001-500,000 68 11,669,346 5.8%
50,001-100,000 64 4,459,907 2.2%
10,001-50,000 173 4,288,876 2.1%
5,001-10,000 76 521,687 0.3%
1-5,000 646 782,732 0.4%
Total 1,049 200,000,000 100.0%
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Where to Find Us

BARRA
Barra (North Bank Region)
Tel: 5710408
Fax: 5710407

BASSE
Basse (Upper River Region)
Tel: 5668907
Fax: 5668318

BRIKAMA
BRIKAMA (Western Region)
Tel: 4483418
Fax: 4483439

BRUSUBI
Coastal Road
Opposite Africmed Clinic
Tel: 8807474/8200984

BUNDUNG
Bundung Highway
Tel: 4379313
Fax: 4379314

FARAFENNI
Farafenni  
(North Bank Division)
Tel: 5735238
Fax: 5735007 

KOLOLI
Badala Highway
Tel: 4465303
Fax: 4465304

LAMIN
Lamin Highway
Tel: 4474091
Fax: 4474062

LATRIKUNDA SABIJI
Serrekunda
Tel: 4391780
Fax: 4398524

SERREKUNDA
Mosque Road
Tel: 4399540
Fax: 4399541

AIRPORT
Banjul International Airport
Yundum
Tel: 4472915
Fax: 4472916

BAKAU
Sait Matty Road
Bakau, Cape St. Mary
Tel: 4495486/4494542
Fax: 4496229

BAKOTEH
Tipper Garage
Bakoteh
Tel: 4466378
Fax: 4466373

BANJUL
3 / 4 Ecowas Avenue
P. O. Box 1018, Banjul
Tel: 4225777/8/9
Fax: 4225781

HEAD OFFICE 
3/4 Ecowas Avenue, PO Box 1018, Banjul 
Tel: 220-4225777/8/9  Fax: 220-4225781

SERREKUNDA
Saho Kunda
Tel: 4374076
Fax: 4374075

SINCHU
Opposite Old Yundum  
Police Station
Tel: 8907058
Fax: 8200998

SOMA
Soma (Lower River Region)
Tel: 5531629
Fax: 5531636

WESTFIELD
Westfield Junction
Tel: 4398042/4390156
Fax: 4398039
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LONDON LONDON ACCRA

BANK OF BEIRUT 
LONDON, UK  
17A CURZON STREET
LONDON W1J 5HS
UNITED KINGDOM

GHANA INTERNATIONAL 
BANK   
67 CHEAPSIDE, 
REGINA HOUSE        
LONDON EC2V 6AV        

GHANA COMMERCIAL 
BANK
ACCRA HIGH STREET    
P.O. BOX 2971            
ACCRA, GHANA        

BIC:    BRBAGB2L     BIC:    GHIBGB2L BIC:    GHCBGHAC

MILAN STOCKHOLM CHINA

UNICREDIT ITALIANO       
INT'L CORRESPONDING        
BANKING, VIALE            
BODIO 29, 
B3 MILAN, ITALY    

SKANDINAVISKA 
ENSKLIDA BANKEN,
S-106 40, 
STOCKHOLM

ZHEJIANG CHOUZHOU 
COMMERCIAL BAK
EAST SIDE YIWU PARADISE PARK, 
JIANGBIN ROAD YIWU, 
322000 CHINA

BIC:    UNCRITMM BIC:    ESSESESS BIC:    CZCBCN2X

DAKAR CAIRO ISTANBUL

ECOBANK SENEGAL       
8 AVENUE LEOPOLD    
S. SENGHOR, B.P 9095    
DAKAR, SENEGAL        

AFEXIM BANK
72 (B), 
EL MAAHAD EL-ESHTERAKY 
STREET, 
HELIOPOLIS, 
CAIRO 11341, EGYPT

AKTIF BANK
ESENTEPE DISTRICT KORE, 
ŞEHITLERI STREET NO: 8/1,
ŞIŞLI /İSTANBUL 34394

BIC:    ECOCSNDA   BIC:    FXMEGCA BIC:    CAYTTRIS

Correspondent Banks

LIST OF OUR CORRESPONDENT BANKS/REIMBURSING AGENTS
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Profile of Directors

MR. FRANKLIN HAYFORD
CHAIRMAN
Age: 65 years

Mr. Franklin Hayford is an Executive Director of Databank Financial Services Ltd., 
Accra, Ghana. He is a Director of International Bank (Liberia) Ltd, Ghana Reinsurance 
Company Ltd., Insurance Company of Africa [Liberia], Grace Strategic Ventures Ltd., 
and Rhun Palm Consult Ltd. Mr. Hayford is also the Resident Director of Databank 
Securities Ltd, The Gambia. Mr. Hayford has over the years been very active in private 
business in The Gambia, holding different managerial positions in a number of compa-
nies. He represents a number of International Institutions in The Gambia. Mr. Hayford 
holds a BSc degree in Management Sciences from the University of Manchester in the 
U.K.

NJILAN SENGHORE
MANAGING DIRECTOR
Age: 46 years 

Njilan started her education at St Joseph’s School (Mrs. Ndow) where following 
a double promotion from primary 3 to 5, she finished primary school a year ahead 
of her peers and gained admission to Gambia High School. In 1993, she graduated 
from Gambia High School and proceeded to the West Midlands School of Accoun-
tancy in Birmingham, UK. At the age of 21, she attained qualifications with two world 
recognized Accountancy Bodies; Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT) and the 
Association of Chartered Certified Accounts (ACCA). Today she is a Fellow Member of 
the Association of Accounting Technicians (FMAAT), a Fellow Member of the Associa-
tion of Chartered and Certified Accountants (FCCA) and also holds a Masters Degree in 
Business Administration (MBA) from Oxford Brookes University in the UK.

Njilan began her career as an Auditor with Deloitte and Touché in 1999. Her work 
as an Auditor within a Big 4 firm helped set the foundation for the rest of her career.  
She climbed the ranks from an Audit trainee to a Senior Audit Manager within a short 
period. During her tenure at Deloitte, Njilan gained extensive experience in audits for 
all Industry sectors in The Gambia and became well respected for her knowledge in 
critical audit and accounting issues affecting the majority of entities not just in the 
Gambia but also in the West African region having also conducted audits in countries 
like Mauritania, Ghana and Mali. Njilan also received extensive training in Deloitte 
audit systems and methodologies and became the first Gambian to be admitted to the 
team of “facilitators” responsible for training employees in the Deloitte Africa group. 
Njilan travelled extensively to South Africa, Ghana, Nigeria, Kenya and France to train 
employees across the Africa region.

In May 2007, Njilan left Deloitte and moved to Trust Bank Limited as the General 
Manager in charge of Finance, Administration and Human Resources. A promotion to 
Deputy Managing Director followed in July 2016 and in December 2021 she became 
the first female Managing Director and first female Executive Director on the Bank’s 
Board. 

In addition to her duties as a Bank Executive, Njilan sits on the boards of Royal Insurance 
Company Ltd, GamSwitch Company Ltd, Bayba Financial Services Ltd and International 
Bank of Liberia. Njilan also participates in mentoring young ladies approaching the 
end of high school and those venturing into Business. 
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MR. ANSUMANA L. N. TOURAY
DIRECTOR
Age: 52 years

Ansumana L. N. Touray is the Deputy Managing Director of Social Security and Housing 
Finance Corporation (SSHFC). He is a Board member of the GamPetroleum Company 
Limited as well as the Gambia Transport Services Company Limited. He is a Char-
tered Accountant with over 18 years’ experience in budgeting, business process 
re-engineering, auditing, financial management and reporting for government, profit 
and non-profit organizations. He has worked at the Ministry of Finance and Economic 
Affairs (MoFEA) for many years in various capacities; including Deputy Permanent 
Secretary, Director of Budget, and as Financial Management Specialist (with the Inte-
grated Financial Management Information System).

Mr. Touray was the one who introduced the concept of Citizens Budget when he 
was the Director of Budget to enable the budget to be understood by non-technical 
people. Another key achievement in my career is the transformation of the Govern-
ment manual accounting, payroll and budgeting systems into computerized ones with 
the IFMIS Project implementation.

During his tenure at MoFEA, he represented the Ministry at various Board and 
Committee meetings both locally and internationally. Mr Touray was the Government 
Focal Person of the Climate Investment Fund of the World Bank as well as the Govern-
ment Representative of the African Risk Capacity of the African Union during his time 
at the Ministry. He had earlier worked as an Audit Senior for Deloitte for some years 
before his tenure at MOFEA.

From the educational front, he is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certi-
fied Accountants (ACCA) after having studied for his ACCA at Emile Woolf College in 
London, UK; and banked double Masters: Master of Science (MSc) in Accounting and 
Financial Management from DeVry University, USA and Masters in Business Adminis-
tration (MBA) in Executive Leadership from Breyer State University, USA.

MRS. ANGELA ANDREWS-NJIE
DIRECTOR
Age: 66 years

Mrs. Angela Andrews Njie is a Co-founder, Director and Company Secretary of West 
African Tours Ltd, a company founded in 1987. Prior to this, she worked for the Gamnor 
Group (The Gambia), CT Bowering (London) and British Aluminium. Since 1993, she 
has also undertaken short term consultancies for a number of Institutions including 
an assignment at Tanzania’s Civil Training Center on behalf of the Commonwealth 
Secretariat, and an audit assignment in collaboration with Coopers & Lybrand Dieye 
under the direction of the World Bank. She also served as Executive Board Member of 
the Chamber of Commerce and Industry in The Gambia. Mrs. Andrews-Njie graduated 
from the London School of Accounting as an ACIS (Chartered Institute of Secretaries) 
Graduate and an ACMA (Chartered Institute of Management Accountants) Graduate 
in 1981 and 1983 respectively. Prior to that, she obtained a Diploma in Administration 
from Hull College in 1979. In 2004, she obtained an MBA in International Business from 
the University of Birmingham. She joined the Board in May 2002.
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MR. SALOUM MALANG
DIRECTOR
AGED: 50 years

Mr. Saloum Malang is the current Managing Director of Social Security and Housing 
Finance Corporation and a Board member of Gam Petroleum, Gambia Transport 
Service Company (GTSC), Gambia Food and Feed Industry (GFFI), West Africa Leisure 
Group (WALG) and TBL. Mr. Malang started his Public Sector carrier in 1998 at the Sea 
Port where he worked at the Banjul Shipyard Co. Ltd under the Gambia Ports Authority 
(GPA) as Commercial Officer also responsible for the admin functions and was the 
Board and Management Secretary. Mr. Malang spearheaded and drafted the first and 
only Corporate Planning Strategic document of Banjul Shipyard

In 2004, Mr. Malang left the seaport for the airport where he worked under Gambia 
International Airlines Co. Ltd (GIA) temporarily heading the HR/Admin department and 
rose through the ranks to admin manager and later started the Corporate Department 
as Senior Corporate Planning Manager responsible for monitoring and evaluating the 
strategic direction of the institution and serving as Board Secretary, involved in invest-
ment analysis for projects, and the Chairman of the Contracts Committee for 12 years. 
He was the focal person for the twin projects of the GIA which were the construction 
of the Corporate Head Office at the entrance of the Banjul International Airport and 
the Cargo Complex sponsored by the European Union (EU). In 2017, he was promoted 
to the position of Deputy Managing Director and served as Acting Managing Director 
from 2018 to 2019. 

Prior to his current position, Mr. Malang served as Director General of the Gambia 
Public Procurement Authority (GPPA) for two years where he successfully created a 
team to upload and manage the organization’s cloud resources and he succeeded 
in producing 10 Oracle certified Foundation Associate including himself. At GPPA, he 
proactively started the digitalization of Public Procurement using internal resources to 
prepare the Authority ahead of the World Bank e-GP digitalization.

Mr. Malang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration with Honors from the 
International Islamic University of Malaysia in 1998, and later holds an MSc in Public 
Sector Management from GIMPA, Ghana graduating with 3.9 CGPA in 2011. He had a 
stint with the Medical Research Council and after his Advance Level, he worked with 
Standard Chartered Bank Gambia ltd in 1993 for one year before travelling to Malaysia 
on a scholarship.

HADDY SALLAH
DIRECTOR
AGE 54 years

Haddy is currently the Director of Finance and Investments at Social Security and 
Housing Finance Corporation (SSHFC), with over 30 years of working experience and 
12 years of post-graduate experience.

She has master’s degree in Finance (MBA International) from Cambridge and Chelms-
ford, through the London College of Accountancy in 2009. She is a member of the 
Association of Accounting Technicians Qualified (MAAT) In 1999 and a European 
Diploma Supplement in 2009 from the London College of Accountancy.

She has worked all her life in the Accountancy and Finance field occupying the ranks 
from Accounts clerk to Director of Finance and Investments between 1989 to date. 
Between 1989 and 1995 she worked for the Accountant General’s Department and for 
SSHFC from 1995 to date.

Haddy is currently a board member of West African Leisure Group (WALG), Gambia 
Food and Feed Industries (GFFI) and the Current Interim Board Chair of Gam-Petro-
leum Storage Company LTD. Her area of specialization is Budgeting and Budgetary 
controls and the preparation and presentation of Financial and Management informa-
tion to management. Responsible for driving the financial and investment goals of the 
SSHFC to ensure financial health.
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OMAR MBOOB (FCCA)
DEPUTY MANAGING DIRECTOR 
AGE: 46 years

Mr. Omar Mboob was the Head of the Corporate Banking Department of Trust Bank Limited 
since June 2017 until recently in January 2022 when he was appointed the Deputy Managing 
Director of the Bank. He joined Trust Bank in January 1999 at the age of 22 as a Cashier 
and rose through the ranks to Head of Finance in July 2016 before being re-assigned to the 
Business arm of the Bank at Corporate Banking Department in June 2017. He has over 23 
years of Banking experience. 

Whilst at the Finance Department, Omar was also managing the Treasury (Local Currency 
component) until June 2016 when the Bank merged the Treasury Management under the 
Finance Department with the Foreign Operations Department to a redesigned and more 
effective central Treasury Department. Omar served as the Vice President (2011-2013) and 
later President (2013-2015) of The Gambia Interbank Dealers Association (GIDA) during 
which time the Bankers Hour Radio Program was launched in 2011.  

Omar anchored the Saturday afternoon Bankers’ Hour radio program and the Sunday 
evening Finance Economic and Business (FEB) hour on West Coast Radio 92.1 FM which 
were effectively used as a platform to sensitize the rolling out of the West African Monetary 
Zone (WAMZ) payment systems (ACP/ACH, RTGS, SSS, and GamSwitch) and was recognized 
at the 2019 Annual Bankers’ Dinner. 

Mr. Mboob represented the Gambia Bankers Association at several regional meetings such 
as exploring the possibilities of quoting a sub-regional cross currency rate of the WAMZ 
countries in Freetown, Sierra Leone in April 2010 and at the first Ecowas Regional Payments 
Systems meeting (ECOREPS) to discuss possibilities of integrating the payment systems in 
ECOWAS at the Ecowas commission in Abuja, Nigeria in October 2014.

Omar Presented a paper on Banks’ challenges to Financing Agriculture on behalf of the 
Banker’s Association organized by FAO (the Gambia) in January 2019.He also Presented a 
paper on Housing Development Finance in The Gambia-Making the Real Estate Sector work 
for all, at the 4th TAF AFRICA GLOBAL Annual Conference (TAFCON) in December 2018. He 
is also a regular on the TAF HUB TV show discussing all matters relating to Banking. 

Omar was the most outstanding delegate on the Regional Course on International Financial 
Reporting Standards organized by WAIFEM in Abuja Nigeria from 28th May to 1st June 2012 
and was the Class Governor of the same prestigious course held in Accra, Ghana in February 
2016.

Omar is a person of great initiatives and a man of great thoughts. His professional work 
is consistently of high standard and value backed by his exceptional leadership qualities. 
He is always willing to share his experience with others. He relates to almost everyone, 
colleagues and customers alike and admired by his colleagues and always yearns for the 
best.

Omar is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of UK (FCCA) and 
holds a certificate of Professional Development specializing in Financial Management from 
Illinois State University (USA). 

In January 2022, he was promoted to Deputy Managing Director and an Executive Director 
on the Bank’s Board. 

Omar currently serves as a Director at Bayba Financial Services and Enterprise Life Assur-
ance (Gambia) Limited.
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Njilan Senghore
Managing Director

Omar Mboob
Deputy Managing 

Director

Muhammed M. Sisay
Head of Department - 

Treasury

Modou Lowe
Head of Department - 

Retail Banking

Fatou Lili Drammeh
Head of Department –  
Legal & Compliance,  
Company Secretary

Amadou O Jallow
Head of Department –  

Management 
Information Systems

Yaya Corr
Head of Department - 

Internal Audit

Tumani Dembajang
Head of Department - 

Corporate Banking

Momodou Trawally
Head of Department - 

Finance

Kebba Joof
Head - Risk 

Management 
Department

Senior Management
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Resolutions

To: All Members of Trust Bank

The Twenty-Fifth Annual General Meeting of Trust Bank is to be held  
on 22nd June 2023 at 3.00 pm at the Kairaba Beach Hotel.

The Board of Directors will be proposing the following resolutions, which would be put to the Annual 
General Meeting:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
1	 To receive and adopt the Annual Report and Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31st 

December 2022.
	 The Board proposes that the Directors Report and Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as 

at 31st December 2022 together with the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the 
year ended on that date submitted to the meeting be received and adopted.

2	 To declare a Dividend.
3	 To re-elect Directors.
	 The following Directors who will be retiring and being eligible have offered themselves for re-

election:
	 Mr. Franklin A. Hayford
	 Mr. Ansumana L. N. Touray
	 The Board proposes that the above be re-elected.
4	 To ratify the appointment of the following Directors: -
	 Mr. Saloum Malang
	 Mrs. Haddy Sallah
	 Mr. Abdoulie Jallow
5	 To approve Directors Fees.
6	 To appoint the Auditors of the Bank until the conclusion of the next annual General Meeting (AGM). 

The Board proposes that DT Associates be appointed Auditors until the conclusion of the next AGM.
7	 To authorize the Board to determine remuneration of Auditors.
8	 To transact any other business appropriate to be dealt with at an Annual General Meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
10th May 2023
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Proxy Form

FOR TBL’S USE ONLY

✂

PROXY FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
TO BE HELD ON 22nd June 2023
I/We

being a member/members of the above named company, hereby appoint

The Chairperson of the Meeting* 

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company  
to be held on 22nd June 2023, and at any adjournment thereof.

I/WE DESIRE FOR THE PROXY TO BE USED AS FOLLOWS	  FOR           AGAINST

1	 To receive and adopt the Annual Report and Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31st December 2022

2	 To declare a dividend

3	 To re-elect Directors Mr. Franklin A. Hayford and Mr. Ansumana L. N. Touray

4	 To ratify the appointment of the following Directors: - 

	 Mr. Saloum Malang
	 Mrs. Haddy Sallah
	 Mr. Abdoulie Jallow

5	 To Approve the remuneration of Directors

6	 To appoint DT Associates as Auditors of the Bank until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting

7	 To authorize the Board to determine the remuneration of Auditors 

Note
i)	 This proxy should be returned so as to arrive at the Registered Office of the Company, 3-4 ECOWAS Avenue, Banjul, not 

later than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Meeting.
ii)*	 A member who wishes to appoint his own proxy should insert the name of his proxy in the blank space provided and delete 

the Chairperson of the meeting.
A proxy need not necessarily be a member of the Company.
iii)	 Any alteration to this form must be initialed by the appointer.

SIGNATURE DATE

2023
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MICROFINANCE 
AND MONEY TRANSFER

YOUTH WOMEN RURAL

We are also located in all Trust Bank 
branches across the country

Kairaba: (220) 4398136
Brikama Branch: (220) 448742

West Field Branch: (220)4394505
Brusubi Branch: (220) 4410617

Banjul NTC Branch: (220) 4202412
Bansang Branch: (220) 5674244

Subsidiary of



HEAD OFFICE 
3/4 Ecowas Avenue 
PO Box 1018 
Banjul 
Tel: 220-4225777/8/9   
Fax: 220-4225781


